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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TR E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SFK
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am honoured to
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“SFK” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”
or “2022").

For the Year, the total revenue of the Group increased by 1.17% to
HK$3,667.08 million (2021: HK$3,624.51 million) and the Group
recorded a net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$18.73 million (2021: HK$17.43 million).

During the Year, the Group has been awarded 19 new projects as a main
contractor in Hong Kong with a total original contract sum of
approximately HK$4,163 million (2021: HK$3,345 million). The
outstanding value of our ongoing projects as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$7.1 billion (2021: HK$6.3 billion), which comprise 13
projects for general building works and 22 projects for civil engineering
works. After the Year, the Group has been awarded a project for civil
engineering works with a total original contract sum of approximately
HK$197 million. As such, the outstanding value of projects on hand is still
maintained at a healthy level.

Despite the continuous COVID-19 pandemic in 2022, the development of
new COVID-19 vaccines and the recent launch of herd immunity begin to
signal the end of this pandemic. It is expected that the reopening of the
worldwide borders would mark the beginning of economy recovery, and
it is expected that the business of the Group will benefit from it. Above all,
with the leadership of our professional team and the dedication of our
united employees, we believe the Group can overcome all difficulties,
capture opportunities and can thrive.

Looking ahead, our construction business will continuously be operated
in a stable and efficient way, which will further enhance our construction
record and reputation. Meanwhile, we will keep looking for channels to
diversify our resources into different businesses and geographical areas
to capture new business opportunities.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation
to my fellow board members, management team, staff members,
suppliers, subcontractors, business partners and, most importantly, our
shareholders and customers for their continuous support to the Group.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK3.5 cents per share.

Chan Ki Chun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is principally engaged in construction and maintenance
projects in Hong Kong and construction projects in Macau under our
brand “SFK (¥7 & /&)”. In addition, the Group provides other services,
which comprise mainly housing and property management services (such
as the provision of cleaning services and security management services),
fresh water and flush water maintenance services, sewage water
sampling services, electrical and mechanical engineering services and
building information modelling (“BIM”) services to real estates in Hong
Kong.

The Group is one of the few construction companies in Hong Kong that
are included in the List of Approved Contractors maintained by the Works
Branch with Group C status (unlimited value) in all five public works
categories. The Group is also one of the approved contractors to tender
for the Housing Authority’s new works contracts and maintenance
contracts of unlimited value. These are the highest grades in the
respective categories, which enable us to be capable and flexible in
acquiring or tendering for all kinds of Government and Housing
Authority’s construction and maintenance contracts for general building
and civil engineering works.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's revenue for the Year increased by 1.17% to HK$3,667.08
million (2021: HK$3,624.51 million). The Group recorded a net profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$18.73 million in
the Year (2021: HK$17.43 million). The results for the Year were mainly
due to the combined effect of a mix of projects from our general building
works and civil engineering works undertaken during the Year, with the
major projects being outlined in the following sections.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

Major projects awarded and undertaken in 2022 TECCEEMRAENEEER

During the Year, we were awarded 19 projects as a main contractor in R » RIFARES AEEEE FDEM19EER (5K
Hong Kong (out of which 12 and 7 are from the public sector and private B R SMPIRFLEWERNIBE S R1A12@FM7 @) -
sector, respectively), with total original contract sum of approximately — RE] & KX A 4,163 BEBTT - NREIIKRFIE
HK$4,163 million. The table below sets out the summary of our REHH—REFRTATIRELARFREEEHE -
construction and maintenance projects for general building and civil

engineering works that were awarded during the Year:

Number of Total original
projects contract sum
HE#E RETE#H#HEE
(approximate
HK$’million)
(BrasEsT)
Original contract sum at or above HK$500 million  5E# T EWRETE 4
Gl 1 2,624
Original contract sum below HK$500 million SIEBTTATE2EET
but at or above HK$200 million A FBRETE &5 4 1,430
Original contract sum below HK$200 million 2{EAB LA TR 5,0008
but at or above HK$50 million BT LHRETED
k| - -
Original contract sum less than HK$50 million 50008 BT A T IRET
BT 14 109
19 4,163

6 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2022, we had a total of 13 projects for general
building works and 22 projects for civil engineering works on hand. The
total original contract sum of these projects was approximately HK$16
billion. The outstanding value (defined as the difference between revenue
recognised and the original contract sum) of our ongoing projects as at
31 December 2022 was approximately HK$7.1 billion. The following table
sets forth the particulars of some of the sizeable construction and
maintenance projects for general building works and civil engineering
works awarded and undertaken by us as a main contractor and remained
ongoing as at 31 December 2022:

BEE W kDT

R —F+=ZA=+—H  BEMFEEE 13
B—AREFITRER R2ELATIZER - %58
BRTANBBEHA160EET —TE-_—F+—A
—t+—HEMEEREENATKEB(TERADER
KSR ANSEHANEE)NATIESTL T
FEVNKEMNBEARE S NEIRAEER-E
TS A+ RINEETHIS —REFT
BREATIRHAAZERREEEFE

Revenue
Original recognised
contract during the
completion Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2022
R&T R=B=zf
EHRT RIT&H HREE
BREY ES PN IRER A F ERNUE
(approximate (approximate
HKS$'milion) HKS$'milion)
(BoagEn)  (HOBEEAT)
Site Formation and Infrastructure Works Civil engineering works Site formation and infrastructure works July 2021 409.0 1564.0
for the Civil Engineering and TARIR for development at Kam Tin South, ZEC-FR
Development Department Yuen Long — Advance works
TARTEAREN T TERM THSAEERI B D TEAER
ERieIR RIETE - AR
Construction of Public Rental Housing General building works Construction of Public Rental Housing October 2022* 3,740.0 649.4
Development and Subsidised Sale —REFIE Development and Subsidised Sale Flats ZEIZETR
Flats Development of the Housing Development
Authority PABEREERAERAMLERRE
FEZEENAAMEREERHER eS| 2an
EYLERRRRABIRETR
Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats General building works Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats October 2022* 1,911.0 683.3
Development of the Housing Authorty ~ —RIEF T2 EPHERERETRE “E--FtR
FRZEEEMNERELRIE
BETR

— =
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

Revenue
Original recognised
contract during the
completion Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2022
F3 R=B-=%
BHRT I HREE
BARY ES YN IREE R Ex RS
(approximate (approximate
HK$'million) HK$'million)
(Bwegsn)  (BHEEETL)
Construction managed by the Civil engineering works Construction of Open Space at December 2023 193.0 343
Architectural Services Department TARIR Hung Hom Waterfront e gy
BREZERNIRRHEETR THERREARETR
Design and Construction managed by General building works = Design and Construction of January 2024 484.0 -
the Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Maintenance projects Proposed Transitional Housing for “Z-|m%-AR
Senvice-Hong Kong —fREFIR2 - REBE  Evangelical Lutheran Church Social
REBYEEEZEHERETEREN Service-Hong Kong — Ngau Tam
Tiefftaksr kg T Mei, Yuen Long, New Territories
REABHRECESHERES
REMBRAENRETRESN
R BRI - MRATHTER
Management and maintenance of roads Civil engineering works = Management and maintenance of public March 2024 4826 190.6
in Kowloon East for the Highways maintenance project roads, including associated slopes, “E-mE=AR
Department tARTE - REEE highway structures, tunnels and
ERBEEERRENERER landscaping, and minor improvement
works in Kowloon East but excluding
Expressways and High Speed Roads
EEARENERHALER (RRAKR
BIRERRIN)  REEITRENAR
BREEY BE BRREN) AR
BEOEIR
Electrical and Mechanical Works for Civil engineering works Electrical and Mechanical works for sewage May 2024 557.6 306
Sewage Treaiment Facilties of the TAIRE treatment faciliies in Shek Wu Hu ZZ-MERR
Drainage Services Department Effluent Polishing Plant
ERETKEEIMORETRE (Main Works Stage 1)
IKRIRRENRELRE - AllETK
RiE(FRIRE-RE)
Three Runway System Project for the General building works Building and Civil Works for New Integrated September 2024 440.7 163.3
Hong Kong International Airport —HREFIR Airport Centres —“Z-WFAA
EARRRS=HEZRTRAY MG R RS ONBTRIATRE
Infrastructure Works for Non-public General building works Non-public Housing Facilities — December 2024 1,497.0 3835
Housing Facilties of Hong Kong —REFIE Transport Infrastructure Works, ZZ-NE+ZA

Housing Authority
EEREZERFNERERBNER
RITE

Water Feature Park and

Landscaped Walk
FRERERIE - BHAWRE

IR EKARMULESKE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W kDT

Revenue

Original recognised

contract during the

completion Original financial year

Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2022
JRET R=Z==f

BHRT RiT&#H BHER

BERER B3 k] IREE R Ex BNk
(approximate (approximate

HK$'million) HKS$'million)

(MaomEkn)  BWESET)

Maintenance of properties managed by General building works = Alterations, additions, maintenance March 2025 8304 2173
the Architectural Services Department maintenance project and repair of buildings and lands “Z-n%=RH
RELZERNNERERE —fFiEF TR — REEE  and other properties in Hong Kong

Island Western, Southern and

Lantau Islands for which

Architectural Services Department

(Property Services Branch) is responsible
REEZ(MEEHR)AENES

fiR - mERAELNEF

THREMNEETRR Mg

RER#GETR
Maintenance of properties managed by General building works = Alterations, additions, maintenance March 2025 784.8 2526
the Architectural Services Department maintenance project and repair of buildings and lands “Z-R%=RH
BREETRNNERBRE —RIEFIR —REEE  and other properties in Tuen Mun
and Yuen Long for which

Architectural Services Department
(Property Services Branch) is responsible

BEEE(MEFHR)BENTMR
THMET - DR EMMEET
YR Mg REREBIR

Maintenance of properties managed General building works = Maintenance, improvement and March 2025 4777 83.1
by the Housing Authority maintenance project vacant flat refurbishment for “Z-R%=R
REEZESERNNERERE —RIEFIR - REER  properties managed by the Housing
Authority in Tuen Mun and
Yuen Long

RREZESERUNEMR
TEARNERERE  RERTE

BuEnIR
Term Maintenance of Water Supply and Civil engineering works —  Term Maintenance of Water Supply and September 2025 201.2 8.9
Fire Services in Housing Authority Estates,  maintenance project Fire Services in Housing Authority Estates, “Z-R%FNA
Areas and Buildings for the Housing TAIR - REEE Areas and Buildings for Hong Kong
Authority Housing Authority (WTT Region)
REEZEQETEY 07 REFH REBREZECETEY WHRET
kREh % BT HRE WEKROE R EEBRE (EAI
BXRREER)

CECCFRINRAEARREEBERAA 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

Revenue
Original recognised
contract during the
completion Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2022
B3 R=B-=%
BHRT RIEH HREE
ERER B3 Y] IREE R Ex EANKE
(approximate (approximate
HK$ million) HKS$'million)
(HoagET)  (BARERT)
Construction of public housing General building works Construction of public January 2026 2,624.0 177.0
developments of Kai Tak Sites 2B5 —RBFIR housing developments “F-RE-R
and 286 ERNHERERER
FRAENE B R 2B L EEERRER
* The actual contract completion date was postponed and the project was still ongoing * EREHNTIAHEHE MEER-_Z2=-_F+=A8

as at 31 December 2022.

Major projects completed in 2022

Completed projects refer to projects for which we have received the
completion certificates from the respective customers or terms of year of

=+—B1NE#ETT -

TR CFEANERER
ERBERERMERBEEFPRIIZTIERAELUALK
FHERMNEE - FR NEBELBFEZASDT

#

the contracts expired. Details of the major projects completed by the  pKHIEEIBEHFEIBLT ¢
Group as a main contractor during the Year are as follows:
Revenue
Original recognised
contract during the
completion Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2022
JR&T R=B=Zf
EHRT FHEE HHEE
FRER £B5H IRER RE Ex el 6l
(approximate (approximate
HKS$'milion) HKS$'milion)
(Boagsn)  (BHEEET)
Piers maintenance for the Civil Civil engineering works —  To carry out maintenance works for piers March 2017 to 160.1 46.3
Engineering and Development maintenance project RERBEETRETLR March 2022
Department tATE - REHEE “E—+%5=fz
TATRARENEERESY —F--f=f
Design and Construction managed by General building works —  Design and Construction of Minor Works to February 2019 to 531.1 93.3
the Architectural Services Department maintenance project the Government and Subvented Properties August 2022
RREEERNTIRRESHR —RIEFIR2 - REER  for Architectural Services Department — “T-NF-AZ
BETR New Territories and Outlying Islands —E--EN\R

(North)

AREZEENNFRIEREDFHEN
N TRBHRG REETE -
MARES )
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A majority of our revenue is generated from our general building and civil
engineering works. During the Year, the revenue attributable to our
general building and civil engineering business amounted to HK$2,777.98
million and HK$611.80 million (2021: HK$2,787.28 million and
HK$608.97 million), respectively, representing approximately 75.76% and
16.68% (2021: 76.90% and 16.80%), respectively, of the total revenue of
the Group for the Year.

During the Year, other than general building and civil engineering works,
we also provided other services which comprised mainly housing and
property management services (such as the provision of cleaning services
and security management services), fresh water and flush water
maintenance services, sewage water sampling services, electrical and
mechanical engineering services and BIM services to real estates in Hong
Kong. Revenue attributable to these other services amounted to
approximately 7.56% of the total revenue of the Group for the Year (2021:
6.30%).

Award of contracts after the Year

The Group has been awarded the following contract for civil engineering
works after the Year and the table below sets forth the particulars of the
project:

BEE W kDT

B ARE D ERE —BIEFRTARTIE - £/ -
—BEFRIAIEEBRED A R2777.988 8
BT R611.80EBEEIT(ZT-—4F :278728H 8
BT k608TEBA L) DA FARNEEZ
W 25 4975.76% 1 16.68% ( =& — — & : 76.90% &
16.80%) °

FER - B—REFR AT - BT EH AR
%o XEeEREENEREREEERMESE
RS (RN B RS RR L EERK) « HKRE
KREBRTS « J5KERERY - HE TRRS & BIMAR
7% o HABBRIS A IR ES1E F R A L BB HI7.56%
(ZZ=——% :6.30%) °

REFERBEROEH

MAFER  AEECERATEATEALY  TX
FOIEE WS -

Original

Project type Business segment Scope of works Contract period contract sum

HERR K28 IR#E BNH CHEEEE:

(approximate

HKS'million)

(B4

BEET)

Site Formation Works for Givil Engineering Civil engineering works Site formation works at Queen’s Hil March 2023 to 197

and Development Department +ARIRE extension, Fanling March 2026
TARIRAREN T TRIR WaEEFLERAM I TEIR —TZ=E-RE
ZTZRE=R
SRR HESEREEERAR 1M



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

Our commitment to safety, quality and environment

The Board is of the view that the continued success of our business
primarily depends on our ability to meet our customers’ requirements,
particularly in respect of safety, quality and environmental aspects. The
Group has established a set of quality assurance measures and has
committed to high safety standard and environmental impact control.
Through the systematic and effective control of the Group’s operations
and monitoring procedures and control over its subcontractors,
compliance with safety, quality and environmental requirements can be
further assured, and such that non-conformance, environmental incidents
and liability can be eliminated or reduced.

The Group has been accredited and continuously re-accredited with
ISO9001, 1ISO14001, ISO45001 and ISO50001 certifications. The Board
believes that these certifications will enhance our public image, credibility
and customers’ confidence in the Group. In recent years, more and more
tenders have included the requirements of ISO9001, ISO14001 and
ISO45001 certifications and our certified status will bring us more
business opportunities and uphold our competitiveness.

For more details on our performance in safety, quality and environmental
aspects, please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) on pages 31 to 99 of this annual report.

Effective cost control and savings measures

Our management has been flexible and will continue to do so in deploying
resources with reference to the stage of completion of various ongoing
projects in order to capture business opportunities and to optimise the
allocation of resources.

Given our wide diversity of works, we are able to implement a centralised
resources sourcing and allocation system which allows us to reduce
costs by making bulk purchases and maximise utilisation of resources,
and a customised enterprise resources planning programme to monitor
the cost in real time.

We maintain good and long-standing relationships with our
subcontractors. By having long-standing relationships with our
subcontractors, we can make comprehensive assessment of our
subcontractors over years so as to ensure the quality of works in the long
run. Our relationships with these subcontractors also obviate the need for
keeping a large number of workers under permanent employment of the
Group, thereby giving us the feasibility to deploy our resources more cost
effectively without compromising our quality.

12 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue increased by approximately HK$42.57 million, or
approximately 1.17%, from HK$3,624.51 million for 2021 to
HK$3,667.08 million for 2022. The increase in our revenue was mainly
due to the increase in our revenue from other services business of
HK$49.04 million.

Revenue from general building business decreased by approximately
HK$9.30 million, or approximately 0.33%, from HK$2,787.28 million for
2021 to HK$2,777.98 million for 2022. The decrease in revenue between
years was primarily due to the completion of certain general building
contracts, in particular the contract for maintenance of properties
managed by the Architectural Services Department was completed in
August 2022. In addition, there was a decrease in revenue between years
for certain general building contracts as they approached the completion
stage, including mainly the construction of public rental housing
development and subsidised sale flats development for the Housing
Authority. This was partly offset by the increase in revenue between years
in accordance with the work progress of other general building contracts,
including the infrastructure works for non-public housing facilities for the
Housing Authority.

Revenue from civil engineering business increased by approximately
HK$2.83 million, or approximately 0.46%, from HK$608.97 million for
2021 to HK$611.80 million for 2022. The increase in revenue between
years was primarily due to the increase in accordance with the work
progress of certain civil engineering contracts, including the construction
of Open Space at Hung Hom Waterfront by the Architectural Services
Department. This was partly offset by the decrease in revenue as a result
of completion of certain civil engineering contracts, including the contract
for maintenance of piers for the Civil Engineering and Development
Department.

Revenue from other services (which mainly comprised housing and
property management services, fresh water and fresh water maintenance
services, sewage water sampling services, electrical and mechanical
engineering services and BIM services) for 2022 amounted to HK$277.30
million (2021: HK$228.26 million), representing 7.56% (2021: 6.30%) of
the total revenue of the Group. The increase in revenue from other
services was mainly due to the increase in revenue from sewage water
sampling services between years.

Our business remained to be primarily focusing in the Hong Kong market
during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of HK$77.41 million for the Year, as
compared with a gross profit of HK$85.71 million for 2021. The reduction
in gross profit between years was mainly attributable to the loss incurred
by the civil engineering contracts for the infrastructure works for
developments at the southern part of the former runway as a result of the
cost overruns by subcontractors during the finalisation of contracts with
the individual subcontractors.

The Group recorded a gross profit margin of 2.11% for 2022, compared
to a gross profit margin of 2.36% for 2021. The decrease in gross profit
margin between years was mainly explained by the loss incurred by
certain civil engineering contracts as a result of cost overruns by
subcontractors during the finalisation of contracts with the individual
subcontractors.

Other revenue

Other revenue mainly consisted of interest income and sundry income.
Our other revenue for 2022 amounted to HK$33.02 million, compared to
that of HK$3.64 million in 2021. The other revenue in 2022 comprised
government subsidies of approximately HK$32.22 million received
pursuant to the 2022 Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-
epidemic Fund, which provided wage subsidies to employers for three
months (i.e. May, June and July 2022).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other net gain

Our other net gain for 2022 amounted to HK$2.05 million, compared to
our other net gain of HK$1.37 million for 2021. The other net gain in 2022
mainly comprised HK$1.10 million gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and HK$1.03 million net realised and unrealised gain on
interest rate swaps.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly consisted of staff costs and rental
charges. Our administrative expenses for 2022 amounted to HK$63.16
million, compared to that of HK$65.44 million for 2021. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in rental charges between years.

Finance costs

Our finance costs for 2022 amounted to HK$3.18 million, compared to
that of HK$2.41 million for 2021. The increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in bank interest rates of the Group during the Year.

Share of results of a joint venture

Our share of results of a joint venture for 2022 was a net loss of HK$2.13
million, compared to that of a net loss of HK$2.30 million for 2021. The
loss was mainly explained by the share of administrative expenses
incurred by the joint venture.

Income tax

Our income tax for 2022 was HK$24.26 million, compared to HK$2.59
million for 2021. The increase was mainly due to the reversal of deferred
tax assets arising from tax losses of a subsidiary which we re-assessed
not probable to be utilised in the near future.

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company

Based on the above factors, there was a profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company amounting to HK$18.73 million for 2022,
compared to a profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$17.43 million for 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R LT

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following are some principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
which may materially adversely affect its business, financial condition or
results of operations:

Highly regulated industry

The construction industry is a highly regulated industry and our business is
subject to various government regulations. In accordance with the laws of
Hong Kong and Macau, the Group is required to obtain or maintain certain
registrations, licences and/or certifications to operate its business. All such
registrations, licences and/or certificates are granted/renewed and
maintained upon the satisfactory compliance by the Group with, among
others, the applicable criteria set by the relevant government departments
or organisations. Such criteria may include the maintenance of certain
financial criteria including the working capital level, the adequacy of our
management structure and the appropriate experience and qualification of
the personnel of the Group. These registrations, licences and/or certificates
may only be valid for a limited period of time and may be subject to
periodic reviews and renewal by government authorities and relevant
organisations. In addition, the standards of compliance required in relation
thereto may from time to time be subject to changes without substantial
advance notice.

The loss of or failure to obtain or renew or a suspension of any or all of
the Group’s registrations, licences and/or certifications could materially
and adversely affect the business of the Group.

Reliance on the contracts granted by the Hong Kong
Government

The Hong Kong Government has been and is expected to continue to be
the Group’s largest customer. If there is any decrease or delay in the
spending of the Hong Kong Government in the construction industry or
any revocation or suspension of the licences, the business, results of
operations and financial positions of the Group may be adversely
affected.

16 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022

FEARRFREER

ARESHARBMER MR SREREAEK
BETNPENETIZARETEERZNT

ITHEERE

BREXTEMRE ﬁf?ﬁ%%ﬁx/\Lﬁylﬁﬁﬁlﬁ/i
%ﬁ REBERMIES - ARBERSIHEETE

R HEES i‘“%%?‘fk K%l;z A
(EEP BIE) BB AP S B R E R E AR EM
R EBHRBEMAERT  BRE/REE - B
FEAEBEASERGEFETUBERE 8%
BESKY HENEREERBEREBABRR N
EEE - %550 BRE/AEBETRENERE
RAEME A e AKEBUTEFI R AR E T TR
PABEER - Lo HEAS RIS ERE TREEM TS
RS S BA -

EP Y PEE Pt
B RRAEE
ETHPE -

HEHRE B HEMREDH
AR BN R B R SRR

HREEBEARTFNEN

BEBRF—BERREADEARENZGAES - &
BEBTEIR S EEREXE T N BEXBHEALE
EH IR - IREM AN B RS R EE MU
ERAAMTE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Competitive tendering progress and the making of
estimates

The business of the Group operates on a non-recurring and project-by-
project basis. We have no long-term commitments with our customers,
but rely on successful tenders that determine the award of construction
contracts. The number of contracts awarded to the Group, therefore,
may vary from time to time. Upon completion of its contracts on hand,
the Group’s financial performance may adversely be affected if the Group
is unable to secure new tenders or obtain new contract awards with
comparable contract sums or at all.

Further, in the tendering process, the Group has to estimate construction
time and costs in order to determine the tender price. However the actual
implementation of a project may not accord with such estimation due to
cost overruns and/or other related construction risks. If our estimates of
the overall risks, revenue or costs prove inaccurate, the Group will
experience lower profitability or even make losses on contracts, which
could materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects.

Uncertainty in construction progress

The Group relies on subcontractors to implement the construction
contracts and there is no assurance that these subcontractors will be
able to continue providing services to us at fees acceptable to us or our
relationship with them could be maintained in the future. In the event that
any of our principal subcontractors are unable to provide the required
services to the Group or their cost for providing the required services
increase substantially, the Group’s business, results of operations,
profitability and liquidity may be adversely affected.

Further, there may be delays or disruptions to our works due to
unforeseen circumstances that are beyond our control. If the Group fails
to complete works by the relevant deadlines as stipulated in the
contracts, it may be required to compensate its customers and the
Group’s business, results of operations, profitability and liquidity may be
adversely affected.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

Uncertain external factors

Most of our operations are currently located in Hong Kong. Although the
construction industry in Hong Kong has been growing in view of the
strong housing needs and government large infrastructure projects, the
future growth and prospect will largely depend on the continued
prosperity of the property market and the continued availability of major
construction projects.

For more details of the above principal risks and uncertainties and other
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer to the section
headed “Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the Company dated 30
November 2015 (the “Prospectus”).

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (“KPIS”) WITH
THE STRATEGY OF THE GROUP

The Group sets a number of KPIs to support the delivery of its strategies
with its performance, including the followings, and others in respect of
environment, social and governance matters which are discussed in the
ESG Report.

KPIs
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Performance

®RE

Maximise value for the
Shareholders

RERAEZRKEE

Gross profit margin
=2.11% (2021: 2.36%)
EFl%
=211% (=T =—F : 2.36%)
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The Group strived to maintain stable operation
performance for most of the projects during the Year
despite intense competition across the construction
market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W kDT

Strategy KPlIs Performance

g FERRER E3:)

Improve the Group’s liquidity Net cash generated from operating The Group adopts a policy to regularly monitor the
WEAEERBES activities liquidity requirements of the Group and the Group’s

= HK$104.99 million

(2021: net cash used in

operating activities

HK$18.31 million)
RETEBE SR ©IFHE

=104.99 B & T

(ZZEZ—F - R2EHMA

REFFE1831BAEET)

Cash and bank balances (excluding
pledged deposits)
= HK$262.56 million
(2021: HK$236.84 million)

e RIRITHER (P REEEREFER)
=262.56 B &ETT
(ZZE=—% :236.84 AEBT)

Strive for the “zero harm” Accident rate
safety goal =5.22 per 1,000 workers
BOhEBIZEFEIZ2ER (2021: 7.49 per 1,000 workers)
BONEHE

=BTHIAL22
(ZF=—F : 8FHRIAT.49)

OUR RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

The customers of the Group are divided into two categories: (a) public
sector including Hong Kong Government and its related organisations
and institutional bodies; and (b) the private sector. During the Year, all
projects of the Group were secured by tendering. The Group maintains
good relationships with its customers, and have regular contacts with
customers, architects and other consultants in the construction industry
to keep abreast of market development and potential business
opportunities.

compliance with lending covenants so as to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet the liquidity requirements of the
Group in the short and longer term.
REBERREREZAEERDHE ST RRAREEE
REFERBANBE  BREFAVESHBRE
ZoRBBOREARESHRE - WERMAREEEH
LERBIRESESHT K

During the Year, the Group has put adequate resources
and effort to uphold and improve its safety management
system in order to reduce its risks related to safety
issues. Our accident rate for 2022 was 5.22 per 1,000
workers which remains low and is significantly lower
than the construction industry average, of which the
industry average for 2021 was 29.5 per 1,000 workers
according to the Labour Department of Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

Suppliers

The major purchases required for our business are construction materials,
which mainly consist of concrete and steel sourced mainly in Hong Kong.
Generally, the Group selects suppliers from a pre-qualified list of suppliers
based on their past performances and capacities to comply with
specified project requirements. Only those suppliers on our approved list
are invited to submit quotations or tenders. We have maintained good
and long standing working relationship with our suppliers and some of
our suppliers have been working with us for over 20 years. We do not
foresee any difficulties in sourcing materials in the future.

Subcontractors

The Group generally acts as the main contractor and will engage or
outsource to subcontractors to carry out certain part of the works. While
the Group has not entered into any long-term agreement with its
subcontractors, it engages them on project basis. Nevertheless, the
Directors believe that the Group has maintained good relationships with
its subcontractors. Some of the subcontractors have been working with
the Group for over ten years and we had not experienced any significant
disruption in the provision of works by our subcontractors. With the
relatively large pool of approved subcontractors in the Group’s pre-
qualified list, we do not foresee any difficulties in finding substitute
subcontractors, if necessary.

Employees and remuneration policy

The Group maintains a very stable and experienced management team
and an amicable long-term relationship with its employees as it is our
belief that our employees are important assets to the Group. As at 31
December 2022, the Group has 1,351 employees in Hong Kong of which
1,278 were full-time employees and 73 were part-time employees. The
Group’s total remuneration for 2022 was approximately HK$474 million.
The Directors recognise the importance of attracting and retaining staff.
In order to promote employee loyalty and retention, the Group provides
technical and operational on-job trainings to its employees covering
various aspects of its operations including contract law, and workplace
and occupational safety. The Directors consider that the Group has
maintained good relationship with its employees. The Group has not
experienced any strikes, work stoppages or labour disputes which
affected its operations during the Year. The Directors also consider that
the relationship and co-operation between the management team and
the employees have been good during the Year.

The Group entered into separate labour contracts with its employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws of Hong Kong. The
remuneration offered to employees generally includes salaries, medical
benefits and bonus. Share options may also be granted to eligible
employees. In general, the Group determines salaries of its employees
based on each employee’s qualification, position, seniority and
experience.

More information concerning our customers, suppliers, subcontractors
and employees are set out in the ESG Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Directors believe that it is essential for the Group to act as an
environmentally responsible contractor to meet the customers’ demands
in environmental protection and the expectation of the community for a
healthy living environment and in return it will ensure the healthy growth
and development of the business. The Group is committed to sustainable
construction and minimisation of any adverse impact on the environment
resulting from its business activities. In the course of delivery of its
services, the Group shall (i) focus on prevention of pollution, waste
minimisation and resource conservation as critical considerations within
our core management process; (ii) comply with applicable legal
requirements and other requirements which relate to its environment
aspects; and (i) establish, implement and maintain the environmental
management system and strive for continual improvement in
environmental performance.

In order to comply with the applicable environmental protection
legislation, we have established an environmental management system in
accordance with 1ISO14001:2015 international standards and were first
awarded 1SO14001 certification in 2006. The Group has assigned
separate resources to implement its environment management system
and maintain its 1ISO14001 certification with an aim to reduce its risks
related to environmental issues. The Group promotes environment-
friendly construction worksites, install environmental facilities and put in
place environment control measures at our construction sites as
appropriate. In 2015, we were awarded ISO50001 certification for the
energy management systems of our head office and construction sites.

All along, the Group had a low number of environmental-related non-
compliance incidents. There was no conviction of violating the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in both 2021 and 2022. We will
continue to ensure implementation of our policy on environmental
management as mentioned above to avoid violation of applicable laws or
regulations in respect of environment.

Further disclosures on the environmental aspect are made in the ESG report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Group was fined for a total sum of HK$139,000 in
respect of 3 summonses for violation of certain regulations under the
Factories and Industrial Undertaking Ordinance (Cap. 59 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “F&IU Ordinance”) related to a routine inspection by
Labour Department. The Directors consider that the above matters
arising from the inspection were independent issues.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Year, save as disclosed above or otherwise in this annual
report, the Group has complied with all applicable laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and Macau in all material aspects for the business operation
of the Group. During the Year, the Group has also obtained all necessary
licenses, permits or certificates necessary to conduct its business
operation in Hong Kong, and has made the necessary registration and
obtained the necessary licenses to carry out its business in Macau.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2022, the capital structure of the Group consisted of
equity of HK$371.84 million (2021: HK$375.59 million) and bank loans of
HK$50.00 million (2021: HK$82.12 million) as more particularly described
in the paragraph headed “Borrowings” below.

Cash position and fund available

During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position, with
working capital being financed by our operating cash flows and bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2022, our cash and cash equivalents
were HK$262.56 million (2021: HK$236.84 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the current ratio of the Group was 1.25 (2021:
1.20).

Our principal uses of cash have been, and are expected to continue to
be, operational costs.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank loans, which are
repayable within one year, of approximately HK$50.00 million (2021:
HK$82.12 million). As at 31 December 2022, the bank loans bear interest
ranging from 6.15% to 6.40% (2021: 1.69% to 1.98%) per annum. The
decrease in bank loans between years was mainly due to the sufficient
internal resources available to finance the working capital of the existing
projects and hence a decrease in demand of bank loans.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately HK$1,517 million
(2021: HK$1,917 million) of unutilised banking facilities in Hong Kong and
Macau (including loans, letter of credit and letter of guaranteed facilities).
All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of certain
covenants as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. The Group remains in compliance with its loan
covenants during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was 13.45% (2021:
21.86%), calculated based on the interest-bearing borrowings divided by
the total equity as at the respective year end.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current assets of
HK$312.03 million (2021: HK$282.92 million).

The Board regularly reviewed the maturity analysis of the Group’s
contractual liabilities and concluded that the Group had no liquidity issue
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group’s capital expenditures primarily comprise purchase of plant
and equipment, such as motor vehicles and equipment, which were
funded, and are expected to continue to be funded, by internal resources
and cash flow generated from our operation. For the Year, the Group has
incurred HK$8.41 million (2021: HK$11.73 million) on acquiring items of
plant and equipment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The functional currency to which the Group’s operations and assets and
liabilities are denominated is the Hong Kong dollars. The Group has cash
balances that is denominated in the United States dollars, Renminbi and
British Pound. Given that the Hong Kong dollars are pegged with the
United States dollars, there is no currency risk exposure to the United
States dollars. The Board considers that the Group was not exposed to
significant foreign exchange risk. The Board will review the Group’s
foreign exchange risk and exposure from time to time.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES,
AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the Year and no future plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2022.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in the subsidiaries, a joint venture and joint
operations, the Group did not hold any significant investments during the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no other financial guarantees and contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2022.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged deposits, amounting to
HK$20.11 million (2021: HK$20.11 million) and assignment of project
proceeds from certain construction contracts of the Group, the Group’s
joint operations and the Group’s joint venture to banks as security of
banking facilities (including bank loans and performance bonds). Pledged
deposits remained relatively stable between years.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, our Group did not have any capital
commitments (2021: Nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The impact of COVID-19 has gradually eased and the local economy is
gradually picking up in 2023. We believe that the Hong Kong Government
will take more measures to boost the economy. Together with the
Government’s continued commitment and efforts in land development
and provision of public housing in Hong Kong, the Board remains
confident of the Group’s future development and will continue to build on
our existing competitive strengths to achieve our long term business
objectives.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W kDT

MAJOR PROJECTS COMPLETED IN 2022

—E__HFREMNERRHE

Civil Engineering and Development
Department Maintenance Contract for Piers

e
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i
L
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AN
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]
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Term Contract for the Design and Construction
of Minor Works to Government and Subvented
Properties for which the Architectural Services
Department is responsible Contract Area: New
Territories and Outlying Islands (North)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS

EEETHEERHEFRERE

Construction of Public Rental Housing
Development Phases 1&2 and Subsidised Sale Flats

Development at Diamond Hill Comprehensive
Development Area

UREBALGEBRREALBAEFERRESE —
ME_HREPHERERRAEEETRE

Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats
Development at Ma On Shan Road and
Public Housing Development at Hang Tai
Road, Ma On Shan Area 86B Phase 1

BRLUREBHERERRITERS
BIL¥CBEERKE—HLERE
BRRTENEEIR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W kDT

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS

EEETHERERHERERE

Construction of Public Housing Development at
Kai Tak Sites 2B5 and 2B6

B 2B5 55 Rk 2B SRt B N E ERRRETEIE
g1

Non-public Housing Facilities at Diamond Hill CDA
— Transport Infrastructure Works, Water Feature Park and
Landscaped Walk

BAOLGRSRREFQNEEERIE
—ERERRETRE FBXABENCERKE

Site Formation and Infrastructure Works for Development at
Kam Tin South, Yuen Long — Advance Works

— Noise Barrier Construction

— Launching Pit for Trenchless Pipe Jacking Work

THSRHERERRENE T TR
MERREIR APIRE
—REREIR
—EBRREREIRNBRBEHF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
EEETHERRMEHFRERE

New Integrated Airport Centres — Building and Civil Works
IAC Hall

FRESRENL —BERLATR
BABBRLAY

Construction of Open Space at Hung Hom Waterfront

AR ERRRABEETR

Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance
and Repair of Buildings and Lands and Other Properties
for which the Architectural Services Department (Property
Services Branch) is Responsible Designated Contract Area :
Tuen Mun and Yuen Long

BEREWEEBE)BENEEY - 1R EMYRE
THRE - ME  REREBIERNEHSH (EVEE
E: HFIKRTE)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W kDT

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS

EEETHERERHERERE

- |
= B T B |

B

Term Contract for the Maintenance, Improvement and
Vacant Flat Refurbishment for Tuen Mun and Yuen Long (1)
2022/2025

CECCERCE_AFEHMARTHERE HEREE
BEVBHFIENIEEHEN(—)

Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions,
Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands and
Other Properties for which the Architectural Services
Department (Property Services Branch) is Responsible
(Designated Contract Area : Hong Kong Island Western,
Southern and Lantau Island)

REREWREBE)NERY - T RHEMYE
ETRGE  NE - REREEIENEREN (SN
EEE: ERA - BRRERABL)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS

EEETHEERHEFRERE

~
Improvement Works at Tai Tong Nursery
Water Tank Construction

AREHBEXREIR
fRKIERE

Enhancement of Deodourisation System at Stonecutters
Island Sewage Treatment Works

HE BN T RER BB R RS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - kERRE

BOARD STATEMENT

Dear valued stakeholders,

SFK Construction Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
“SFK”or the “Group”) recognise its corporate social responsibility to
society. Consequently, our Board is responsible for overseeing the
environmental, social and governance (‘ESG”) issues.

As a contractor taking part in numerous large-scale development
projects, caring for the environment and the safety of our staff are our
major concerns. We strive to minimise environmental pollution and
nuisance caused to the public in the vicinity of our project sites. On-site
compliance monitoring is also strictly exercised, to ensure the utmost
well-being of our staff and the passers-by. At the same time, we would
always beware of the upcoming challenges we may face to maintain our
sustainability. Our Board are continuously committed to identifying,
evaluating and addressing the material risks related to the ESG impacts
arising from our business and operation and we will continue take proper
measures to mitigate these risks.

We will continue to integrate the ESG factors into our daily operation
practically and will further prevent environmental pollution, reduce
environmental nuisances and minimize waste at our construction sites.

Management Approach and Strategy

We have established the ESG Working Group led by an Executive
Director to manage the ESG issues. The Working Group is responsible
for compiling ESG issues including (i) to identify internally from our
operations, and (ii) to collate externally from our stakeholders. The
identified ESG issues have been evaluated by the Working Group and the
environmental and social goals for the sustainability of the Group’s
business have been set out.

The ESG parameters have been set by our Board to prioritise the ESG
issues in terms of potential risk to the Group’s business. Data from these
material ESG risks are gathered and KPIs are created to set as realistic
targets. To enable us to oversee and monitor the ESG performance,
measurable targets have been set out for key ESG aspects including
emission, hazardous and non-hazardous waste reduction, energy use
efficiency and water efficiency. The Working Group manages these
material ESG risks by regularly monitoring the KPlIs.
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Progress Review

The Working Group updates our Board regularly on the status of
achieving the KPI targets, the environmental and the social goals.

We continuously monitor the risks constituted to the Group from these
material ESG issues. Our Board also assesses our ESG goals from time
to time.

With prudent monitoring and control, and through diligent management
and training, we aim at avoidance of environmental pollution and make
zero compromise in occupational health and safety.

We value the wellness of the community just as we upkeep the safety of
our workers. Recognising the society’s support to our business growth,
the Group backs various not-for-profit organisations through
sponsorships and donations as well as volunteering. In these challenging
times, we participated in activities to provide pandemic relief to the
community to make our humble support to the community.

We do our utmost to ensure the greatest well-being of our staff and our
community, and hand-in-hand we have weathered storm after storm.
Together, we will embrace the challenge and strive for a sustainable
future.

Board of Directors
Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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SFK won the OSHC Construction )

0t ey o 202 com Safety Award and CEDD

!SflyAwndP entation Ceremony

A i*Iii}E)&SI‘ﬁQilﬁlﬂZonHI!EE%HE&!Q! 1 i
Cuuslrucumlsne SafetyAwaril 2021 £ g’ Bror e Construction Site SafEty Award
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CHAPTER 1 ABOUT THIS REPORT F—E MARTEE

1.1 Introduction 11 #%5
The adoption of Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”) BRIRE g kEa((RE wgkER]D
criteria is an emerging trend for stakeholders to evaluate the BERFMNENTESAAIRE ZMEABE - K
performance of companies. This report is presented to respond to WELNSFERERNLER A KEELIBERE -
this expectation with high transparency of operation and to WERRAEMEZERE & KERTEME
showcase our effort in various ESG aspects. BIZ5 A ©

1.2 ESG Governance 1.2 BIE - HERERRE
The Board has overall responsibility for establishing the ESG issues EXZRrEAERYERR HgREGEER
and setting the sustainability goals of the Group. To reinforce the SIEASEMAIFEZRREBR « BINEIRE -
ESG management approach and strategy, the Board has adopted HERERAERTERRE EFSHNIE
“Top-down” management approach. The Board is overseeing the IEATINEREREN - EFEe8EEEAEHE
implementation, monitoring and effectiveness of the ESG-related RIE - g MERRBERREEMNEE - B
risk management of the Group and has assigned an executive BERARBR - Wik —ERTEFTRER
Director to lead the ESG Working Group to realize the ESG goals. B odeREATENMIERRIRE HekE
In order to identify which ESG issues are considered to be the key 5@ BiR o REBIMLIRE HEREARRERE
concerns of our stakeholders and competitiveness in the industry, RREEMNFNERTERFINZE@DT
the Board identifies the material ESG matters through the annual % CEEABRFEERHTEHEAENR
materiality assessment. The Board reviews the updated progress R HEEREARBEE ZEELEMRE 4@
against the ESG-related goals and targets, gives instructions to the KEGRMEBZ R ’f@E’JE—%ﬁzﬁE EEER
ESG Working Group and oversights the ESG-related matters. g kERTIENMEELIER - WEERE

HEgRER/EBER -

The ESG Working Group is supported by ESG Liaison, each of R e NERIIENERIRE HERE
them is led by a member of ESG Working Group. RE AR BREY I BRBMBEREREE AT

RERIENMN—BREEE
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The ESG Liaison coordinates with operation units to manage the
ESG-related matters. The ESG Working Group is responsible for:

° designing, implementing and monitoring the ESG risk
management process;

° identifying, analysing and prioritising risks for ongoing review
by the Board;

° collating external feedback from our stakeholders;

o ensuring the ESG key performance indicators and targets are
being monitored regularly; and

° ensuring the risk control system is working effectively and the
risk mitigation measure are implemented within our business
operation.
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ESG Governance Structure

RIR - HERERRERE

Setting the direction of
corporate sustainability

RERFE AR R T

Approving the results of
materiality assessment

AR HAER

Overseeing progress of ESG-related
issues including ESG targets
EBIRE e kEREEZE
WER  BEEREE HgRkERER

ESG Working Group

RIE - HEREARI(FNAE

Executing the established  Reporting to the Board
sustainability practices

Reviewing the results
on ESG-related policies  of materiality assessment
and progress
PITREAIHEERIEN REFSERRR e BHEEMTENER
RE B RR St R

Reviewing the progess
of key performance
indicators and targets
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ESG Liaison
IRIE - HERERBEE

Reporting to the ESG Working Group for issues
identified during operation
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Coordinating substainability practices effectively
with the ESG Working Group
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Qﬁij(joodMPFEmploy Good MPF Employer 5 Years+

BMEFEESF+

SFK Construction Holdings Limited
WmERZREEARAT

is honoured as a i A

Good MPF Employer 5 Years+ Sun Fook Kong Holdings Limited
[HeFRESF+] FEEERARAR
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Caring for the Community Caring for the Employees. Caring for the Environment
R E RMAL L LEE
5 years+ Caring Company Logo ﬂ“ﬁs
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28th Considerate Contractor Site Award Scheme
— Considerate Contractors Site Award (Public Works-RMAA Works) — Bronze

FTNEARBEBENAE(IRIRE — 48 RE XERNEIR)
— R

28th Considerate Contractor Site Award Scheme — Innovation Awards for Safety
and Environmental Excellence (IASEE) — RMAA Works — Bronze
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In Appreciation of

s Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence

Sun Fook Kong Construction Lmited
FBEREARAT
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&
for its Pursuit of
e G R

and Participation in
the 2021 Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence
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RAEH: WW-5213-58902
FiRk R0
S Hong Kong >
— Green Organisation Certification G 3
RAGR: WW-5213-5680 RAGY: WW-5213-7468
Membersip Na: < Sye b Nembartip No:
HilHORIZR ik 5% & il
Hong Kong Wastewi$e Hong Kong
Green Organisation Certification S aeificate Green Organisation Certification
y = " RArERN o Y =
ﬁ @ ﬁ % Good Level ﬁ @ ﬁ %
Wastewi$e Wastewi$e
—rCeruﬁcate — FE (L) HRAT —rCertlﬁcate —
Lkl o BECEIENIALY: TURIGHE ARSI 2 B RS LRl
Good Level (2018-2024) Good Level
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited FrEBBIERRAT
and Mais of Roads in Kowloon East EEEBZEEAY 20180557 - BRI EIHERE
FERBEARAT excluding Expressways and High Speed Roads (2018-2024) SRR R RS A RS R R T
BELGRARREALEERE SR SIS 0 (LI 868 )

— EoHNEHEER SRS — . s | Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited Y
Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited L = ‘;load and Pu::ic Rental Hosuaslien:Il;?velopme:lt at H::nl:".rg':ti:;,n
Construction of Public Rental Housing Ma On Shan Area 86B Phase 1 (Contract No. 20180557)

[ % ST
i ! Expiry Date: 31 December 2022 h Expiry Date: 31 March 2023 4
= = =\
Wastewi$e Certificate — Good Level
WEEEE — RIFAA
. )
7 RAGR: EW-5213-5405 s J AR EW-5213-5236
iRk BN R HiERk OB Ra
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Green Organisation Certification Green Organisation Certification
b = b =7 =y
i e b i e &% 8
Energywi$e Energywi$e
— Certificate— — Certificate —
" RAFERM 4 " RAFERM
Good Level Good Level
FHREBEARAT
ERFEZREAL 20180557 - KB LIBRHHEFE
R R ERS S — R R BE SR AR TR it (1) ARRAT
(L5 86B &) BEECE EHIAAT: N (R AR RN 2 B R e
Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited (2018-2024) (54965  05/HY/2017)
Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats Development at Ma On Shan Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited
Road and Public Rental Housing Development at Hang Tai Road, and Mail of Roads in Kowl East
Ve Ma On Shan Area 86B Phase 1 (Contract No. 20180557) excluding Expressways and High Speed Roads (2018-2024)
Q EREN: —O=mE=A=+—8 ) Q WREN: ZO==#+=A=+—8
10 e Do 31 e 204 Eapiny Do 31 D 2023
JIb_ - b E&
= o=
Energywi$e Certificate — Good Level
HiREEE — RIFARI
S

38 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE g MkEARSE

Action Seeding Kai Chuen Court

To enhance public awareness about greening the
environment, Action Seeding Kai Chuen Court is
organized for public participated.

RSB EHTE
BARBBMELEETEMERARCRENER

SAHK — Corporate Partnership Scheme 2022-2023
SFK collaborated with SAHK to co-organize a volunteer activity via Zoom, “Mid-Autumn Festival Caring
Campaign”

BBIBAEME — DX T 812022-2023
MEBEFBRBEGE SN BB ZoomEW [HXE | ZTED -
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Report Compilation Basis

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The information disclosed
in this report was derived from the results of internal statistics and
analysis of the Group’s internal management systems. The ESG
issues which were the most pertinent to the Group’s operations
and key stakeholders were identified.

The report is prepared according to four reporting principles:

(i) Materiality: report content is guided by the result of our
stakeholder engagement;

(i)  Quantitative: ESG performance is reported in quantitative
figures;

(i) Consistency: reporting methodology and calculation basis are
compatible across reporting periods; and

(iv)  Balance: unbiased information is transparently disclosed in
this report.

Scope of Reporting

This ESG report discloses the relevant initiatives of the Group and
its progress for the reporting period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022. The construction projects selected for inclusion in
the report are based on the following selection criteria:

° Original contract sum is higher than HK$100 million;

o The contract commenced before 30 June 2022;
o The contract is expected to complete after 30 June 2022.

Based on their significance of contributions to the Group, the head

office and the construction sites of the following entities were

selected to be included in this report:

° Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited

° Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited

° Bestwise Envirotech Limited

° Bestwise — SFK Joint Venture (A joint venture between
Bestwise Envirotech Limited and Sun Fook Kong (Civil)

Limited)

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022
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Table 1.1 *1.1
Anticipated
Contract Contract Completion
Commencement Date Updated as at Original
Entity Project Client Date 31 December 2022 Contract Sum
R=B=ZF
tZA=t-H2
REANTIAN
B BH EF ARARAH BHER RiI&HEE
(Milion HK$)
(BEET)
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. 20170225 Hong Kong 27 March 2018 24 April 2023 3,740
Limited Construction of Public Rental Housing Housing Authority —E-N\E Z%-=F
HRBZERRAT Development Phases 1 8.2 and EEEEZES ZRA=t+tH MA=TMmA
Subsidised Sale Flats Development at
Diamond Hill Comprehensive
Development Area
BHES - 20170225
fRERLGAERRARBERR
ERE-NE_MREPLERR
BRAERETR
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited  Contract No. 05/HY/2017 Highways Department 1 April 2018 31 March 2024 483
SR (LK) BRAR Highways Department Term Contract RBE 2 )\# e 12
(Management and Maintenance of mA—-A ZA=t+-H
Roads in Kowloon East excluding
Expressways and High Speed Roads
2018-2024)
BHETS: - 05/HY/2017
BEETHA O (ERER (RRAK
RERRBRIN) CERREE
2018-2024)
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited  Contract No. YL/2017/01 Civil Engineering and 25 July 2018 31 March 2023 409
A (IR BRAT Site Formation and Infrastructure Works Development “E-N\F “E-zF
for Development at Kam Tin South, Department tAZTEH ZA=1-H
Yuen Long — Advance Works IRTEAREE
BHEE - YL2017/01
TR AR R R 2T T EMERR
Ik - AR
—CEC_FR|IFTBREEREEBRAF 41
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Anticipated
Contract Contract Completion
Commencement Date Updated as at Original
Entity Project Client Date 31December2022  Contract Sum
RZBzZF
TZR=Z+-H2
BHAHRIAS
B o RF ANERAH RHER RiIEHEE
(Milion HKS)
(BEAT)
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. TC G973 Architectural Services 3 February 2019 2 August 2022 531
Limited Term Contract for the Design and Department E-nE ZCE
MRAEEERAH Construction of Minor Works to EEE —R=H NAZH
Government and Subvented
Properties for which the Architectural
Services Department is Responsible
Contract Area: New Territories and
Outlying Island (North)
AHES - TCGIT3
ﬁ@i%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ&éﬁ kiR
N TR TR RN E B
af
aNESY - FRRES ()
Bestwise — SFK Contract No. DE/2018/17 Drainage Services 9 July 2019 8 September 2022 187
Joint Venture Enhancement of Deodourisation System Department —2NE S
BE - EAkE at Stonecutters Island Sewage EBE tANR NANR
Treatment Works
— SFK49%
— Bestwise 51%
AR, - DEL018/17
BESMMTKEERNRK RS
— HRE49%
- BE51%
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. 3403 Airport Authority 12 August 2019 29 November 2024 441
Limited New Integrated Airport Centres Hong Kong —E-nE —ZomE
NRAEEBRAR — Buiding and Civil Works BEEER NA+ZA T-AZthA

ARESE « 3403
ﬁLFA%%¢®
- BERIATE
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Anticipated
Contract Contract Completion
Commencement Date Updated as at Original
Entity Project Client Date 31December2022  Contract Sum
R-B-—F
tZA=t-H2
BHAHRIAS
B o BF ANERAH RHER FHEY kA
(Milion HK$)
(B8R
Bestwise Envirotech Limited  Contract No. 20199003 Hong Kong Housing 1 October 2019 30 September 2022 100
BREREHABR AT Water Supply and Fire Services Term Authority “E-nE e Sy
Maintenance Contract (KC Region) EEEEZEE +A—H NA=TH
2019/2020-2022/2023 for Hong
Kong Housing Authority Estates,
Areas and Buildings
A4 - 20199003
2019/200F E £ 2022/2023 FE &%
FEZEEETED HARET
KRR REE HRESHN (2
AE)
Bestwise Envirotech Limited ~ Contract No. DE/2018/04 Drainage Services 2 December 2019 14 May 2024 558
BRRRMEERAH Shek Wu Hui Effluent Polishing Plant Department —ZT-hE —ZomE
— Main Works Stage 1 — E&M EBE +ZAZH AATEA
Works for Sewage Treatment
Facilities
A H#)&%: - DE/2018/04
BB — TRTIRE-HER
— SKEERENEETR
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. 20180557 Hong Kong Housing 24 February 2020 4 April 2023 1,911
Limited Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats Authority —2°FF —E-=F
MRALEARA DevelopmentatMaOnShanRoad ~ EEEEZE@ ZRZ+EA MmAMmA

and Public Housing Development at
Hang Tai Road, Ma On Shan Area
86B Phase 1
AR - 20180567
SRLKEYLERERRTERGE
I eBREZEE - HLERE
BR:BIMBETR

— =

_7__¢¥& |%ﬁzﬂa/
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Anticipated
Contract Contract Completion
Commencement Date Updated as at Original
Entity Project Client Date 31December2022  Contract Sum
R=Z==fF
tZA=t-H2
BHENTIAN
B o RF ANERAH RHER RiIEHEE
(Milion HKS)
(BEAT)
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. 20200134 Hong Kong Housing 1 March 2021 5 February 2025 1,497
Limited Non-Public Housing Facilies at Authority “T--F “Z°RE
MEBEEARAR Diamond Hil CDA — Transport EAREZRE =A-H —ATA
Infrastructure Works, Water Feature
Park and Landscaped Walk
BHES : 20200134
BRGAEREFNERERIE
- BHARZETRE EKREN
YERAKE
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. TC J912 Architectural Services 1 April 2021 31 March 2025 830
Limited Term Contract for the Alternations, Department “B--F “B-RE
MEAEEERAH Additions, Maintenance and Repair of ~ B£E MA—H =A=t-H

Buildings and Lands and Other
Properties for which the Architectural
Services Department (Property
Services Branch) is Responsible
Designated Contract Area: Hong Kong
Island Western, Southern and Lantau
Island
AH&ER 704912
REEZ(MEEKR)RAMEEY
THREMMEETHR MR &
EREBIRNESAN
AHEER - BBR  BEERAEL

44 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE g MkEARSE

Anticipated
Contract Contract Completion
Commencement Date Updated as at Original
Entity Project Client Date 31December2022  Contract Sum
R-B-—F
tZA=t-H2
BHAHRIAS
B o BF ANERAH RHER FHEY kA
(Milion HK$)
(B8R
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. TC J951 Architectural Services 1 April 2021 31 August 2025 784
Limited Term Contract for the Alternations, Department —E--F “E-RE
MRAEEERAT Additions, Maintenance and Repair of ~ &2 mA—H NA=1-H
Buildings and Repair of Buildings and
Lands and Other Properties for which
the Architectural Services Department
(Property Services Branch) is
Responsible
Designated Contract Area: Tuen Mun
and Yuen Long
A HEF - TCJ951
REBEE (MESKR)RENREYN
T REMWFETHR R - &
EREBIENTHED
ahEER  BPRTH
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited ~ Contract No. SS K516 Architectural Services 1 November 2021 1 February 2024 198
HEB (LA BRAT Construction of Open Space at Hung Department —Fo-F —EoNE
Hom Waterfront jeta +—A—H —R-H
EHES  SSKo16
AWSEREAEETR
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. 20210258 Hong Kong Housing 28 March 2022 26 January 2026 2,624
Limited Construction of Public Housing Authority . S e Sy
MEAEEARAT Developments at Kai Tak Sites 2B5 ~ EBEEZE@ ZRA=TNH —RZt/H

and 2B6

AHES 120210258

B BS A B BN ERELE
SEIRETR

— = —

=
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Anticipated
Contract Contract Completion
Commencement Date Updated as at Original
Entity Project Client Date 31December2022  Contract Sum
RZBzZF
TZR=Z+-H2
BHAHRIAS
B o RF ANERAH RHER RiIEHEE
(Milion HK$)
(EEER)
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. 20219036 Hong Kong Housing 1 April 2022 31 March 2025 478
Limited Term Contract for the Maintenance, Authority e Sl “Z°RE
HEAREERAT Improvement and Vacant Flat EEEEZEE mA—H ZA=1-H
Refurbishment for Tuen Mun and
Yuen Long (1) 2022/2025
AR : 20219036
TR CEECECREEAMRTH
RE  HERZEELENIEN
AREHAHN(-)
Note: The anticipated completion date is determined with reference to the latest Mk : RZZ-Z—F+-A=+—H ARBAEXKABEHIL2ER

works programme together with our estimation based on experience as at 31
December 2022.

As indicated in the table above, data and information from 15
projects were included in the preparation of this report. Data
collection and analysis were conducted based on relevant
guidelines or standards, to exemplify, ISO 14064 for greenhouse
gas emissions. All numerical data is presented as absolute figures,
and all financial data is reported in Hong Kong dollars unless
otherwise specified. Employees of contractors and subcontractors
to whom we have no direct responsibility are not generally included
as part of our workforce unless otherwise specified.

To assist readers to browse through this report and to demonstrate
transparency and compliance, a detailed ESG content index
following the framework of ESG Reporting Guide was included at
the back of this report section.

This ESG report section has been approved by the senior
management of the Group. We would like to express our sincere
appreciation to all those who contributed to our corporate
sustainability performance and to the preparation of this report.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022
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CHAPTER 2 SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
MANAGEMENT

Along with delivering quality construction works to our clients, SFK
remains unwavering in lessening environmental impacts and contributing
to the sustainable development of our society. SFK assimilates such a
mindset of corporate social responsibility into the decisions-making
process at all levels of our business operation, and has established a
comprehensive Corporate Social Responsibility Policy to explicate our
commitments:

We are committed to:

—  considering the impacts on stakeholders, society, economy during
the environmental decision-making process;

—  fully complying with the laws of the country/region where we
operate or where we have signed agreements and respecting
relevant international acts;

— dedicating ourselves to maintain the highest business operation
standards with fair competition and requesting all staff and
business partners to comply with the same;

— following internationally recognised standards, encouraging
compatible environment, respecting and maintaining human rights
and labour rights;

—  taking safety and health as our first priority, and providing a safe
and healthy environment to ensure the safety and health of all staff
and affected parties (including the public) at all times of work;

— emphasising environmental protection, taking prevention, reduction
and control of environmental pollution as a prerequisite of our daily
operations;

—  reviewing our Corporate Social Responsibility Policy regularly to
make continuous improvements, particularly when there are
changes to the applicable ordinances and other requirements; and

— informing all employees of our Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy, regardless as to whether they are directly employed,
contracted or representing us in other means, and allowing the
public to access to this Policy.

=
=
=
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CHAPTER 3 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ANALYSIS

The Group is aware that our stakeholders play an important role in the
ESG issues and we need to understand and keep up to date what ESG
issues are valued the most by them. Stakeholder engagement is a key
element of SFK’s social responsibility management. We engage our
stakeholders in various channels to facilitate our communication with
them. Regular meetings are held with clients and subcontractors to share
views on the most concerned issues including resource, quality,
environmental, occupational health and safety management. In addition,
feedbacks from our engagement with employees are also taken into
consideration in our direction of human resource policies and practices.

In order to identify which ESG issues as stipulated in the ESG Reporting
Guide are considered to be the key concerns of our stakeholders, SFK
conducted an online stakeholder engagement survey in July 2022.
External stakeholders consisting of clients, suppliers, contractors, service
providers, as well as internal stakeholders including SFK’s senior
management, management staff and general employees were invited to
participate in the survey and to rank the ESG aspects on the level of
importance they consider relevant to SFK or to the stakeholder groups
they are representing.

The importance of each specified aspect is then evaluated by compiling
the levels of importance given by all the participants. A materiality matrix
is prepared to illustrate the result by placing each aspect with regard to
its importance level to the management of SFK and to the other
stakeholders consisting of general staff and external stakeholders.
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SFK's Management $iig#a)EHE

Unimportant Not So Important

Somewhat Important

Very Important Extremely Important
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Legend: AR
Aspect Em
Al Emissions Al BER
A2 Use of Resources A2 HRER
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources A3 RIERRAER
A4 Climate Resilience A4 FIRMEEE S
B1 Employment B1 &%
B2  Health and Safety B2 REEHEZE
B3  Development and Training B3  BHEKEI
B4  Labour Standards B4 ST AR
B5  Supply Chain Management Bs  {HEEERE
B6  Product Responsibility B6 EmAIT
B7  Anti-corruption B7 REE
B8  Community Investment B8 @K

The aspects located in the top-right quarter of the material matrix are
considered by both the management of the Group and the other
stakeholders as material.

Based on the stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment, it is
noted that “Aspect B2 — Health and Safety” is considered as the most
material aspect, followed by “Aspect B7 — Anti-corruption”, “B6 —
Product Responsibility”, “B4 — Labour Standards” and “B1 —
Employment”.

In general, all twelve ESG aspects in our survey are found to be rated as
either ‘very important’ or ‘extremely important” by both the Group and
the external stakeholders. Therefore, all ESG aspects are considered to
be material and disclosed in the ESG report.

For more information about these material aspects, please refer to “The
Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Content Index Table” in the
Appendix to this report.
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CHAPTER 4 OVERVIEW OF ESG PERFORMANCE FHNE BE HEFRELIXRHAHE

The following management approaches or initiatives, in line with the A TEBF AR A RERNEFRTHEEETHET
direction of social responsibility set forth by the Group, were implemented —% ' ER - - —FEE -

in 2022.

Table 4.1 * 441

Policy or Legal

Subject Areas Aspects Compliance  Highlights
Zips fEmE BERRER BE
Environment Emissions v Project Environmental Policy related to the
RIR PE minimisation of various emissions and
discharge, as well as proper waste
management
BRRBEBRPERERD ZBERYARE
EREDER
Use of Resources v Implementation of ISO 14001 Environmental
BEREHA Management Systems and 1SO 50001

Energy Management Systems
F#51S0 14001 IRIF B HLEE R 2 1SO 50001 8L

ﬁ EE F!E/z%\
The Environment and v Active participation in BEAM Plus projects
Natural Resources EiR2 AR IRETIE B

RIRENRRAEIR
Adoption of Sustainable Deposits to facilitate
banking system’s support to United
Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals
(SDG)
RAABEFFAMEERITRERE B S B A%
EZ R B 1R (SDG) K3 HF
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Subject Areas
2Dz

Aspects
=il

Policy or Legal
Compliance
BERRER

Highlights
BE

Social — Employment and
Labour Practices
HEg - ERREIER

Employment

(A

Health and Safety

(I e

Development and Training
BT

Labour Standards
4 TR

v

=
=
=

Provision of a fair and sound work
environment, as well as a family-friendly
employment policy

REATFR2NITERBEURERERENE
R

Implementation of ISO 45001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management Systems
EHEISO 45001 BEREER L2 EER A

Safety and Health Policy Statement with a
guaranteed safety budget of not less than
0.25% of the contract sum for each project

ZERERBEER  WRBZZ2BAENER
BEER AKSFEN0.25%

Establishment of a comprehensive staff
development programme
FZEEHE TERE

Provision of training and examination
allowance, as well as examination leave

RHBIIREFHZMARESRR
Compliance with the Employment Ordinance

(Cap. 57) of Hong Kong
BFEEENE 57 ERBIEDD

ER(|FTEBREEREEETR QA 51
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Policy or Legal

Subject Areas Aspects Compliance  Highlights

Frif gk =g BESHER BE

Social — Operating Supply Chain Management v Performance and compliance assessment of
Practices HpEEEE suppliers and sub-contractors

HE — 2EER

Product Responsibility v
EmEE

Anti-corruption v
RERE

Social — Community Community Investment v
HEg — HERIEE
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HER LD BRRER LA RFHE

Requirements on suppliers to support
environmental-benign initiatives
BRARER R RBRRENRE

Implementation of ISO 9001 Quiality
Management Systems
EHISO 9001 EEE BB R

Establishment of procedures to respect
intellectual property rights and privacy
[ BBHBEERELEF

Adoption of Building Information Modelling
(BIM) technology
RS BEE (BIM) B 1ir

Establishment of Code of Business Conduct
HiIE r RSP =T Al

Operation of anonymous whistle-blowing
channels
o E B EREERE

Provision of anti-corruption training
RERERF

Participation in volunteer services and
collaboration with not-for-profit
organizations
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CHAPTER 5 ENVIRONMENT FHE BRIE
5.1 Emission Control and Waste Management 51 HFMEHRENER

SFK operates mainly in the construction industry where
environmental impacts always receive a lot of attention. On this
ground, integrating environmental considerations into our operation
is of paramount importance. Remaining steadfast to cope with all
the challenges in protecting the environment, the Group is
committed to the following guiding principles to mitigate
environmental impacts arising from emission of air pollutants &
greenhouse gases, noise emanation, wastewater discharge into
water bodies and land, and disposal of non-hazardous and
hazardous waste:

5.1.1 Environmental Policy

SFK includes the five guiding principles below in its
Environmental Policy:

(1) Foresighted Management and Resources Planning

° Ensure that environmental protection is given
the highest practicable priority in all aspects of
the works when discharging the contractual
obligations.

o Provide sufficient resources for the implementation
of pollution abatement, waste management and
ecological mitigation.

(2)  Rigorous Regulatory Compliance

o Comply with the relevant environmental legislation
and contractual environmental requirements.

° Obtain and renew the necessary environment-
related licences, permits and registrations for our
works and services.

(8)  Proactive Communication and Education

° Communicate the environmental policy to all
levels of persons involved in the works including
our employees and subcontractors.

o Educate and train all persons involved in the
works to meet the legal, contractual and other
environmental requirements.

HRFEAETBRFRER  MEEXRHRE
VHE-EBXET - F BREZERER
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(4)  Diligent Enforcement

° Promote and implement environmental management
including waste management and greenhouse
gas emission control to mitigate environmental
impacts.

° Prevent environmental pollution, reduce environmental
nuisances and minimise waste especially construction
and demolition waste.

(5)  Continuous Monitoring and Improvement

° Review the environmental policy and environmental
objectives periodically for continuous improvement
in response to changes in the management
procedures, nature of the works and environmental
legislation.

5.1.2 Relevant Environmental Legislation

SFK strictly observed the relevant environmental legislation to
ensure the environmental impacts arising from its operation
were managed and mitigated in a responsible manner. The
relevant legislation mainly includes:

° Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311);

o Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400);

° Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358);

° Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354);

° Dumping at Sea Ordinance (Cap. 466);

° Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap.
499).

In the reporting period, the Group complied with the relevant
laws and regulations governing emission of air pollutants &
greenhouse gases, noise emanation, wastewater discharge
into water bodies and land, and disposal of non-hazardous
and hazardous waste in all material aspect.
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5.1.3 Air Pollutant Emission

The emission of nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur oxides (SO,)
and particulate matters in 2022 significantly decreased
compared with the average of the previous three years (i.e.
2019, 2020 & 2021) because SFK reduced the use of private
cars in 2022 (Table 5.1). The intensities of NOy, SO4 and
particulate matters in 2022 decreased by 59.5%, 39.4% and
59.6% respectively compared with the average intensity of
the previous three years.

5.1.3 ZRSEWHEKR

BRI =F (=F—N - ZEFTN=_F

—F)MFHEREL ZTZZFWNEA
LR (NO,) + EALHR (SO KA F B BERUA
B RERHEBLE T8
DEAFLRE(KRS) - EHAT=ZFHFY
BRERAL —E-_FMELanE -
SmEBEMNTEED RS
59.5% * 39.4% F159.6% °

Table 5.1 Annual Emission Data from Vehicles REAERNSFHBEE
Intensity change % 2022 Average of previous 3 years
Pollutants BRY BEZ% St -3 FIRESSAE
Annual Intensity Annual Intensity
+Increase 31N amount (g/million amount (g/million
- Decrease H4 (9) HK$) @ HKS)
FEYE (=/ FEHE (%/
(%) BE#ERT) (%) BEAT)
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) (A (NO) 595 194,246 64.37 534,988 158.76
Sulphur oxides (SOy) A1LHi(S0,) -39.4 2,061 0.68 3,771 1.13
Particulate matters FLF -59.6 15,553 5.15 42,506 12.76
Notes: B3
1) The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance on M FTE T E R BB A P M VIR S B SR AR X

Environmental KPls issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

2) Intensity = Annual amount (g)/Project turnover payment (million HK$).

Intensity of year 2022-Average

@) Intensity change % = intensity of previous 3 years x 100%

Average intensity of previous 3 years

A

FEIRREIES] -

@ BE=FEHE(R) /THELXEIR(EE

B)
SR CEMBE-A
®  mEB(L% - ﬂ“m%
M TRE
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5.1.4 Greenhouse Gas Emission

The intensity of scope 1 direct emission in 2022 decreased
by 25.6% compared with the average intensity of the previous
three years because SFK made less use of powered
mechanical equipment for carrying out construction works
(Table 5.2). The powered mechanical equipment consumed
diesel and emitted CO, as scope 1 direct emission. The
intensity of scope 2 energy indirect emission in 2022

5.1.4 BEREHEN

HE=FMFHERERL  —2 ==

K E 1 YR RE RS 25.6% -
AHNEESERERIEERIBETREET
12 (5£5.2) - BENR BB MW HER=
SULHBIERABBE 1 EES R BT =F
HFHEERL - SE 288 REEBER
HZEEMD206%  FEHR-_T -

decreased by 29.6% compared with the average intensity of FEARIVENETERTRE -
the previous three years mainly because less electricity was
used to carry out construction works in 2022.
Table 5.2 Total Greenhouse Gas Emission RE2BRERBHREE
Intensity
change % 2022 Average of previous 3 years
Emission scope HREE BES{% —E-CF GIRESS LN
Annual Intensity Annual Intensity
+ Increase 10 amount (tCO,-eq/ amount (tCO-eq/
- Decrease % (tCO,-eq) million HK$) (tCOreq)  milion HK$)
B wE
EEHE (ZHith EEHE  (Z&(CH
(=& EE (Z&fk EEM
(EEBM) EEBT) WEEE) /EERED)
Scope 1 direct emission HENEREN 256 5,382 1.78 8,466 2.40
Scope 2 energy indirect HE2 s RHEHN 296
emission 1,074 0.36 1,723 0.51
Total st -26.3 6,456 2.14 10,190 2.90
Notes: Bt

(1) The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, 2006
IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories, IPCC Fifth
Assessment Report, latest grid emission factors published by utilities

companies.

2 tCOq-eq denotes unit tonne for comparing the radiative forcing of a
greenhouse gas to CO..

) Intensity = Annual amount (tCO2-eq)/Project turnover payment (million

HKS).

(4) Intensity change %

Intensity of year 2022-Average
- intensity of previous 3 years

x 100%

Average intensity of previous 3 years
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5.1.5 Emission Reduction Targets And Mitigation Measures

A 1% reduction in intensity in the reporting year compared
with the average density of the previous three years was set
as the emission reduction targets for nitrogen oxides (NO,),
sulphur oxides (SO,), particulate matters and greenhouse
gases. The NO,, SO, particulate matters, scope 1 direct
emission and scope 2 energy indirect emission achieved the
reduction targets in 2022 because the intensities decreased
by 59.5%, 39.4%, 59.6%, 25.6% and 29.6% respectively.
The air quality parameter, the dust level (1-hour TSP), was
also monitored under the Environmental Monitoring & Audit
Programme to ensure it did not exceed the action and limit
levels. On the other hand, at the Group level, SFK took the
greenhouse gas emission level in recent years as an emission
baseline so that the emission level may be reduced gradually
in the long run. SFK implemented the following mitigation
measures to achieve the targets for reduction of air pollutant
& greenhouse gas emission:

(1)  Keep dusty areas wet by water spraying or cover them
with tarpaulin sheets, e.g. exposed areas and haul

roads;

(2)  Keep dusty stockpiled material wet by water spraying
or cover it with tarpaulin sheets or similar fabric;

(8) Properly wash vehicles manually or with a vehicle
washing facility before leaving the site;

(4)  Keep the public road/area around the site entrance free
of earth, mud, debris and dusty material;

(5)  Limit vehicle speed to 8 km/h or below on site;

(6) Spray water while loading and unloading dusty material;

(7)  Provide dust enclosures/dust screens for or water the
area where the dust-generating activities take place,
e.g. demolition, grouting, breaking, drilling, cutting and
polishing;

(8) Cover the dusty load on the vehicle with mechanical
covers or tarpaulin sheets;

=
=
=

FHRIFTERAEAEREEERAA

5.1.5 BB B R EREE

BEFEMNRERN=-FFHARERD
1% 1 5 E BELRNO,) ~ ELFI (SO,
IR F MR EREHNBEEEE - £
To-F ffk@ - &k RTF &
B EEERF S E 2 gL R e E BEUER
BHEEER  ARZEED R 59.5%
39.4% * 59.6%  25.6% . 29.6% ° Z& &,
BEE28 - HEKEQNERREZNT)
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(99 Cover entirely every stock of more than 20 bags of
cement or dry pulverized fuel ash by impervious
sheeting or place them in an area sheltered on the top
and the three sides;

(10) Prohibit using a compressed air jet for clearing dust
from any object;

(11) Use non-road mobile machinery with an approval label/
exemption label;

(12) Power off the idling vehicle/powered mechanical
equipment (PME);

(13) Maintain PME in good condition to prevent dark smoke
emission;

(14) Use manual or solar equipment to reduce emissions
from vehicles and PME;

(15) Use ultra-low-sulphur diesel or B5 diesel as a fuel of
PME to reduce SO, emission;

(16) Use FSC-certified timber for temporary works to reduce
CO, emission;

(17) Use metal as an alternative to hardwood for site
hoardings, formworks and scaffoldings to reduce CO,
emission.

The Group implemented various best practices in the
construction industry to minimise air pollutant emission at
source. These practices included utilising ultra-low-sulphur
diesel in our non-road mobile machinery and other powered
mechanical equipment and ensuring all non-road mobile
machinery possessed approval labels or exemption labels. To
further sustainable development, B5 diesel was also utilised
in applicable cases. Furthermore, regular laboratory tests
were also conducted to ensure the fuel used complied with
the contractual requirements. These measures led to lower
emission of air pollutants and greenhouse gases.

Good day-to-day operation practices were also implemented
by our site staff, such as minimising fugitive dust emission by
covering exposed works areas with tarpaulin sheets,
suppressing fugitive dust emitted by moving vehicles and
machinery with a sensor-equipped water sprinkler system on
the construction sites. These measures minimised fugitive
dust on construction sites and in their vicinity.
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5.1.6 Waste Management

Air pollutant emission is only one of the significant
environmental aspects. Responsible waste management is
another significant environmental aspect. The Group made
use of the waste quantities in recent years as a baseline so
that the quantity of waste generated may be reduced
progressively. Many good practices were therefore put in
place to responsibly manage the generation and disposal of
waste. With a goal to keep the waste to the lowest feasible
level, the Group had clear directives in the Project
Environmental Policy to minimize construction and demolition
waste. To exemplify, environmentally-friendly construction
methods were adopted by project teams to carefully select
construction materials. The construction sites also adopted
reusable and modular site offices and fences that could be
used on different construction sites. These measures led to
disposal of less waste, and reuse & recycling of more
construction & demolition material.

The intensity of non-hazardous waste in 2022 decreased by
51.0% compared with the average intensity of the previous
three years because less inert waste and non-inert waste were
produced on the sites of SFK in 2022 (Table 5.3). The intensity
of hazardous waste in 2022 decreased by 74.2% compared
with the average intensity of the previous three years because
less spent lubrication oil (waste engine oil) and spent batteries
were generated in 2022.

5.1.6 BEYEE

ZRSFAMHERER AT —HEEKRR
BRZ BEANEDEEAS —HE
RRBEER - ARBNFFNAENRE
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MEE - Bt CEEZBERFER
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REREW ZEFHEERSBEVRE -
IWIRINE A R ERIFEDE -

HE=FNFHEREMRL  —Z2 ==
MEEZEEYERERIE51.0% RERAXE
T CFHEAMBRELARLONEG
BEYIASETE M EEY) (R 5.3) ° BT = F &
FEmEMRL —E- FNAZEEY
BRERLT42% AAEE-_ZT-_—_FE
ERDHEEEE R (EEEKE) RES
A o

Table 5.3 Total Waste Produced REIBYBRELR
Intensity
change % 2022 Average of previous 3 years
Waste Category BYER BEZ{% Sk -3 FIRESD 2L
Annual Intensity Annual Intensity
+ Increase &0 amount (tonne/ amount (tonne/
- Decrease JH % (tonnes)  million HK$) (tonnes)  million HK$)
BE el
FEHE (W, FEHE (W/
(1) BEBT) (mg) BEATL)
Non-hazardous waste EZEN -51.0  179,829.68 59.59  383,572.78 121.7107
Hazardous waste BEED 742 1.03 0.0003 5.00 0.0013
Note: MsE

(1)

Intensity = Annual amount (tonne) / Project turnover payment (million
HK$).

Intensity of year 2022-Average

intensity of previous 3 years

Intensity change % = x 100%

Average intensity of previous 3 years

=
=
=

BE=-FEHE(M) THEEXRNR(E
BT °

ZECCEMRE-AS

@  mES(% - FROTHEE  x100%
H3EHTHTE
FHh | FTREEZREEEFRA A 59



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE g MhERRE

60

5.1.7 Waste Reduction Targets and Mitigation Measures

A 1% reduction in intensity in the reporting year compared
with the average density of the previous three years was set
as the waste reduction targets for the non-hazardous waste
& hazardous waste. The non-hazardous waste and
hazardous waste achieved the reduction targets in 2022
because the intensities decreased by 51.0% and 74.2%
respectively.

The Group strived to explore opportunities to enable
inevitable waste to be subsequently utilised as a resource.
Recyclable waste was carefully segregated from general
waste, for example, scrap metal and waste paper were
collected both in the head office and on construction sites for
recycling. The non-recyclable waste was then handled and
disposed of in a responsible and lawful manner. Special care
was taken when handling chemical waste and other
hazardous wastes. These wastes were properly stored in
designated areas to minimise chances of spillage, and were
collected by licensed chemical waste collectors for disposal
and treatment in the licensed treatment facilities.
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SFK implemented the following mitigation measures to handle
the non-hazardous and hazardous waste as well as to
achieve the waste reduction targets of non-hazardous and
hazardous waste:

Non-hazardous Waste

1

Segregate different categories of construction &
demolition wastes on site and store them in different
containers;

Reuse excavated soil for backfilling on site and off site;
Transform excavated rock into aggregates and reuse
them on site;

Reuse and recycle construction & demolition wastes
where possible;

Deliver waste paper and metal waste to recycling
companies;

Replace timber with metal for site hoardings, formworks
and scaffoldings;

Use standard formwork or pre-fabrication as far as
practicable in order to minimize waste;

Hazardous Waste

(S)

©

(10)

Reuse decontaminated soil for backfiling on site and off
site;

Properly store chemicals and chemical waste in a
designated container/bunded storage area to minimise
generation of hazardous waste on site;

Place the generator or other oily powered mechanical
equipment in a drip tray to reduce soil contamination on
site;

Use solar-powered products (e.g. solar lights) to reduce
spent batteries;

Employ a licensed chemical waste collector to collect
and dispose of chemical waste.
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5.2 Effective Use of Resources

62

In the long run, decoupling business development from resource
depletion is crucial for the lasting good of humans. SFK’s resources
conservation strategy encompasses every aspects of resources
consumption, including energy, water and raw materials. The
Group operates under the environmental management system and
the energy management system that are certified in compliance
with the ISO 14001 and ISO 50001 standards respectively.

5.2.1 Effective Use of Energy

The intensity of electricity consumption in 2022 decreased by
12.3% compared with the average intensity of the previous
three years because less electricity was consumed to carry
out construction works in 2022 (Table 5.4). The intensity of
liquid fuel consumption in 2022 decreased by 25.6%
compared with the average intensity of the previous three
years because SFK made less use of powered mechanical
equipment for carrying out construction works in 2022 and
the powered mechanical equipment consumed diesel.

Table 5.4 Energy Consumption in Different Categories
Intensity
change %

BER%

+ Increase 10

5.2

ERER

REMET  BEBEREGEREBHBOE LA
BOBANDEREE - MTRENERIAK
B 3 2 BE R 7}<&J?7f7fﬂﬂﬁﬁé’\]§/ UBFE ©
AEBERREEEANEREEBRTE
& %8 F 9 B 51S0 14001 F1SO 50001

_7]*
s TE °

5.21 ZR8ER

HE=FMFHEREMRL  —F ==
MNEERERV123% AA-ZT -
FHBRRDENETEETE(Rb54) -
B =FMFHEmEMRL T 22F
HREMRESEREZ E R 25.6%  BHA
T CFFRAFERAROEE R EE
TTIREE TR - MEEN A HFELSH -

* 5.4 TEIFRBIRETRHFE

2022 Average of previous 3 years
St -3 FIRESS2E

Annual Intensity Annual Intensity

amount (1000 kWh/ amount (1000 kWh/

Energy Category BeRER - Decrease 4 (1000 kWh) million HK$) (1000 kWh)  million HK$)
EE B
EEYE  (kREE/ FEEE (KRR
(KRE) BEBT) (JEEE) BEATL)
Electricity EW))| -12.3 2,754.32 0.91 3,516.40 1.04
Liquid fuel (e.g. Petrol REBIREL (B0 256
and Diesel) ) 20,150.53 6.68 31,702.78 8.98
Total et -24.3 22,904.85 7.59 35,220.29 10.02
Note: FH&E -
1) Intensity = Annual amount (1000 kWh) / Project turnover payment (million ©! TE-FEHECKRE) /BELEBAR
HKS). (B8HBT) -
Intensity of year 2022-Average T FMEE-AIS
@  Intensity change % = intensity of previous 3 years x 100% © HEEL% = FOFHEE x100%

Average intensity of previous 3 years
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5.2.2 Energy Efficiency Targets and Energy Conservation 522 BERMEEEREREEE

Measures

A 1% reduction in intensity in the reporting year compared
with the average density of the previous three years was set
as the energy efficiency targets for electricity consumption

REFEMNZRERNZFFLHBRERD
1% W H1 E AR TR EREDEFENEER
WEAE T —F BEMKRE

and liquid fuel consumption. The electricity consumption and MEBREDERAEEE BARE
liquid fuel consumption achieved the energy efficiency targets DR A 12.3% K 25.6%

in 2022 because the intensities decreased by 12.3% and

25.6% respectively.

The energy consumption in recent years served as an energy MERNERBFEERAERB B NG

efficiency reference for the Group to curb the consumption
level below that level. SFK encouraged construction sites to

IRBFEKFIERIEA BKF AT B EIR
MemBE o FiRBHEREETHRAT

utilise renewable energy equipment, for example, solar water BAERREE  fln - KIFaEEKER
heaters, solar fans and solar barricade warning lights. To KGR B R A GREEELRE - AR
reduce the consumption of electricity, SFK also installed ’J\;ﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁ - FeB M EEeEEE T

temporary lightings coupled with timers or motion sensors on
the sites of building projects. On the construction sites, the
Group also had directives in place to prioritise the use of
electrical appliances with Grade 1 energy efficiency labels

HIERIR AR BA | 25 E I S ok B AR R JE B8

E%Ek@ﬁbﬁxﬁlm ’ $%E<.B§\i¥7§“1
HMAEHIERETRABEERAREE 1 REE
BAREENESR - TRNER - ¥R

with an aim to maximise energy efficiency. In the head office, BIMVBIBEAREE M RERIES| MK E TR
SFK also encouraged energy conservation practices in FERRMGEBENIERS BB EME
accordance with the Group’s energy guidelines and the BEFEE o
practices recommended by the Energy Efficiency Office of the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department.
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5.2.3 Effective Use of Water

The intensity of water consumption in 2022 decreased by
34.3% compared with the average intensity of the previous
three years because in 2022 SFK carried out less
construction works which needed much water and reused
the treated wastewater for dust suppression (Table 5.5).

Table 5.5 Total Water Consumption

5.2.3 B AKX

HE=FMFHERERL  —2 ==

WEKZER D 34.3% - HAAHEBE
TE I CFRIVETRERAKNEET
BRNEACEEREKIEFIER(KS5) o

K55 FAKE
2022 Average of previous 3 years
—BCoCE CIRES DAL
Intensity Annual Intensity
(m*/million amount (m3/million
HK$) (m?d) HKS)

(IHK/ FEHE  (UARS
BRETL) (IHK) BEBAT)

Intensity

change %

BEZ2{%

+ Increase #11

Parameter 2% - Decrease H 4

Water consumption BkE -34.3

Note:

(1) Intensity = Annual amount (m? / Project turnover payment (million HKS).

Intensity of year 2022-Average

@ Intensity change % = intensity of previous 3 years x 100%

Average intensity of previous 3 years
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5.2.4 Water Efficiency Targets and Water Conservation

Measures

A 1% reduction in intensity in the reporting year compared
with the average density of the previous three years was set
as the water efficiency target. The water consumption
achieved the water efficiency target in 2022 because the
intensity decreased by 34.3%.

Besides energy conservation, in response to the concern of
the availability of freshwater influenced by climate change,
SFK also focused on reducing its water footprint. The water
consumption in recent years was taken as the water
efficiency baseline for SFK to limit consumption level below
that level. To exemplify, efficient sprinkler nozzles were utilised
in the sprinkler system to minimise water consumption while
suppressing fugitive dust emission. The Group also
encouraged recollection, reuse and recycling of greywater on
construction sites to minimise freshwater consumption. For
instance, muddy water generated from bored piling works
and vehicle washing activities was reused to wet dusty
exposed site areas after being treated through sedimentation
and flocculation in the wastewater treatment system.

A sustainable future could not be attained on our own, we
also strived to influence our stakeholders to engage in
resources conservation practices. When commissioned to
conduct plumbing works, we recommended our clients to
install water-efficient facilities and appliances registered under
the Water Efficiency Labelling Scheme (WELS). Such water-
efficient practices were also in line with the requirements
stipulated in Building Environmental Assessment Method
(BEAM) Plus certification. These measures led to a reduction
in water consumption in both the construction phase and the
operation phase, and the Group faced no difficulty in sourcing
water that was fit for the construction process.

5.2.4 FXKMEREZEREIKERE

BREFENBERAIZFFHEERD
1% WHIEARAKKNEER 2T ==
FoRKERRAKSIEBEE RARE
A 34.3% °

BREFAIBEIRIN - BB H RAR B L EIAK
HENET  FRABTEERDEKE
B o #ra B AT F R FEK E AR IR
KM EAR - BB EEFES
BAZKSELATT o WOBEZK Z 848 A &R 7K K
8B BERADRK - R EN -
AEETSEEW  ERREREAE
ST IOK  BEREXACEFE )
W TEIRERBAERMELRNRKE
BEKEERGOIIUBRNEREE 2
BEANHE T HEEKAR -

ZERUFERROKRE  KERME
SRTHH - #R MBI RSB 7
FEEER BEREITRKEILER
BB E P 2 RRB KA AR
(WELS) NaEft Bk R MK E - ILEn
KERTNARERIRBERE - %F
EERETEIHREEHANAKE
FEBESHESHETRRENAKEL
EBEIRE
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5.3 The Environment and Natural Resources
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In a world that increasingly emphasises ESG issues, it is our moral
obligation to see beyond the economic aspect and to take a
preventive approach to mitigate adverse impacts on the natural
environment. SFK’s environmental management system and energy
management system were reviewed and audited by an external
third-party to ensure that our management systems complied with
the requirements of international standards and addressed material
concerns in our operations that impacted the environment and
natural resources.

Our Project Environmental Policy encompasses considerations in
pollution abatement, waste management, resources conservation
and ecological mitigation. Each project site complied with the
requirements stipulated in environment-related permits/licences
and manuals, and followed the established environmental
management plan. Procedures were stipulated to guide project
staff and subcontractors to implement environmental management
measures. Additionally, the Group’s Energy Policy and Purchase
Policy demonstrate the Group’s commitment to energy
conservation and the support to the implementation of energy
efficient technologies. The Group also actively contributed to the
sustainable development of Hong Kong'’s building environment by
applying local and international standards to construction sites.
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5.4 Climate Change

Global climate change is an important environmental issue of
worldwide concern. In order to minimize the impact on global
warming, SFK provided resources and implemented measures to
protect natural resources and achieve the goal of sustainability.

5.4.1 Impacts of Climate Change

SFK operated primarily in Hong Kong. Among all the
phenomena of climate change affecting Hong Kong,
rainstorms, floods, heatwaves, high temperature and severe
typhoons had adverse impacts on SFK’s operation practices.

(1)

@

S

)

)

Rainstorms

Frequent and severe rainstorms, such as black
rainstorm signal, had adverse impacts on the execution
of works and extended the construction duration.

Floods

Rainstorms and rising sea levels flooded the sites in
low-lying areas and affected the execution of works.

Heatwaves

Heatwaves made site workers more liable to suffer from
heat strokes. Site workers made more use of electric
fans and air conditioners and so consumed more
electricity.

Rise in Mean Sea Levels

Global warming heightened the mean sea levels. The
global mean sea level will continue to rise at current or
accelerated rates. The execution of marine works on
pier construction sites were affected as most of the port
works were required to be carried out during the low
tide period.

Severe Typhoons

The frequency and intensity of severe typhoons are
expected to change as a result of climate change and
extreme wind speeds are expected to increase.

In response to these changes, SFK continued to refine the
operation practices in hot weather, such as providing resting
kiosks, mobile cooling fans and other facilities for workers. At
the same time, training was also provided for workers to
promote their awareness of prevention of heat stroke.
Moreover, in order to brace for more frequent extreme
weather events, we continued to strengthen our emergency
preparedness and various good practices to sufficiently
secure materials and temporary structures to prevent losses
and incidents.
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5.4.2 Mitigation Measures for Climate Change Impacts

The core elements of climate-related financial disclosures
includes governance, strategy, risk management, and metrics
& targets.

(1)

@

Governance

In order to minimize climate change, SFK implemented
the following measures:

° Improve energy efficiency, e.g., replace fluorescent
tubes with LED lights.

o Reduce energy consumption, e.g., switch off air-
conditioners, lights, computers, printers and
photocopiers when leaving the office.

° Use solar products, e.g., use solar fans, solar
water heaters and solar barricade warning lights.

° Use low-carbon construction methods and
construction materials, e.g., recycle timber, metal
and aggregates from construction wastes, and
replace tropical hardwood with metal for site
hoardings, formworks & scaffoldings.

° Increase vegetation areas on site, e.g. increase
hydroseeding areas; plant more trees.

o Develop innovations for sustainable buildings
together with clients and subcontractors, e.g.
meet the performance criteria of BEAM Plus for a
wide range of sustainability issues.

Strategy

The Environmental Management Plan (EMP) and the
Safety Plan (SP) included the mitigation measures for
adverse impacts arising from extreme weather events,
e.g., rainstorms, floods, heatwaves, rise in mean sea
levels and severe typhoons. SFK implemented the EMP
and SP, and periodically reviewed them to mitigate the
adverse impact of climate change on operation
practices.
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Risk Management

With reference to the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD),
SFK managed the climate-related risks on its
businesses in a systematic and proactive approach and
mitigated the impacts of climate change.

The Environmental Management Plan and the Safety
Plan included some of the risks related to climate
change, e.g., rainstorms, floods, heatwaves, high
temperature and severe typhoons. SFK managed the
risks related to physical climate events by training,
regular health examination, distribution of heat stroke
related materials and emergency drills, etc. SFK strived
to have a deeper understanding of the climate change
impacts, integrate them into the overall risk
identification, assessment and management, and
disclose more information about them in the future ESG
Reports.

Metrics and Targets

SFK tried its best to reduce emission of CO, and other
greenhouse gases during the construction, operation
and maintenance. SFK consumed a large amount of
natural resources for operations, and so strived to
reduce carbon emission and increase waste recycle
percentage year by year as the targets. SFK will review
the targets periodically for continuous improvement in
response to changes in the management procedures,
nature of the works, business development and relevant
environmental legislation.
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CHAPTER 6 PEOPLE
6.1 Employment and Respect for Labour Rights

70

The Group is devoted to providing a fair and sound working
atmosphere to our employees with an aim to improve the
cohesiveness of our staff and our long-term competitiveness in the
market.

SFK attaches great importance to ethical and fair employment
practice and equal opportunities by rigorously complying with the
relevant legislations including:

° Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57)

° Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282)
o Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480)

° Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486)

° Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487)

It is one of the Group’s commitments to build a harmonious
workplace in the absence of any form of discrimination in our
operations. Throughout the recruitment and promotion process,
SFK treats all employees and job applicants equally. Candidates
are assessed in regard to their qualifications and work experiences,
whereas irrelevant factors such as ethnicity, gender, disability,
family status, religion and political stance do not have any influence
on the process. The Group wholly respects the religious belief,
political stance, race, disability, gender, marital status, age and
sexual orientation of our employees as well as job applicants.

The Group is committed to providing our employees with
competitive remuneration packages, reasonable working hours and
rest periods to build a pleasing environment and to achieve work-
life balance. A range of allowances and bonuses, including year-
end bonus, overtime allowances, first-aider or emergency
attendance allowance are also offered to our employees.

We also extend our care to the family members of our employees
by implementing many family-friendly employment practices such
as marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and
compassionate leave to empower our employees to balance their
work and their family affairs. Moreover, to fulfil the needs of
breastfeeding employees and their new-born, the Group has also
implemented Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace Policy.
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As in every ethically-sound corporation, forced labour, child labour
and illegal workers are prohibited in the Group. The Group has
established comprehensive procedures to regularly scrutinise
employment practices and eliminate undesirable practices if
discovered. Prudent due diligence, such as requiring job applicants
to provide personal identity documents for verification of Hong
Kong Permanent Resident Status or valid Permit for Employment in
Hong Kong, is undertaken by the Group in the recruitment process.
Employment contracts which explain and detail the rights and
responsibilities of both parties are always duly signed between the
Group and the employees. Under no circumstance will we tolerate
labour exploitation, forced labour and child labour. No such
malpractice was discovered in the reporting period.

In the reporting period, the Group was in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to compensation, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare, as well as prevention
of child labour and forced labour in all material respects.

Table 6.1 Total Work Force (Hong Kong) as at the end of the
reporting period

R -AgkEARE

AEEBRERBET  FLLBESY BTR
RGBT - AEBECEYZHER - NEHE
ERMERBEALMETNETR(MBEER) -
AEETEEEREAREPETEERRRAS -
BIEERERABRMEAS DR UZ
BERBKAMBEREDHBRNBBRET
e —HNMR  AREEERHIAREZRR
AR MERFAETOENREET - RAR
ERABATRBTIERREBHE - wELEF R
BT REEHALEBRUERBITR -

RBEMA - AEERZEZERETHAS
BEEXTENRBEERER  PREHEH - 7
BHE B TERE RE FEH
g Zlb - AR A KR B A AR A8 FIA K
PrlbE T el oa w558 -

ROINBEHRRNESLB(FR)

Construction Housing Services Total
= BFR% #Et
Gender T Bl
Male B4 904 62 966
Female e 234 151 385
Employment Type EREER
Full-time 2R 1,121 157 1,278
Part-time Fidi 17 56 73
Age Group FHAE 5Bl
18-30 18-30 292 0 292
31-45 31-45 303 14 317
46-60 46-60 450 117 567
> 61 > 61 93 82 175
ZEICFR|TEEREREEBR A A 7
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Table 6.2 Employee (Hong Kong) Monthly Average Turnover *R6.2EE (FB) BYR kL=
Rate
Construction Housing Services
=51 BF iR
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F —E-_—F —E-—4F

Gender % 51
Male Efs 3.3% 3.2% 12.2% 2.5%
Female pegc 3.6% 2.5% 11.3% 8.1%
Age Group FH4a 5l
18-30 18-30 0.8% 1.4% 19.4% 0.0%
31-45 31-45 4.1% 4.5% 9.0% 5.0%
46-60 46-60 4.2% 3.6% 8.7% 4.0%
> 60 >60 6.1% 4.4% 16.0% 4.4%
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6.2 Safety and Health

Hong Kong is a fast-paced city, and the construction industry faces
higher risks of occupational safety and health than other industries.
In recent years, under the influence of the development of
information technology, the construction industry has reached a
new milestone. As a major construction business organization, the
Group’s occupational safety and health is the top priority of all
works, and rigorously complying with all relevant legislations,
including:

o Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Chapter 59)

° Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509)

The Group’s safety and health policy requires all levels of
management and supervision to actively participate in all feasible
methods to provide and maintain a safe working environment and
monitor the implementation of relevant safety systems as well. In
response to our stakeholders’ high valuation of safety, we continue
to maintain a high standard of safety management systems to
respond to their expectations, and actively expand the opportunities
and assistance brought by the application of information technology
to improve the Group’s safety management system. Not only is our
safety and health policy applicable to our employees, it also
extends to our subcontractors.

The Group relies on the Safety and Environmental Committee and
Site Safety and Environmental Committee to oversee and steer the
occupational health and safety management in our business
operations. Not only do these committees actively engage with our
employees, but also cooperate with our subcontractors to actively
implement the Group’s safety directives and protocols. Project
management, safety officers, subcontractors’ representatives and
workers’ representatives participate in regular safety meetings as a
platform for them to express their opinions on safety issues and
share the latest information and best practices on occupational
health and safety.
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In addition to comprehensive directives and interactive
engagement, regular dissemination and trainings are also the
essential components of our safety management systems. We
publish quarterly safety bulletins along with occupational health and
safety news and events information internally to sustain the
momentum of safety awareness. Courses that were frequently
provided include safety training in confined spaces operation and
safety supervisors courses, etc. In response to the training needs,
the Group regularly commissions our Safety Training Centre as well
as external training institutions to carry out safety training courses
for our workers and employees.

Furthermore, we have established and maintained internal safety
requirements and targets as below:

o Zero fatal occupational accidents; and

o Less than 0.25 reportable accidents per 100,000 man-hours;
and

o Less than 9 reportable accidents per 1,000 workers.

Our continuous effort in improving occupational safety was widely
recognized in the community. SFK have won many awards from
Development Bureau, Construction Industry Council, Occupational
Safety and Health Council and The Hong Kong Housing Authority.
Please refer to the details in “Chapter 9 — Awards and Recognition
Highlights” in this report.

During the reporting period, the Group had no fatal accident; and
the accident rate was 0.15 reportable accidents per 100,000 man-
hours; and less than 5 reportable accidents per 1,000 workers.
While this number was lower than the accident frequency rate
objective set by Development Bureau, we would continue to
improve our performance in occupational health and safety.

During the reporting period, the Group was fined for a total sum of
HK$139,000 in respect of convictions related to three incidents in
violation of the regulations under the Factories and Industrial
Undertaking Ordinance (Cap. 59) at three sites. These three
accidents were considered to be independent and isolated
incidents.

Save as disclosed above or otherwise in this annual report, the
Group has in all material respects complied with all applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong in relation to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
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Table 6.3 Total Work-related Fatality and Work Injury

R6ITEHEBANSHR THEAERH

2022 2021 2020
===z B —F —ECFF
Work-related Fatality THEHEBHN SR
Total Number of Fatality LT HREL 0 0 0
Rate (Number of Fatality per 1,000 L& (51,000 & 2 HE L
Fulltime-equivalent T AT AZD)
Construction Workers) 0 0 0
Lost Man-Day due to Work Injury REI{EREX.XIH
Total HET 3,367 2,312 2,870
Note: FisE -

Number of full-time-equivalent construction workers is determined by dividing total
man-hours by 10 workhours per day, and then further divided by 294 workdays per
annum (workdays are approximated based on a 6-day workweek in 365 calendar
days, less 12 days of statuary holidays and 7 days of paid vacation days).

Exhibit: Enhancement of Occupational Safety of Working at
Height

According to the statistics from the Labour Department, fall of
person from height is one of the major accident types which results
in serious body injury or even fatality. SFK is committed to identify,
rectify and safeguard any person working at a height in the
workplace against all hazardous conditions so far as reasonably
practicable as stipulated in the relevant safety laws. All our workers
and our subcontractors have high awareness of the risk of working
at height and have implemented adequate safety precautions. To
ensure the safety and health of workers engaged in traditional hoist,
SFK has taken the lead in implemented of innovation to use Double
Floor Freight Cargo Hoist (ELEPHANT 3000) in New Works
Contract of Housing Authority in Hong Kong since December 2021.

The Cargo Hoist of ELEPHANT 3000 consists fundamentally of a
frame and be completely enclosed by walls, floor and roof. The
assembly is able to withstand the forces which will be applied in
normal operation, during impact on buffers and emergency
application of safety gear. A movable sliding platform has been
specifically designed by the manufacturer. The safe working loads
rated at 3000kg, and the platform can be extract up to 2.3m from
the hoist. The cargo hoist is operating in fully automatic from
loading to unloading floors by one button.
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Configuration:

The specially designed telescopic cargo hoist greatly simplify the
docking requirement between the hoist and the floor. The
diversified electrical safety control system also greatly improves the
vertical material transportation work in the construction site. The
main bearing structures of the product are made of high-quality
and high-strength steel. The steel structure is made of carbon
dioxide gas shielded welding, surface galvanized treatment, mobile
platform wheel and multi wheel cooperation, equipped with multiple
protection mechanisms, and includes a series of intelligent control
methods such as wireless remote control and multi floor automatic
setting. It is a leading scheme in vertical transportation equipment.

° Basic Operation Function

Variation Frequency Device

Automatic memory of floor height
Up/down wireless remote control
Basement (negative floor) use

Floor site memory function

Automatic telescopic discharging platform
Cargo cage automatic door

ST T

o Security Protection Function

Overload protection

90% load forecasting

Mechanical top limit and bottom limit
Software top limit and bottom limit

Floor security door protection

Collision protection for inner cage

Sound and flash warning of cage running

ST T
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Advantage: Traditional Material Hoist vs ELEPHANT 3000

High volume transportation

The loading volume of cargo hoist (cage size: 3.2(L) x 1.7(W)
x 2.3(H)m) is almost 4 times of that of material hoist (platform
size: 1.5(L) x 1.5(W) x 1.5(H)m). And also the working loads of
cargo hoist rated up to 3,000kg double that of the material
hoist (SWL = 1,500kg). Thus significantly enhance the
efficiency in vertical transportation of site material. It also
saves time and manpower for loading and unloading.

High standard safety concern

Elephant 3000 equipped with safety gear to prevent free
falling of lifting cage during unexpected circumstance. Safe
working platform with fencing on top of the cage provide and
safe working place for installation. Entire safety cut-off, CCTV
monitor and multi-functional sensors enhance the safe
operation of the cargo hoist. Human voice alarm system is
provided for gate movement and hoist operation to remind
user for attention.

Save time and cost

The movable sliding platform of Elephant 3000 substitute the
tailor made material hoist landing platform thus save time and
cost.

Adopt different site condition

Elephant 3000 can be tailor made to suit for different site

conditions, building types & shapes, and exterior wall profiles.
Highly appropriate for construction site usage.

Thanks to SFK’s devotion to continuous enhancement of
occupational safety of working at height, we were awarded with
Merit Award for Best Safety Enhancement Program for Working at
Height in the 23rd Construction Safety Forum and Award
Presentation held by the Occupational Safety and Health Council.

=
=
=

B2 - (YK & A El EPHANT 3000
° Kt =EH

EEMEM(MERT 32(K)x1.7
(F)x23(@M)K)NEHELTEYME
PEHE(FART - 15(K)x 1.5(F)x
15(@m)K)MaE - BEREHMET
T {E&k A= E 3,000 F 72 © =Y PEH
KRR 5 (SWL = 1,500 2 fr ) o e 78 =&
RatBYREESEHBE - bEd
THRHMREBAMAL -

s ARREANMI

Elephant 3000fR L 2R E - HIEERE
IMER T FBREEBRETE - HETTEE
REERMNLZETIIEFEARERET
ZEMTIESH - BB 2IRE - BAK
BRERMZ I ERERTEED
BEMZ2RE BPFINBZETMER
HIRIEDBREABRRE RS - RIEEA
HHNEE o

o ERERFRAIRA

Elephant 3000 BB EFaBNRT 2
FEHMH mERNREFS  EME
BT R REFIBCA o

o EENRE M

Elephant 3000 7] LA 1R ¥ -1~ [A] &9 T #f {5
f ~ BEIER AR A R NS B M #E 1T
T o FEREAREETMER -

BRI EA RN EHR IR R TIERRE
22 BPARBEZRZ2RERMBINS
Tt ZEREERENFTEBRBARPES
RESEIFLENEEERE -

ER(|FTEBREEREEETR QA 77



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - kERRE

6.3 Education, Training and Career Development

78

Education is the foundation of development. With an intention to lay
down a concrete groundwork for SFK’s sustainable development in
the construction business, we are committed to supporting the
education and training of our staff.

To cultivate the professional knowledge and technical capability of
our employees, the Group provides extensive staff development
and training, including on-the-job trainings, seminars, workshops,
site visits and formal training schemes approved by professional
institutes. Devoted to offering adequate support to our staff, SFK
offers paid study leave, subsidies for tuition, as well as examination
leave to maximise the fruitful result.

Adhering to social distancing measures amid the COVID-19
pandemic, some of the planned training workshops were

conducted in the form of webinars instead of physical attendance.

Below is the percentage of employees of the training and the
average training hours per employee during the reporting year.

Table 6.4 Full-time Employees Trained

6.3

BE - BIIREERR
HERERNER - BT RN RBEEEEERR
MBS RETRENER  BHABHH
B THHA RIE -

RIERRENERMBLIZRMEEN - AEER
HEZHB TRREMEI - BRERSE -

e TEY  BEERREERBZENT
AIFEHE - FRERNAE TREFEIHX

FoREEFECEY 2EFHMEREAR
Hi ARAREMIZESHR o

£ COVID-19 A 17 A » BR 45 SR AN AL 32 PR B

HiE - DRI TR AR AT A =
M ETT - MIERS HF -

AT AREFERNSERZINETLIRES
B TH) I IR 2 -

*642HZIESE

2022 2021
—E—— —E-—F
Gender 4 B
Male Bt 23.4% 13.9%
Female pegis 21.8% 6.6%
Employee Category EEER
Senior Management SRERRE 92.7% 75.0%
Middle Management A EIRE 42.9% 22.9%
Junior Level BN 6.5% 3.6%

Table 6.5 Average Training Hours Completed Per Full-time

RE6SBEEREETRZINTHRH

Employee
2022 2021
—=E-— —E-—F
Gender 4 5l
Male Bk 4.0 1.2
Female pegis 6.5 0.4
Employee Category EEEx
Senior Management SRERE 17.9 1.9
Middle Management RREIRE 9.6 2.4
Junior Level AR 0.8 0.2
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CHAPTER 7 OPERATING PRACTICES

7.1 Quality and Compliance Management

It is the Group’s commitment to materialise our work at its finest.
The quality policy of SFK is to reliably assure that we deliver to our
customers the services/works that we have contracted for, through
the implementation of a quality management system conforming to
ISO 9001 international standard, to assure consistent quality
deliverables to our customers by ensuring that:

The services and works we deliver to our customers meet the
specifications and requirements of our customers and the
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements;

The sites under our management and operation follow the
policies and procedures defined in the quality management
system at all stages with the relevant records produced to
substantiate compliance with the requirements;

We continuously review and seek opportunities to improve
our products and services and the effectiveness of the quality
management system to enhance customers’ satisfaction; and

The quality management is given the highest practicable
priority in discharging our contractual obligations.

The quality and compliance of all project sites are safeguarded by
our Project Quality Policy and systematic control process under the
Group’s quality management system. For each project, a project-
specific Quality Assurance Plan shall be prepared, implemented
and regularly reviewed for the quality and compliance management.
It integrates the company quality management system with the
contract requirements of the project. The project plan shall (i) define
the organization and resources to be employed, (ii) identify the
project documents and applicable regulations showing the quality
and compliance requirements, (i) set out quality control processes
on workmanship, (iv) set out the quality control processes on
materials and (v) set out quality control processes on design works.

=
=
=
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Inspection and Test Plans (I&T Plans) shall be prepared in
accordance with contract specification and relevant regulations, to
define the sequence and stages at which inspections and tests are
to be performed, the acceptance criteria, the certification or records
required for the inspection and/or test activities to be carried out
during the execution of the Works. The I&T plans are project
specific. The works are required to undergo our inspection process
to detect non-compliance. Additionally, we arrange joint inspections
with our customers to check the quality of work and to witness
tests to be conducted. Any non-compliance with the contract
specifications is then subject to rectification and re-inspection till
the quality specification and the requirements of applicable
regulations are fulfilled. The release of products and services and
the handover of completed works to the customers will not proceed
until the planned arrangements including all planned inspection and
testing activities have been satisfactorily completed, unless
otherwise approved by the customers and, as applicable, by the
relevant authorities.

The Group has paid full respect to proprietary intellectual property
and shall refrain from using any ideas, products and goods without
proper authorisation. We have established and implemented
procedures to protect intellectual property rights. All our installed
operating systems and softwares are sourced from authorised
suppliers or copyright holders to respect the integrity of intellectual
property rights. Our IT Department will arrange regular checks on
our Group’s computers to ensure there are no unauthorised
programmes or products within our system.

The security-minded approach for information management is
adopted within our Group to reduce the risk of the loss, theft or
disclosure of consumer data, personal information as well as
intellectual property. Information and data of our customers are
always under secure protection using our document control
system. We are also committed to protecting the privacy of our
employees, subcontractors and clients in accordance with our
code of practice and the relevant regulations, including the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486). All employees are reminded of
the need to maintain all information related to the Group on a
strictly confidential basis and shall not during or after their
employment make unauthorized copies, use, take, remove or
disclose to any person or company, confidential information,
materials, documents, precedents and/or data in any form which
belong to the Group or any client of the Group.
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The Group will only collect those personal data that is necessary to
fulfil the purposes as specified. Where the person from whom
personal data is or will be collected, he or she will be informed of
the details and the purposes of the collection on or before the data
is being collected. He or she will also have the right of access and
correction with respect to the data provided.

In the reporting period, the Group was in compliance with the
applicable rules and regulations governing health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to works and
services provided and methods of redress in all material respects.

AEBEEREETHEEENARNEAER -
RAgHREREBAAEHOA @ MR &£
WEREMZEH A BEMBEEHNFER
KBH - TEEDAREEMBHRER -

RMEMA - AKBEMERE BT TE
FREY R BRG] - 5 L AR B MG B K S AT iR
HOTRNRBEENRENRZE  BE 8
HMFLEFERREERT X -

Table 7.1 Non-compliance and Complaints RI1EREERRKRF
2022 2021
—E== —E-—F
Total completed works subject to Hzs RigEREREG D
recalls for safety and health reasons 238 TR T 2428 0 0
Number of complaints received at FRAREMZERTER
the corporate level relating to AR 7% A 8 B9 3R B IR B
works and services 0 0
Supply Chain Management 72 HEHEERE

The concern for Environmental, Social and Governance continues
to be a focal point in society. It is crucial for us to maintain active
communication and engagement with our suppliers and
subcontractors so as to effectively manage environmental and
social risks along the supply chain. The typical environmental and
social issues associated with our operations include environmental
pollution, hazards to occupational health and safety, impacts on
communities and compliance with the environmental-related and
social-related laws and regulations.

The Group implements comprehensive review and monitoring
procedures to ensure our supply chain is suitable and capable for
our works and able to pursue our policies on environmental and
social management. SFK maintains a list of qualified suppliers and
subcontractors based on factors including requirements under the
main contracts with our client, previous collaboration experience
and our evaluation of their performance. Addition of new suppliers
or subcontractors has to go through our internal approval process
in which the financial stability, adequacy of resources, past
performance and ability to meet requirements on schedule, quality,
environmental and safety are assessed.
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Our suppliers and subcontractors range from sole proprietorships
with several employees to sizeable companies registered under the
List of Approved Contractors for Public Works and/or the Specialist
List of the Development Bureau, and many of which have
collaborated with us for over ten years. With mutual trust, we can
comprehensively evaluate our subcontractors and ensure the
consistent quality of our works. Every year, we assess the
performance in terms of quality, safety, environment, financial
stability and resource availability of all active suppliers and
subcontractors.

Along with compliance assessment and performance review, we
also hold trainings to suppliers and subcontractors to refresh and
update their knowledge of the applicable legal and regulatory
requirements as well as the specific project requirements.

The Site Safety and Environmental Committee of each project
oversees and steers the management of safety and environmental
risks of the project including the subcontractors. These committees
actively engage with our subcontractors to effectively implement
the Group’s directives to properly manage the risks. Whenever
applicable, safety officers and environmental officers will be
appointed in project sites to assess and monitor subcontractor’s
safety and environmental risks onsite and to ensure these risks are
properly managed and reduced to an acceptable level.

As part of our daily operations, we collect and review information of
our suppliers regarding their compliance and performance to
ensure their consistent attainments of the Group’s relevant
standards. The Group is committed to reducing the environmental
footprint of our supply chain. We encourage and support sourcing
from local, responsible, and ethical suppliers. Priority is given to
suppliers who value and act according to the principles of
sustainable development.

We proactively procure environmental-benign products for our
construction projects. Standardized precast products and Modular
Integrated Construction were adopted to reduce wastage.
Recycling and reuse of moulds for the precast modules at the
prefabrication yard can also lead to reduction of cost and material
wastage. To avoid consumption and disposal of conventional
timber and bamboo material, we also purchase durable steel mould
and steel scaffold which are reusable in our construction works.
Some of our construction plant also use B5 biodiesel, which
complies with EN 14078:2003. Other green products such as solar
water heaters, solar lamps, LED lights, T5 fluorescent tubes and
motion sensors for lighting control were also purchased for
deployment on project sites. Our active procurement of
environmental-friendly products catalyses our supply chain to
advance into a progressively environmental-benign one.
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Table 7.2 Number of suppliers as at the end of the reporting RT2MRBEHRNEERHE
period
Region ih & Number
£ =]
Hong Kong BB 406
Southeast Asia and South Asia HREgos Mg 1
Table 7.3 Number of sub-contractors as at the end of the RISNBEB RN, EBEHE
reporting period
Region & Number
L=
Hong Kong B 334
Southeast Asia and South Asia R ke 1
Moral Integrity and Anti-Corruption 7.3 EEFBEFHERER

Morality is the keystone of all long-lasting business. The Group
attaches great importance to moral integrity and anti-corruption by
unwaveringly adhering to relevant laws and regulations such as
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201). SFK is committed to
upholding the highest ethical standard of business conduct.

SFK’s internal Code of Business Conduct related to anti-bribery
and unethical and illegal behaviours governs all our employees.
Bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering are not tolerated in
SFK. The Code is communicated to our directors and employees
and supplemented with an ICAC anti-corruption video training
prepared by the Hong Kong Independent Commission Against
Corruption (“ICAC”) to ensure their understanding of and
compliance with all the requirements. We also require our
employees to declare any conflict of interest at least annually.
During the festive seasons, we also issue notices to our
subcontractors and suppliers to remind them of SFK’s anti-
corruption policy.

Moreover, we also regularly invite speakers from ICAC to conduct
anti-corruption training and give seminars to our directors,
management and our staff on the comprehensive and effective
approach to anti-corruption. In the reporting period, we invited
ICAC to deliver a webinar tailored for construction industry. Over 46
of our members (including our Directors) participated in seminars to
refresh themselves with the latest anti-corruption information.

A

FERPNEBGUBERER - AEERE
ERERBEMRER  —EBRRETHERBN
ERER (NG 201 BB LR EDID)) - #18
BENETEBITRNEDBIBRE -

FRERBEMARIEN - TEBRIERITAN

NP ERTTA - EARMEEREE - #1718
BARREMEEE - 1R - HEFRERBEET
B ZTABEBETHEMNESRIES @ WH
NEBRBEAE((RBEAZE]) BIEMRRAE
REBIEEEI - AEREETHRRETHA
BE - BN EREESFELRR—REM
FlzfErze - FEMAKRE  RMOUTRASEE &
HEFEHBEN  EEFSHEANRERBK

A

Eﬁ o

AN - HPTE BB RBABNEEETR
BEREI - YAES EEERBTRHERH
2HEEEMRERHTNE - RIWESHE - &
PIBBEREAE REERRM FEJE’Jii%EHé‘J‘
g RMABBIBERKE( \1?§§$) 2 Eih
e NMEREEBRERARERNSEHEM °

FR|IFTREELEEER AT 83



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - kERRE

84

SFK has established effective procedures and confidential whistle-
blowing channels to guarantee thorough investigation of all
allegations of corruption and ethical impropriety. All complaints
received by the Managing Director via confidential fax or letter are
promptly processed and investigated. Any employee in violation of
our company policies or applicable laws and regulations will be
reported to the ICAC and wherever appropriate, shall be subject to
disciplinary action.

In the reporting period, the Group was in compliance with the
applicable rules and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering in all material respects. No concluded legal
case concerned with corrupt practices was brought against SFK or
any of our employees in the reporting period.

Table 7.4 Total Number of Corrupt Practices
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2022 2021
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K& A T A
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Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or
its employees during the EIgE
reporting period
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CHAPTER 8 COMMUNITY

8.1

8.2

Community Participation

SFK believes that true charity is the desire to be useful to others
with no thought of recompense. In order to express our support to
community, we offer sponsorships and donations to various not-
for- profit organisations, and also form collaboration with social
welfare organisations, charity groups and community organisations
to organise our staff to take part in voluntary and charity activities.

Through various channels including e-mails, company website and
annual report, the effectiveness of our community activities and
feedbacks from the community groups are evaluated by the
Group’s administration department and volunteer team organising
committee. Based on these feedbacks, the Group’s sustainability
objectives are regularly reviewed.

Community participation brings all-round benefits to SFK.
Externally, the community participation fosters a tighter relationship
with various community organisations. Internally, it also gathers
together our staff members from different departments and different
project sites, boosting our team spirit to contribute to the wellbeing
of the Group and the society.

Focus Areas of Contribution
8.2.1 Health

Health is the foundation for each and every success that
COVID-19 pandemic reminded us. The Group strives to
promote healthy lifestyles and shows our support to those in
need.

In response to the initiative of Construction Industry Council
during the local outbreak of COVID-19, the Group offered
10,394 rapid test kits and 4,970 KN95 face masks to our
frontline construction workers.
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8.2.2 Voluntary Services

The Group encourages involvement in voluntary services as
one of the many ways to contribute to community. SFK
volunteer team serves our communities through selfless
dedication to a wide variety of people in need, such as
elderly, children, as well as people with disability. So as to
extend our reach to those in need, we collaborate with
various social organisations, welfare organisations and charity
groups to organize events and activities for maximum benefits
and impacts.

Among all our voluntary services in the reporting period, we
collaborated with SAHK to co-organize a volunteer activity via
Zoom, “Mid-Autumn Festival Caring Campaign” in September
2022. Through the participation in games like solving the
riddles, the volunteers and the person with special needs had
a chance to interact and communicate with each other. Our
volunteers also distributed 50 caring packs to SAHK for
celebrating the festival.

SFK spares no expense in fostering the culture of
volunteering. In the reporting period, the Group has made a
monetary and in-kind donation to the SAHK. Not only does
the voluntary works contribute to the communities, it also
helps our employees discover and explore their potential and
capability.
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CHAPTER 9 AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

BAE RERRFHE

HIGHLIGHTS
Table 9.1 #*9.1
Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
RERHHAERE HEHE BRAY BRKE
The 23rd Construction Safety Award/Best ~ Occupational Safety and November 2022 Sun Fook Kong
Safety Enhancement Program Health Council 2022F 11 A Construction Limited
for Working at Height (Merit) BELZPRER MRBEEERAA
F_ToEREERI AR RE
BEITER 2 EE (BRHE)
28th Considerate Contractors Site Award Development Bureau & September 2022  Sun Fook Kong
Scheme — Considerate Contractors Construction Industry Council 20224 9 A (Civil) Limited
Site Award (Public Works-RMAA Works) #EBREEEZS FEB(EAR)BRAR
— Bronze
FEZTNEAEMERTTE — 2E
AR (THITE — &1 RE -
MR IETAR) i
28th Considerate Contractors Site Award  Development Bureau & September 2022  Sun Fook Kong
Scheme — Innovation Awards for Construction Industry Council 202249 H (Civil) Limited
Safety and Environmental Excellence BREMEEEXRSY RE (EAR)BRAA
(IASEE) — RMAA Works — Bronze
FE_TN\EAEMBREEGE — 22 KRR
SWEAIFTE — #E - RE  BGERNE
T2 — #fse
CEDD Construction Site Safety CEDD December 2022 Sun Fook Kong
Award 2021 — Bronze TARIEHEE 202212 A (Civil) Limited
TARIRERE DL 2 A 2021 — {12 e (LR BRAA

— & —
=
=

—ER(|FEEEREEBR AR
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Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
RAGRHEHE P ¥ BRAY BRKE
Good MPF Employer 5 Years+ Mandatory Provident September 2022  SFK Construction
HEf EFESF+ Fund Schemes Authority 20229 A Holdings Limited
BHE N ER TR MEtEREEBRAR
5 Years plus Caring Company The Hong Kong Council of September 2022  SFK Construction
F AR RAESF+ Social Service (HKCSS) 2022F 9 A Holdings Limited
BB ERGHE MRAEREEERA
for its Pursuit of Environmental Initiatives Environmental Campaign November 2022 Sun Fook Kong
and Participation in the 2021 Committee 202211 A Construction Limited
Hong Kong Awards for RIFEFHELED B EEaRAR
Environmental Excellence
HEIRRTESR N L2 02021 HERE
BHALE
Wastewi$e Certificate — Good Level Environmental Campaign August 2022 Sun Fook Kong
Project: Construction of Public Rental Committee 2022%F 8 A Construction Limited
Housing Development Phases 1 & 2 and & /B 4% & % 25 SRR EERAT
Subsidised Sale Flats Development at
Diamond Hill Comprehensive
Development Area
BEEREE — [RIFAR] AR - BAILKE
EREAHATEEZEE — 8k
B EREEREREETR
Wastewi$e Certificate — Good Level Environmental Campaign December 2022 Sun Fook Kong
Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats Committee 202212 A Construction Limited

Development at Ma On Shan Road and
Public Rental Housing Development at
Hang Tai Road, Ma On Shan Area 86B
Phase 1 (Contract No. 20180557)
BEFEE — [REFRA]EE :

ARFEEZE A% 20180557 — HEEIL
%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%&EEMEﬁ%

HAEEREERASIEETRE
<%§m%%8@>

BRREHERE
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Name of Awards or Achievement

BEARHEE

Issuing Organisation

BEEE

Award
Receiving Date
BRAY

Award Receiving
Organisation

"RERE

Energywi$e certificate — Good
level-Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification Construction of Subsidised
Sale Flats Development at Ma On
Shan Road and Public Rental Housing
Development at Hang Tai Road, Ma On

Shan Area 86B Phase 1
(Contract No. 20180557)

HEEEE — RITARFIER - BEREZES
A 4920180557 — H&ILKEBHE
ERHERE&Z LERKSE
EREEEZETR(FHILFESBE)

Wastewi$e certificate — Good
level-Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification Management and
Maintenance of Roads in Kowloon East
excluding Expressways and
High Speed Roads (2018-2024)

MEEEE — RIFRSIER

NEERER (RERBEESEAIEERIN 2

EIE N HEE (2018-2024)

Energywi$e certificate — Good level-
Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification Management and
Maintenance of Roads in Kowloon East
excluding Expressways and High Speed

Roads (2018-2024)
faEE — RITRBIER -

RERUER (REDE MEEABEIN Z

1 K #E(E (2018-2024)

Hong Kong Green
Organisation Certification
EBRECHBRE

Hong Kong Green
Organisation Certification
EBGERERE

Hong Kong Green
Organisation Certification
BEBREHBRE

=
=
=

December 2022
2022F 12 A

August 2022
2022 8 A

August 2022
2022%F 8 A

Sun Fook Kong
Construction Limited
B EERRAR

Sun Fook Kong
(Civil) Limited
EE (L) BRAF]

Sun Fook Kong
(Civil) Limited
#EE (EAR) BRAR

—FER | EREEREEBER QA 89
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CHAPTER 10 LOOKING AHEAD

Foresight is a critical adaptive strategy for times of high uncertainty.
Through proactive communication with various stakeholders including the
relevant authorities and our clients, we maintain vigilance of the latest
development of the industry and the expectations from our stakeholders,
and strive to create added value for our stakeholders through prudent
management of material environmental and social aspects.

The ESG elements have been increasingly valued by our stakeholders.
SFK will continue to integrate ESG into our governance structure. In
addition to managing and executing our construction projects in a
professional manner, we uphold business ethical practices by providing a
safe working and construction environment for our employees and the
passers-by as well as minimising the environmental impacts generated
from our project sites. Moreover, we will continue to provide professional
and high quality services and works, strengthen our safety management
system, improve our quality of work/services, enhance stakeholder
engagements and continuously contribute to the communal harmony.

920 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022
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APPENDIX THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG Mgk BEXFEE  HEREAREEES

REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX TABLE ABERSIFE

HKSE ESG

Reporting Guide Description Chapter
BIAMRE  HER

ERW|EED it =201

A. Environmental
A RiE

Aspect A1: Emissions
EAT - HERLD)

General Disclosure

KPI A1.1

RS AE IR IR AT

KPIA1.2

RIRAENIRRAL2

KPI A1.3

RIRAERIERA13

KPI A1.4

BB RIERA1.4

Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
BHBERAEREEN  MKRLTHHEES AER &F
FEEMREESH
(a BR: R
(o) HEFEHBEITABSATZEOIERER KRG
BE R} o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BEiE R R ARRE PR IR -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

B (HE1) ROREE (BE2) REREBME (CAEETHE)
R (@) B E (MABES B - BEREE)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FTESEEREEYESE (AMERTE) & (ni#E
B - FERMETHE) -

R BE (MAGES

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FrEAEEREYEE (ANEETHE) K& (aniE
B - FERMETH) -

R BE (MAGES

A

%& |%ﬁzﬂa/

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management

5.1 BERUZ 61| 2 B W) 18

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management
5.1 BERuE 6l R EYE R

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management

5.1 BERUZ 61| [ B2 ) 38

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management

5.1 BERuE Sl R EE R

5.1 Emission Control and

Waste Management

5.1 BERUZ 61|} B2 ) 38

REBEBRRQA
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HKSE ESG

Reporting Guide Description Chapter
BRI 8K

ERHEREL i =8

KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to 5.1 Emission Control and

RABEAEBUBIEALS

KPI A1.6

R RIERA1.6

achieve them.
MR L BERE B IR R AED)E L B RATIREA P8

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

HMEEIR A B MEEEEYN AL - REMATRI L 8VRRE B 1R
N /BRI L B IR ERERE) P8R o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEHEA2 : EIRIEH
General Disclosure

—ARIE

KPI A2.1

RS AE IR IR A2.1

KPI A2.2

FASAE M IEIRA2.2

KPI A2.3

B AEMIERA2.3

KPI A2.4

BB IR A2.4

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BREEER - KEEAREME) B -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

REAE DM ERE R SHEEER(WNE - Kaon) GFEE (LT
EFREFE) RBE (NASESEN - FERMAH) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BFEKERBE (WASESEMN - BERBITE) -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

RLPIET LAV REIR(E AR e B 1R MR ESE &L B IR P ERER A 2
A%AET% °©

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

i SR ERGE R AOR Rl BRI RE - LA FRal 2 A K B iR
N RBERE L B IR ERERE) P8R -
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Waste Management
5.1 BERRIE I R BE Y E 12

5.1 Emission Control and
Waste Management

5.1 BERUZ I} B2 ) 38

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52EMER

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52FZRER

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52EMAER

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52EMER

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52EMER
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HKSE ESG
Reporting Guide Description Chapter
BRFTRE HER
ER|EELI it =]
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)  Not applicable
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

Note: As the operation of the Group generally
does not involve addition of packaging
material to the finished products, this
indicator is considered immaterial and
is not reported in the report.

RARHE IR A2.5 X mTABEMHmES (UNEE) R(WER)SEESENL  TER

158 -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEA3 : RERXNENR

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

— R ER RIREIT ABIRIERARABRENERTZERBER

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impact of activities on the

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

RS E R IR AS.1 M EREHERERRABERNEAZERDERNEREH
HENTTE o

Aspect A4: Climate Change
EBHEA4 - RIREE
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

— MR IR R BRI REHEE RS HBTAEEZENERRIZIEHRE
BEHBGR °
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

RS AE IR IR Ad.1 BRI U RTAEETENEARGHBEE - &
JE¥ITTE -

TECCFRI|FEBEEXEEBRAA

MiEE : AR AREEEL TS RAKGEINE
REMEL - BULEFERRATEE BRRA

WEFEH -

5.3 The Environment and
Natural Resources
53RIERRAAEIR

5.3 The Environment and
Natural Resources

53RIBERAAER

5.4 Climate Change

5.4 FIRE Y,

5.4 Climate Change

5.4 FIRE Y,
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HKSE ESG
Reporting Guide
BRFIRE HER
EREEELI it

Description

Chapter

B. Social
B. &
Employment and Labour Practices
EERETIEHR
Aspect B1: Employment
BE BT : {EF
General Disclosure Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— MR B E  BEREA  TERE - BRE - TSRy %

Tob ~ RUIRAR A R B Ath 5738 S AR B

@ B X

(o) BEFHEITABEAZENEMER KA

HEF -

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.

B A8 R IE B1.1 IR REER (WERBEFRE) - FRAR MRS 5 rE

B
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6.1 Employment and Respect
for Labour Rights

6.1 ER M BEEL kR

6.1 Employment and Respect
for Labour Rights

Note: As the operation and employees of the

Group is predominantly in Hong Kong,
the segregation by geographical region is
considered immaterial and is not reported
in the report

I EEREESER

M ARAEEMNEEREELIEETNE

B IR ES SN BRERTERR
RKRBEP 2R -
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HKSE ESG

Reporting Guide Description Chapter

BRI 8K

B EREL ik E=4:0]

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 6.1 Employment and Respect

MSAEIEREB1.2

geographical region.

RIER - FlRAR KRB D HEERAKLE -

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EE B2 : fEFHLTE
General Disclosure

KPI B2.1

RS A IR 1R B2.1

KPIB2.2
M ERIERB2.2

KPI B2.3

RABEAEIEIEB2.3

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards

FAREZETIERSERREREBEBELEEEN

@ BE: &
b) BTHETABEATENEBEEEZRAM
HEHL o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of
the past three years including the reporting year.
BE=F(BREERFE)SFRITIFAEMMBTHAS KRR -

Lost days due to work injury.

AITEBEEATEBL -

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
FRAPTER AN B IR R R 2 2 6 0 A SRMBRANIT REE R 0% ©

A

%ﬁ |%ﬁzﬂa/

for Labour Rights

Note: As the operation and employees of the
Group is predominantly in Hong Kong,
the segregation by geographical
region is considered immaterial and is
not reported in the report.

6.1 EEREELHER
s BRAEEMLEREETSETNE
IR E R S S B ATERA

ARABERLE -

6.2 Safety and Health

6.2% % RiEE

6.2 Safety and Health

6.2% % MIER

6.2 Safety and Health
6.2 E MERE

6.2 Safety and Health

6.2% % RIER
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HKSE ESG

Reporting Guide Description
BRFIRE HER

EREEELI it

Chapter

Aspect B3: Developing and Training
BE B3 : #E L5

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

— MR BREREERT LR E N M R BUR « HEINE
B

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

FAS B RUE R B3.1 RURIREEEN(NEREERRE PREEES)EHSNZI
EEBEDL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

BB MUIEIE B3.2 RURIREEEMNE S - BEEETRIINN TS -

Aspect B4. Labour Standards
[BE B4 : &5 TERY
General Disclosure Information on:
(@ the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

— MR R BRAMIEE Tekog & T -
(@ X R
(o) HEFEHBEITABEATZENERER KRG
B E R o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labour.
RSB 51 B4 F R ST BB DI R e AR R B T R sg i S5 T -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.
BSEE N IE1R B4.2 I IR AR ERRERE ISR EREA P 5
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6.3 Education, Training and
Career Development
B.3HE - BHIIRBEER

6.3 Education, Training and
Career Development
6.3%E  BIIRBERR

6.3 Education, Training and
Career Development
6.3%E - HmIIRBERRE

6.1 Employment and Respect
for Labour Rights

b1RBREES B S

6.1 Employment and Respect
for Labour Rights
61 EREREESEHER

6.1 Employment and Respect
for Labour Rights
BIRBLREELIER
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HKSE ESG
Reporting Guide
BRFTRE HER

EREHEEL

Description

Eipus

Chapter

Operating Practices
EEEG

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

JEEBS : (HIEEE
General Disclosure

—AREE

KPI B5.1

RS A IR R B

KPI B5.2

RS AE IR B5.2

KPI B5.3

RS AEMIEE B3

KPI B5.4

RS AEIERB5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
EIRHEENIRE Rt g RBR B -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
iR E D HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how
they are implemented and monitored.

B A REERED - MERTERIENNHEREE
AR BRBHIRNTTREER A -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and
social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

fa e MR R B EIRE M IRE R g RBAEL - AR
MHBAMITREER X -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

fR e RE HER R R 2 AIRRE R KRG MBS - LAKRAR
RARIT R EER 0% -

=
=
=

7.2 Supply Chain Management

72 EHEE R

7.2 Supply Chain Management

ToOMEEER

7.2 Supply Chain Management

72ftEEER

7.2 Supply Chain Management

72ftEEER

7.2 Supply Chain Management

72ftEEER

TR | HEREEREEBRAA
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HKSE ESG
Reporting Guide

BXFRE  HER

E /n ﬁd:?El gl

Description

g

Chapter

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EdmET
General Disclosure

—ARI R

KPI B6.1

R 48 IR 12 B6.1

KPI B6.2

BRI IEIZB6.2

KPI B6.3

FASAE 1517 B6.3

KPI B6.4

R A5 WUIE 1R BB .4

KPI B6.5

R AR WUIE R B6.5

Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
BREFMRHERIRBOREERLZS B  BHERLESEE
VA K iR 7 VAR -
@ BE:x
(o) BFEHETABEATEMERERE KRN
WEHR

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
PEERDREREMBARPTRL 2 BERRAMARKNE S

Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.
BRI m MRS EVIR BB AR EH T7% -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
el L SR A ERE B RIRIE D) -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
FE i S i B R R EmDAE T

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored.

RUEE E ERRERALRBEBOR - U EAABERIT RERTX -
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7.1 Quality and Compliance
Management

N
e
fin
P
o>
%
my
e

7.1 Quality and Compliance
Management
7TIBEERHSHRER

7.1 Quality and Compliance
Management
TAEERSHRER

7.1 Quality and Compliance
Management
TIEEHESRER

7.1 Quality and Compliance
Management
7TIBEERHSHRER

7.1 Quality and Compliance
Management
TAEERSRER
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HKSE ESG
Reporting Guide

BXRE  HER

E /n %’l’t?a '_E”

Description

Eipus

Chapter

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EEB7 : REE
General Disclosure

—ARIE

KPI B7.1

RS I BB IE BT 1

KPIB7.2

RS AE IR R BT .2

KPI B7.3

FASAEIE1RB7.3

Community
HE

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRI LR - $3R - BEFROARER

@ BEX: X
(o) BTFEHBITABEAFZENHEBEE LR
RE R o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
FE#&E@Wa@ﬁé‘ﬁ/\&ﬁﬁ/\hEIE%#E’JEJ% FAZRIFH]
B RFARER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
BT E e R BRI T - A RAEBEIT REET 0% o

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.
it ES &R E TRENREFE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : @ IRE
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B8.1

MS A IR 1R BB

KPI B8.2
RSN IE15 B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BRANTRSERTREEREHES
ZEALE NS EER

ENBREER LSS

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
ETERER (NHE  BEFE  SIHK - @FE b 8

B)e

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
E /EE%EBHP):[@J}EH ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬂif«z—iﬁ??ﬁ)

A

%ﬁ |%ﬁzﬂa/

7.3 Moral Integrity and
Anti-corruption

73BEREERE

)

7.3 Moral Integrity and
Anti-corruption

5

TI3BREHEERE

7.3 Moral Integrity and
Anti-corruption
SERWERRER

7.3 Moral Integrity and
Anti—corruption
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises that corporate governance practices are crucial to
the smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company and its
ability to attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and
stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value. The Company is
committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve its
corporate image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Company has adopted the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). The Board is of the opinion that the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions, except for the deviation
from provisions C.2.1 and D.2.5 of the CG Code during the Year.

According to provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not have a chief executive
officer and such role has been assumed by the managing director of the
Company. Mr. Chan Ki Chun is the chairman and the managing director
of the Company. In the view that Mr. Chan has been assuming day-to-
day responsibilities in operating and managing the Group since 1999, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Chan taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation from
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances.

According to code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company should
have an internal audit function. The Company does not establish a
standalone internal audit department, however, the Board has put in
place adequate measures to perform the internal audit function in relation
to different aspects of the Group. In 2022, the Company appointed an
external internal control adviser to perform periodic review of our internal
control system to evaluate the effectiveness and formulate plans and
recommendations for improvement of our internal control measures and
policies. It is intended to review the effectiveness of the Group’s material
internal controls so as to provide assurance that key internal control
measures are carried out appropriately and are functioning as intended.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for the Group’s operations and
sufficient checks and balances are in place. The Board will continue to
review its corporate governance practices in order to enhance its
corporate governance standard, to comply with regulatory requirements
and to meet the growing expectations of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and investors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which include (a) to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management of the
Group; (c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to the employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to
review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant
disclosures in the corporate governance report as set out in the annual
report of the Company.

The Board is performing the abovementioned corporate governance
functions throughout the Year.

THE BOARD

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in
good faith in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
The Board has established three Board committees (the “Board
Committees”), being the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of six Directors, comprising three executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”).
As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Ki Chun (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. YUNG Kim Man

Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William

INEDs

Mr. LAM Leung Tsun

Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon
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The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and
experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making. The biographies of the Directors (and
their relationships, if any) are set out in the “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report, which
demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.
Save as disclosed therein, there are no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

Each of the executive Directors has renewed service agreement with the
Company for a further fixed term of three years with effect from 10
December 2021, unless terminated by the respective Director or the
Company in accordance with the terms of the service agreement. Each
of the INEDs has renewed a letter of appointment with the Company
which shall last for a period of three years with effect from 10 December
2021, subject to early termination by the INED or the Company in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.

Throughout the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements of
Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The three INEDs represent more than one-third of the Board, the
proportion of which is higher than what is required by Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules whereby INEDs of a listed issuer must represent at least
one-third of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the interest of the
Shareholders.

Independence of the INEDs

The role of the INEDs is to provide independent and objective opinions to
the Board, giving adequate control and balances for the Group to protect
the overall interests of the Shareholders and the Group. They serve
actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide their
independent and objective views. All the INEDs are free from any
business or other relationships with the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence
from each INED in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
INEDs are independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules. None of
the INEDs have served more than nine years as at the date of this report.
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Board Diversity and Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Company’s board of directors. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of diversity of the Board members to enhance the quality of
its performance. While all Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. The nominations were made in
accordance with the nomination policy of the Group and selection of
candidates will be based on a range of objective criteria with due regard
for the benefit of diversity of the Board including, but not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.

The Company currently has six male Directors. The Company is
conscious of maintaining Board diversity with an appropriate level of
female members on the Board, and the Nomination Committee will use
its best endeavours to identify and recommend at least one suitable
female candidate to the Board for its consideration on appointment of a
Director by 31 December 2024. While conscious efforts are being taken
by the Company to fulfil the board diversity policy of the Company, all
appointments are ultimately made on a merit basis taking into account
available and suitable candidates.

The Nominations Committee will review the implementation of the board
diversity policy at least annually and make recommendation on any
proposed changes to the Board for the Board’s review and approval to
ensure its continued appropriateness and effectiveness. The Board and
the Nomination Committee had reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the board diversity policy and was of the view that the
board diversity policy and its implementation was sufficient and effective.

For recruiting potential successors to the Board to achieve Board
diversity including gender diversity, the Board has prepared a list of
desirable skills, experience, qualifications, gender or perspectives which
the candidate should have. If the Board determines that an additional or
replacement Director is required, it will deploy multiple channels for
identifying suitable director candidates, including referral from Directors,
shareholders, management, advisors of the Company and external
executive search firms.
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Workforce Diversity

As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio (male to female) in the
workforce (including senior management) of the Company is around
138:55. The Company recognises the important of gender diversity and
endeavours to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of the
Company (including the Board). In order to further promote gender
diversity within the Group, the Company endeavours to ensure that there
is gender diversity during the recruitment of staff members at mid to
senior level and provide training and long-term development opportunities
to its female staff members, hence there will be a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to our Board. The Board
considered that gender diversity of the workforce of the Group has been
well maintained during the Year. As such, the plan for the Group in terms
of gender diversity in workforce is to maintain the balance of gender
diversity in the foreseeable future. The Group also endeavours to provide
job applicant and employees with equal opportunities of employment and
promotion, and prohibits all forms of discrimination on gender, religion,
race, disability or age within the Group.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies of
the Group, setting objectives and business development plans, assuming
responsibility of corporate governance and monitoring the performance
of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the managing director of the
Company, is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans
established by the Board and reporting on the Group’s operations to the
Board on a regular basis to ensure effective performance of the Board’s
responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s
senior management to fulfill their duties. Independent professional advice
can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at
the Group’s expense upon their request. In accordance with code
provision D.1.2 of the CG Code, all the Directors have been provided
with monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial position
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

Mechanism ensuring sufficient independence views to the
Board

The Board recognises Board independence is critical to good corporate
governance. The Company has put in place the mechanisms to ensure a
strong independence element on the Board, which are summarised
below:
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Board Composition

The Board endeavours to ensure the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one-third of the Board
members being independent non-executive Directors (or such higher
threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules from time to time).

Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed by the Listing
Rules as to the composition of certain Board committees, independent
non-executive Directors will be appointed to other Board committees as
far as practicable to ensure independent views are available.

Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee shall strictly adhere to the nomination policy
and the independence assessment criteria as set out in the Listing Rules
with regard to the nomination and appointment of independent non-
executive Directors.

Each independent non-executive Director is also required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change in his own
personal particulars that may materially affect his independence.

The Nomination Committee is mandated to assess annually the
independence of all independent non-executive Directors by reference to
the independence criteria as set out in the Listing Rules to ensure that
they can continually exercise independent judgement.

Decision Making

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are entitled
to seek further information and documentation from the management on
the matters to be discussed at board meetings. They can also seek
assistance from the Company’s company secretary and, where
necessary, independent advice from external professional advisers at the
Company’s expense.

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) shall not
vote or be counted in the quorum on any board resolution approving any
contract or arrangement in which such Director or any of his close
associates has a material interest.

The Board had made an annual review on the implementation of the
abovementioned mechanisms and was of the view that the
abovementioned mechanisms had been satisfactorily implemented.
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Continuing Professional Development

In compliance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, training,
briefing and updates on the latest development of the Listing Rules in
connection with the environmental, social and governance reporting,
internal control and risk management and other applicable regulatory
requirements have been provided to each Director during the Year to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. All the Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in these respects, and have submitted their training records to the
Company. Continuing briefings and professional development for the
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

The individual training record of each Director during the Year is
summarised below:
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Attending training course(s)/
reading materials

Name of Director g SRR HMEER
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. CHAN Ki Chun BRI A v
Mr. YUNG Kim Man BRI 4 v
Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William BB L v
INEDs BAKEHITES

Mr. LAM Leung Tsun MRERE vV
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick EERIEE v
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon PR %01 2 S A v

Board attendance

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least 4 regular
Board meetings should be held in each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of a majority of the Directors, either in
person or through other electronic means of communication. Accordingly,
the Board will schedule to have at least four regular meetings in a year.
Other board meetings will be held if necessary.
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During the Year, a total of 4 Board meetings and one annual general
meeting (the “2022 AGM”) of the Company were held and the attendance
records of the respective Directors at the Board meetings and the 2022
AGM are set out below:
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Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year

FRHFERE BREHRE

Board Meetings 2022 AGM
—EC-CF

Name of Director EENA EE Y F REBERS
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Ki Chun PR B E St A 4/4 1/1
Mr. YUNG Kim Man BRI E 4/4 1/1
Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William BB L 4/4 1/1
INEDs BAEHITES
Mr. LAM Leung Tsun MEE& A 4/4 1/1
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick EREAE 4/4 11
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon ek 2 5 A 4/4 11
DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES EERTHEMNSE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on the
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions that may
be taken against the Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual
basis by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Group’s affairs and assist the Board in the execution of its
responsibilities. Each of these committees has specific written terms of
reference which clearly outline the committee’s authority and duties, and
which require the committee to report its decisions or recommendations
to the Board. All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or professional
advice if considered necessary.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 19 November
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and code provision D.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Jim Fun Kwong,
Frederick, Mr. Lam Leung Tsun and Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon. Mr. Jim
Fun Kwong, Frederick has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, and is the INED with the appropriate professional
qualifications.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things, to
assist the Board by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of
the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, to monitor relationship with external auditor of the
Group, to review the Group’s financial information, to oversee the audit
process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board.

The members of the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a year.
During the Year, the Audit Committee has held 3 meetings. The
attendance records of the respective members of the Audit Committee at
its meetings are set out below:

ENZBENIRRAR/ (AT ENEH’ERH
AEBEPBERMER - FAREERAREGIERE
BARNBLERHHEFSUREE R EE RS
AR - BRI ARENMEER  EREX
BFAMBTEESRKNEMBERET -

ERZBENBREFELHEMA - FR - BRZ
BEgCAM=-XRgH FHERZEENEBLES

Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year

FRAHERE BRERIE

Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick (Chairman)
EEEE (FE)
Mr. LAM Leung Tsun

MEEEAE
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon
ReR ) 2t 5 A

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is
set out as follows:

i. reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Previous Year”) and for the 6
months ended 30 June 2022;

ii. reviewed the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group during the Previous Year;

ii.  reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement of the deed of
non-competition executed by the controlling shareholders of the
Company in favour of the Group in the Previous Year;

iv.  recommended the Board on the re-appointment of external auditor
at the 2022 annual general meeting;

V. reviewed the external auditor’s statutory audit scope for 2022 and
their independence of the external auditor and approved its
engagement;

vi.  reviewed and recommended the Board to adopt certain corporate
governance policies including the Anti-Corruption Policy and
Whistleblowing Policy; and

vii.  reviewed and approved the adoption of Policy and Provision of
Non-Assurance Services by Auditor of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 19
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Hung, Simon and Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick and one executive
director, namely Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, William. Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon
has been appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among other
things, to establish and review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. Details of the remuneration
paid to the Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in
notes 8 and 9, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the Year, excluding the remuneration paid to the Directors and
the five highest paid employees as disclosed in notes 8 and 9,
respectively, are set out below:

o

/\-/-\—\\ =+
E/é#&%

"

yMEES

ARBAR—FT-—RFE+-A+NHAKIFMEES
W AR AR b AR R 5E 3.25 16k S b DA ST A2 5T A
NHFEAIGFA L EEHERE - FHZESHMA
BN TEERAELALERER L EER—BH
TERLREBELLAER - RYIMEEER TR
ZEEXIRF -

FHZEENEIBRAR(ATFEE) FIELRIE
ENESRERENHIBERERE - L ERI#®T
EEaMEEBNTHGEARESSREES -
EENRARSFHEENFIFIED DI ENAF R
AP mAMEs RO -

FASREEEBKENFHMEE(TEED IR E
BROWBEMNEENALRSHEENFM) FI5H
BT

Number of individual

Remuneration band (HK$’000) Mg E (FE ) AB
0-1,000 021,000 2
1,000-2,000 1,000 £ 2,000 6

The Remuneration Policy of Directors

Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing to the
Group’s success. To ensure the ability to attract and retain talents, the
Group’s remuneration policy of Directors is built upon the principles of
providing equitable and market-competitive remuneration package that
support the performance culture and enable the achievement of strategic
business goals. The Group’s remuneration policy of Directors is,
therefore, aiming at providing competitive but not excessive remuneration
package to the Directors.

The Directors’ remuneration comprises fixed salary or service fee and
variable components (such as bonus and share options), which is
benchmarked against companies of comparable business or scale with
reference to a mix of factors such as the prevailing market condition, the
Company’s performance and the qualifications, skills, experience and
educational background of the Directors.
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The Directors’ remuneration is reviewed annually and are subject to
shareholders’ approval.

The members of the Remuneration Committee should meet at least once
a year. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting.
The attendance records of the respective members of the Remuneration
Committee at its meetings are set out below:

EENHMEFOSETERN  WAKBRRIE -

%?EM?,E\AWE\FEtiz/J FRE—R-FR - HFHEZ
Egcdf—XRed FHKELEFMNEZE S

BEVFCERE TN

Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year

FRHERE BREHIE

Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon (Chairman)
PR & ST A (/)

Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick

IEE b e

Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William
BREERE

A summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

i. assessed the performance of executive directors, reviewed the
directors’ fees and made recommendation to the Board for
approval; and

ii. reviewed the directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
package and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 19
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee consists of
one executive director, namely Mr. Chan Ki Chun and two INEDs, namely
Mr. Lam Leung Tsun and Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon. Mr. Chan Ki Chun
has been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, among other
things, to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at
least annually and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning
for the Directors, and to assess the independence of the INEDs.
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The members of the Nomination Committee can call for a meeting IREZZESREFNMVEREREMSH® - £ 18
anytime when it is necessary. During the Year, the Nomination Committee #ZZE8€E BB —XA@H - BUKEHFERELZEZE
held 1 meeting. The attendance records of the respective members of @& EeEH T
the Nomination Committee at its meetings are set out below:
Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year
FRHRERY, BREIRH
Mr. CHAN Ki Chun (Chairman) 1/1
FREUZ A (EE)
Mr. LAM Leung Tsun 11
MR ER A
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon 11
PR Il 2 A
A summary of work performed by the Nomination Committee during the IEZZE&MNFERNETH TIERESHINOT
Year is set out as follows:
i reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the i. W EEZEMRE  HJE AR RZENT

Board;

assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company;

. recommended the retiring Directors who offered themselves for re-
election at the 2022 annual general meeting for shareholders’
approval; and

reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the board
diversity policy of the Company.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy setting out the selection
criteria, principles and procedures which the Board adopts for the
nomination and selection of directors, including the appointment of
additional directors, replacement of directors and re-election of directors
for Director to ensure that the board possess a balance of skill set,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives enhances decision-
making capability and the overall effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall make reference to the board diversity
policy and the nomination policy to selecting the suitable candidates to
the Board. The Board shall take into account the benefits of a diversified
Board and the potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board when selecting Board candidates.
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The Board will from time to time review the board diversity policy and the
nomination policy and monitor its implementation, as appropriate, to
ensure its continued effectiveness and compliance with regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice. Details of the
nomination criteria and nomination procedures are set out on pages 112
to 1183 of this annual report.

Nomination Criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for the directorship, a number
of criteria should be considered, including:

° skills, knowledge, experience and professional expertise which are
relevant to the operations of the Group;

° diversity aspects under the board diversity policy of the Group;

° willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the
Company;

° character and integrity;

° for INEDs, whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules; and

° any potential contributions that the candidate can bring to the
Board.

Nomination Procedures

The Company has put in place the following director nomination
procedures:

Appointment of director

(i) If the Nomination Committee determines that an additional or
replacement director is required, the Committee may take such
measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its
identification and evaluation of a candidate, including internal
promotion, referral from directors, shareholders, management,
advisors of the Company and external executive search firms.

(i)~ The Nomination Committee may propose to the Board a candidate

recommended or offered for nomination by a shareholder of the

Company as a nominee for election to the Board and the

appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession

planning for directors is subject to the approval of the Board.
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On making recommendation, the Nomination Committee may
submit the candidate’s personal profile and a proposal to the Board
for consideration. In order to be a valid proposal, the proposal must
clearly indicate the nominating intention and the candidate’s
consent to be nominated and the personal profile must incorporate
and/or be accompanied by the full particulars of the candidate that
are required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules, including the
information and/or confirmation required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules. If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
INED, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance
with the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to
any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from
time to time.

The Board shall observe the Board Diversity Policy and shall,
subject to merit and suitability, continue in its endeavours to
introduce more diversity into the Board, taking into account
professional experience and qualifications, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, and any other factors that the Board
might consider relevant and applicable from time to time towards
achieving board diversity.

Re-election of director

U

(i)

When a retiring director, being eligible, offers himself for re-election,
the Board shall consider and, if consider appropriate, recommend
such retiring director to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
A circular containing the requisite information on such retiring
director will be sent to the shareholders of the Company prior to a
general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

If an INED is subject to the re-election, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board will also assess and consider whether the INED
will continue to satisfy the independence requirements as set out in
the Listing Rules.

Each proposed appointment or re-election of a Director shall be
assessed and/or considered against the criteria and qualifications
set out in the Nomination Policy by the Nomination Committee
which shall recommend its views to the Board and/or the
Shareholders for consideration and determination.

The Board will from time to time review the nomination policy and monitor
its implementation, as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness
and compliance with regulatory requirements and good corporate
governance practice.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all the Directors,
each of the Directors confirmed that he has complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule B.13 of the Model Code, the Directors have also
requested any employee of the Company or director or employee of a
subsidiary of the Company who, because of his office or employment in
the Company or a subsidiary, is likely to possess inside information in
relation to the securities of the Company, not to deal in securities of the
Company when he would be prohibited from dealing by the Model Code
as if he were a Director.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tang Yuen Wah, Rity is the company secretary of the Company.
Please refer to the section “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for her biographical information. All
Directors have access to the company secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

During the Year, Ms. Tang has completed not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules by attending the continuing professional development programmes
as well as seminars covering regulatory updates and professional
knowledge about company secretary duties organised by professional
bodies.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the Group’s financial position, results and cash flows and
in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and principles and
the disclosure requirements under applicable laws and regulations in
Hong Kong. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year, the Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates. The Board considers that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to any events or conditions which may affect the business of the Group
or cast doubts over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the ongoing concern
basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the external auditor of the Company, with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S S ER A% By Bl B 4% B AT F A
REMUNERATION

KPMG, certified public accountants (the “Auditor”) has been appointed ¥ &R SR EHAI =T ([ 8 ]) BEE(E
as the external auditor of the Company. During the Year, the fees paid/ AR TIINBIZEED - X - BEAZEED AR EE R
payable to the Auditor in respect of its services provided to the Group is  EVRRIGEED AT TN EREHFIAT ¢

set out as follows:

Fees paid/payable

during the Year

FRER

EAER

(approximate

HK$’'000)

(BHTFHT)

Audit of annual financial statements FiTFEMBSHRE 1,780
Agreed upon procedures on MNP EERENHERF

preliminary results announcement 20

Review of internal control 25 B A EP 4 115

1,915

The amount of fees charged by the Auditor generally depends on the  AZZETFTUL & — R IZIZ SN Y TIESIE R T1ES

scope and volume of the Auditor’s work. E -

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee FR > EEFCHEZ TSR TE R T TINBZE
on the selection and appointment of the external Auditor during the Year. Bl 4 2 2% o

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT 0 BB $2 1 e G B R

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and % EEERREEASBNERERELAPIEHER
internal control systems and overseeing the management of the Group in  If BS & 7N £ [8) %5 12 [ 4 & b B 18 N (R 3P 2 ) 82 2 1

its design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and axﬁ CHTT M BEER o
internal control systems.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and ZEES B SFEMNEFAEBEKKEBIZMES
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic ~ EMMERIEE MIEE » WHREAEBRT MER
objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains &EAVNEABERE R APIEHER - EES N8
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. & T A EE E R EIE & ASTEHI5E X8R -
The Board is also responsible for reviewing from time to time the BEEEREREN ETLEFEN&R - HIIEE RALE
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control  BER&:HFEE « N3P NI 15 ME REREE -

system, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and

experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,

internal audit and financial reporting functions.

A
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Clear roles and responsibilities are assigned to different levels of
management within the Group. Management of the Group is responsible
for designing, implementing and monitoring risk management and internal
control systems, and is responsible for identifying, analysing and
prioritising risk for further consideration by the Board, and ensuring that
the risk monitoring and control system are working effectively and risk
mitigation actions are implemented within business units.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit department,
however, the Board has put in place adequate measures to perform the
internal audit function in relation to different aspects of the Group. In
2022, the Company appointed an external internal control adviser to
perform periodic review of our internal control system to evaluate the
effectiveness and formulate plans and recommendations for improvement
of our internal control measures and policies. It is intended to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls so as to provide
assurance that key internal control measures are carried out appropriately
and are functioning as intended.

Delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee reviews the internal control
report prepared by the external internal control adviser once a year.
Review has been conducted on the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions on an ongoing basis. Based on the result of the
review in respect of the Year, the Board and the audit committee are
satisfied that the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

The Group has established a set of risk management and internal control
policies and measures covering various aspects of its operations
including, but not limited to: (a) revenue and receipts; (b) capital
expenditure management; (c) purchases, expenses and payments; (d)
human resources and payroll; (e) treasury management; and (f) financial
reporting. These policies and measures are to ensure that proper
accounting records are kept so that reliable financial reporting can be
provided, effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and safeguarding of
assets can be maintained.
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The Board is also of the view that safety, as part of loss control
management, is a vital part of the construction business worldwide, and
if not managed properly, it can be extremely costly not only in human
terms, but also in monetary terms. Therefore, safety is treated as the
highest priority during the delivery of our services with emphasis on
hazard management and risk assessment.

The Group has established safety manuals and project safety plans to
ensure that all workers at our construction sites are well aware of all our
stipulated safety requirements. In addition, qualified safety officers and
safety supervisors, all of them registered under Factories and Industrial
Undertakings (safety officers and safety supervisors) Regulations and
approved by the Labour Department in Hong Kong, are engaged to
monitor and implement our safety system in each construction project.
The Company has been accredited and continuously re-accredited with
ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 certifications in respect of our environmental
management system and occupational safety and health management
system. As a result, the Board is satisfied that these measures are
adequate and effective to promote a safer and healthier environment for
the workers at our construction sites.

For the handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information and, where required, communicate with the Group’s
stakeholders in a timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable all
the Shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in an
informed manner and allow all the Shareholders to engage actively with
the Company. The Company endeavors to maintain effective
communication platforms with the Shareholders, in particular, through
annual general meetings or other general meetings, and encourage their
participation. The Company is also committed to maintaining a high level
of transparency, including open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its Shareholders and the public. The Company provides
updates on its latest business developments and financial performance
through the publication of its annual and interim reports and/or circulars,
notices and other announcements.

Under the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”), the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal procedures of the
Company, the Shareholders enjoy, among others, the following rights:
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Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting (the
“SGM”).

Convening of SGM and Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

Pursuant to bye-law no. 58 of the Bye-Laws, the Board may, whenever it
thinks fit, call SGMs. Any one or more of the Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require a SGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may convene a meeting in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All such
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for Nomination of Director

Any Shareholder who wishes to nominate a person to stand for election
as a director at a general meeting of the Company shall validly serve the
following documents on the company secretary of the Company at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong (7/F, High Fashion
Centre, 1-11 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong)
or to the branch share registrar of the Company (17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong), provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such documents are given, shall be at
least seven days and that (if such documents are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodgement of such documents shall commence
on the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for election of director and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting:

(i) notice in writing signed by the Shareholder of his/her intention to
propose such person for election as a director (the “Nominated
Candidate”);

(i)  letter of consent signed by the Nominated Candidate of his/her
willingness to be elected as a director; and

(i)  the biographical details of the Nominated Candidate as required
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for publication by the
Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’” communication policy of the Company conducted during
the year.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy,
details of which is summarised below:

Shareholders’ Meetings

° Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or
to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their
behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

° Board members, in particular, the chairmen of the Board
committees or their delegates, appropriate senior management and
external auditors will attend annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions.
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Corporate Communications

° Corporate communication will be provided to the Shareholders in
plain language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate
the Shareholders’ understanding.

o Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in
particular, their email addresses to the Company in order to
facilitate timely and effective communications.

Company’s Website

° A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the
Company’s website www.sfkchl.com.hk. Information on the
Company’s website is updated on a regular basis.

° Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange is
also posted on the Company’s website immediately thereafter.
Such information includes financial statements, results
announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings and
associated explanatory documents etc.

° All presentation materials provided in conjunction with the
Company’s annual general meeting and results announcement
each year will be made available on the Company’s website.

Communication with the Company

Shareholders may at any time make any query in respect of the Company
and make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available. Shareholders may also provide
comments and suggestions to the Directors and management of the
Company.

Such queries, requests, comments and suggestions can be addressed
to the Company by post to 7/F, High Fashion Centre, 1-11 Kwai Hei
Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong or by email at
group@sfk.com.hk.

The Company highly values the view and comment by the Shareholders’
and relevant stakeholders to the Company and would invite the
Shareholders’ and relevant stakeholders to communicate with the
Company by employing the abovementioned means. The Board is of the
view that the shareholders’ communication policy implemented during
the Year was sufficient and effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year. The Memorandum of Association of the Company and
the Bye-Laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
s kAR EREBERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ki Chun (formerly known as Chan Kin Chung), aged 66, was
appointed as a director of the Company and chairman of the Board on
24 October 2007 and has been an executive director since then. Mr.
Chan is also the managing director of the Group and a director of various
of our subsidiaries. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and
planning the business strategies and the overall management of the
Group. Mr. Chan has over 43 years of experience in the construction
industry and has participated in various foundation, substructures,
building works, drainage and bridge works. Mr. Chan joined the Group in
March 1989 and was appointed as a director of Sun Fook Kong (Civil)
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) in January
1993 and Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) in January 1995. He has participated in
various significant projects of the Group including the Central
Reclamation Phase I, the West Kowloon Corridor and the Hong Kong
Disneyland Resort project. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan joined
OVE ARUP & Partners Hong Kong Limited, a company which provides
consulting services in building design, civil engineering and industrial
construction where he was primarily responsible for civil engineering
related works, from June 1979 to February 1989.

Mr. Chan is also a director and (in the case of PRC-established
companies) the legal representative of most of the subsidiaries of Sun
Fook Kong Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chan is a registered professional engineer in civil and geotechnical
engineering by Hong Kong Engineers Registration Board and a member
of the Institution of Civil Engineers in the United Kingdom and the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in civil
engineering from the University of Alberta in Canada. He is father of Mr.
Chan Yau Ming, a member of the senior management of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEMNeNEEEERE

Mr. Yung Kim Man, aged 61, was appointed as a director of the
Company on 1 July 2014 and has been an executive director since then.
He is an executive director of our construction and civil division since
January 2017 where he is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring
and management of projects in the construction and civil division of the
Group. In July 2018, Mr. Yung was appointed as director of Sun Fook
Kong Construction Limited and Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited (both being
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company).He is also a
managing director of Chit Cheung Construction Company Limited (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) since 1 June 2011
where he is responsible for its overall management and a director of
various of our subsidiaries. Mr. Yung has over 38 years of experience in
the construction management and civil engineering industry. Mr. Yung
joined the Group in October 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yung
worked with Cheng Kwan Construction Co., Ltd from June 1984 to
October 1990, where his last position was a site agent and he was
primarily responsible for tendering, budgeting, subletting, subcontractors
liaison, cost control and claim submissions.

Mr. Yung is a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Mr.
Yung holds a diploma in civil engineering from the Hong Kong Baptist
College (now known as the Hong Kong Baptist University), a bachelor’s
degree in building engineering (construction engineering and
management) from the City University of Hong Kong and a master’s
degree of science in construction project management from the City
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, William, aged 61, was appointed as a director of
the Company on 1 January 2015 and has been an executive director
since then. He is the chief financial officer of the Group since June 2007.
He is also a director of SFK Housing Services (China) Limited, High Horse
Holdings Limited and Consent Consultants Limited (all being indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company). He joined our Group in
November 1993 and since then he is primarily responsible for our overall
financial and accounting management of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yeung served as an accountant of Kwan, Wong, Tan and
Fong BDO (now known as Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu), Certified Public
Accountants, from July 1987 to November 1993 where he specialised in
their audit practice. Mr. Yeung holds a professional diploma in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
s kAR EREBERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Leung Tsun, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 19 November 2015. Mr. Lam was
previously appointed as our independent non-executive director in
January 2008 in anticipation of the proposed listing of the Company and
he subsequently resigned in July 2008 as the proposed listing did not
proceed due to the volatile market conditions at that time. Mr. Lam has
over 36 years of management experience. He is presently the sales
director of Niche-Tech (Hong Kong) Limited, an advanced materials
supplier for the semiconductor and microelectronics industries.
Previously, Mr. Lam worked as the general manager of Atmel Asia
Limited, a subsidiary of Atmel Corporation (Nasdag: ATML), a company
listed on the NASDAQ Stock Exchange, which is principally engaged in
the design and manufacture of Semiconductor solutions, where he was
responsible for overseeing the operations of the company.

Mr. Lam received a higher diploma in production and industrial
engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in Hong Kong (now known
as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1978.

Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick, aged 75, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 19 November
2015. Mr. Jim is an experienced agent of a local securities company from
May 2007 until his retirement. Mr. Jim joined such company in
September 1996 and he is primarily responsible for dealing in securities
and future contracts. Mr. Jim has over 40 years of experience in the
financial services industry. Prior to joining such company, he served as
an investment consultant in Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited, a stock
brokerage company from August 1977 to September 1996, where he
was primarily responsible for retail sales of securities and related products
in the marketing department. He served as a staff accountant of Arthur
Andersen & Co., an international audit firm where he was primarily
responsible for providing services in auditing from November 1973 to
April 1975.

Mr. Jim is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a higher diploma in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Technical College (subsequently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic, now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEMNeNEEEERE

Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon, aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 19 November
2015. Mr. Chan has retired since April 2006. Mr. Chan has over 25 years
of experience in treasury and capital markets and had served various
trading and managerial roles in Hong Kong and Singapore. He joined the
Royal Bank of Scotland plc., (“RBS”) Hong Kong branch as a dealer in
June 1981, and since then he began his 25 years of progressive career
advancement within RBS’s treasury and capital markets/financial markets
business in both Hong Kong branch and Singapore branch. Mr. Chan
last held the position of Head of Treasury and Capital Markets, Hong
Kong, prior to the relocation to the Singapore branch in October 1998.
Subsequent to transferring to the Singapore branch, Mr. Chan was the
treasurer of Treasury and Capital Markets, Singapore in 1999, assuming
full responsibility for the Singapore branch’s treasury and capital market
operations. Mr. Chan last held the position of the Head of Front Office
Infrastructure prior to his retirement from RBS and returning to Hong
Kong in May 2006.

Mr. Chan holds a master’s degree in business administration majored in
investment and finance offered in Singapore and validated by the
University of Hull in the United Kingdom.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Wai Ki, Davie, aged 62, is a director of our quantity surveying
division and is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and
management of quantity surveying, contractual disputes and litigation
matters in our construction division. He is also a director of Build.it
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company). Mr. Lam
has over 43 years of experience in the building and construction industry.
Mr. Lam joined the Group in January 1988.

Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors in the United Kingdom. Mr. Lam
holds a bachelor’s degree in quantity surveying from the University of
Reading in the United Kingdom, which was taught in conjunction with the
College of Estate Management in the United Kingdom.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
s kAR EREBERE

Mr. Szeto Chi Wing, aged 56, is a director of our quantity surveying
division and is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and
management of quantity surveying, contractual disputes and litigation
matters in our civil division. He is also a director of Bestwise Envirotech
Limited and BML Engineering Limited (both being indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company). Mr. Szeto has over 38 years of experience
in the civil engineering industry and he joined the Group in July 1989.

Mr. Szeto is a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (East Asia
Branch) and a professional member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors in the United Kingdom. Mr. Szeto holds a bachelor’s degree in
quantity surveying from Edinburgh Napier University in the United
Kingdom and a master’s degree in arbitration and dispute resolution from
the City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Yau Ming, aged 38, is a director of our estimating division
and is primarily responsible for the overall management of our estimating
division. He is also a director of several of our subsidiaries. Mr. Chan
joined our Group in August 2008 and has over 14 years of experience in
the civil engineering and building construction industry.

Mr. Chan is a member of the Institution and a Chartered Civil Engineer in
the United Kingdom and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Engineers.
He holds a bachelor’'s degree of science in civil engineering from The
University of Alberta in Canada and a master’s degree of science in civil
infrastructural engineering and management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan
Ki Chun, the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. Ho Su Cheng, aged 55, is a director of our construction division. He
is responsible for the overall monitoring and management of projects in
our building maintenance, housing services and property management.
Mr. Ho re-joined the Group in April 1998 and has over 30 years
experience in the construction industry. He has previously worked for us
as quality officer from August 1992 to September 1993 and as assistant
quality manager from October 1993 to March 1995.

Mr. Ho is @ member of The Chartered Institute of Building of the United
Kingdom and Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) with a bachelor’s degree of science in
building technology and management in October 1992 and subsequently
obtained a master’s degree of arts in arbitration and dispute resolution
from the City University of Hong Kong in November 2001 and a master’s
degree of science in real estate from the University of Hong Kong in
November 2008.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEMNeNEEEERE

Mr. Kong Chuck Yui Howard, aged 64, is a director of our civil division
and is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and management of
projects in our civil division. He is also a director of Media Engineering
Company Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company).
Mr. Kong joined the Group in April 2002 and has over 41 years of
experience in the civil engineering industry. He is a member of American
Society of Civil Engineers and Association of Professional Engineers of
Ontario, Canada. Mr. Kong holds a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering
from Technical University of Nova Scotia in Canada.

Mr. Lee Yat Wah, aged 64, is a director of our civil division and is
primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and management of
project in civil division. He was also appointed as safety director and is a
director of Bestwise Envirotech Limited, BML Engineering Limited and
BML Engineering (Macao) Limited (all being indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company). Mr. Lee joined the Group in March 1991
and has over 40 years of experience in civil engineering industry. He is a
Member of American Society of Civil Engineers, a Member of The
Institution of Engineers Australia, a Registrant in National Engineering
Register, Australia and a Member of The Chinese Institution of Engineers.
Mr. Lee holds a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from National
Taiwan University in Taiwan and Postgraduate Diploma in Civil
Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Shum Shu Shing, aged 64, is a director of our construction division
and is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and management of
project of building works in our building division. He joined the Group in
June 1990 and has over 41 years of experience in building industry. Mr.
Shum is a Member of Hong Kong Institute of Clerks of Works.

Ms. Lee Yeuk Lui, Rosa, aged 50, is the senior financial manager of the
Group and is primarily responsible for the financial management and
accounting of the Group. Ms. Lee has over 28 years of experience in
accounting. Ms. Lee joined the Group in August 2007.

Ms. Lee is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. She is also a certified internal auditor by the
Institute of Internal Auditors. Ms. Lee holds a bachelor’s degree in
business administration (honours) from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
s kAR EREBERE

Ms. Tang Yuen Wah, Rity, aged 64, is a director of administration
division and company secretary of the Group and is primarily responsible
for the personnel, office administration, company secretarial and
insurance matters of the Group. Ms. Tang has over 26 years of
experience in business administration, human resources and company
secretarial matters and she joined the Group in January 1995.

Ms. Tang is an associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom and an associate member of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Tang holds a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology
University in Australia and a master’s degree in professional accounting
and information systems from the City University of Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tang Yuen Wah, Rity is our company secretary for the purposes of
Rule 8.17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. For details of her background, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Senior Management” under the section headed “Biographical
details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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The Directors hereby present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group are general building, civil engineering and the
provision of other services, which mainly comprise housing and property
management services, electrical and mechanical engineering services
and BIM services. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
its principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated at 7/F, High
Fashion Centre, 1-11 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 152 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy which aims to provide
reasonably stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders. When
considering the declaration and payment of dividends, the Board shall
take into account, inter alia, our results of operation, the working capital
requirements, cash flow and financial position, liquidity position, debt to
equity ratio, general economic environments and other factors the Board
considers appropriate. The Company will generally propose dividends
semi-annually or annually.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda. Any final
dividend for a financial year will be subject to shareholders’ approval.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and, if consider
appropriate, may modify, amend and change the dividend policy at any
time.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK3.5
cents per ordinary share of the Company (the “Share”) for the Year (2021:
HK3.0 cents per Share), amounting to HK$14 million (2021: HK$12
million). Such payment of dividends will be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Thursday, 25 May 2023 (the “2023 AGM”) and if approved,
will be payable to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company at the close of business on Wednesday,
7 June 2028. It is expected that the proposed final dividend will be paid
on or about Wednesday, 21 June 2023.

There is no arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 22
May 2023 to Thursday, 25 May 2023 (both dates inclusive), during which
no transfer of the Shares will be registered. Shareholders of the Company
are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 May 2023.

In order to establish entitlements to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 6 June
2023 to Wednesday, 7 June 2023 (both dates inclusive), during which no
transfer of the Shares of the Company will be registered. Shareholders of
the Company are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 June 2023.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five years is set out on page 236 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statement.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donations during the
Year (2021: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 155
of this annual report and the details of reserves attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the provisions of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was
HK$12 million (2021: HK$23 million).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company during the Year are set out in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
movements during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed minimum public float under the Listing Rules during the Year
and at any time up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the
written resolutions of the Company’s then sole shareholder passed on 19
November 2015. As of the date of this report, no option has been
granted, agreed to be granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme.

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to motivate the participants to optimise
their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract
and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with
the eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the following
persons:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any directors (including the INEDs) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and joint operations.
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Shares available for issuance

The maximum number of the Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and under any other share option schemes of
the Company (excluding, for this purpose, shares which would have been
issuable pursuant to options which have lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme or any other share option scheme of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at Listing Date, being 40,000,000 Shares, excluding for this purpose
Shares which would have been issuable pursuant to options which have
lapsed in accordance the terms of the Scheme (or any other share option
schemes of the Company). The Company may, subject to the issue of a
circular, the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, refresh this limit at
any time to 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the Shareholders’
approval and/or grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible
participants specifically identified by the Board.

As at the date of this report, the outstanding number of share options
available for grant under the Scheme is 40,000,000 share options to
subscribe for the Shares, representing approximately 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to the issue of a circular, the approval of the
Shareholders in a general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed
under the Listing Rules.
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Time for exercising option and duration of the Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted
and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The
period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the date of approval of the Scheme. Subject to
earlier termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the Board,
the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the
date of its adoption.

Payment on acceptance of the option

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the options duly signed by the grantee,
together with a remittance or payment in favour of the Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the
Company on or before the relevant acceptance date.

To the extent that the offer to grant an option is not accepted by any
prescribed acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably
declined.

Basis of determining exercise price of the option

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price must be at least
the higher of:

(i) the official closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of a share.

(i)
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Ki Chun

(Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. YUNG Kim Man
Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Leung Tsun
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 121 to 127 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
PROPOSED ELECTION OF DIRECTOR

Retirement and re-election of Directors

In accordance with bye-law no. 84 of the Bye-Laws, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company, provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires. The Directors to retire by rotation every year shall include (so far
as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to retire by rotation)
any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-election.
Any further Directors so to retire shall be those of the other Directors
subject to retirement by rotation who have been longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment and so that as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by
lot.

Pursuant to bye-law no. 84 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yung Kim Man, Mr. Jim
Fun Kwong, Frederick and Mr. Lam Leung Tsun will retire by rotation at
the 2023 AGM. Mr. Yung and Mr. Jim, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election while Mr. Lam, although eligible, will not offer himself for re-
election due to his own decision to devote more time to his personal
endeavours and will retire as a Director after the conclusion of the 2023
AGM.

Mr. Lam confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and
there is no matter that needs to be brought to attention of the
Shareholders relating to his decision of not offering himself for re-election
at the 2023 AGM.

Proposed election of Director

Pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination Committee of the
Company, the Board has resolved to propose Dr. Kou Zhihui to be
elected as an INED at the 2023 AGM. At the 2023 AGM, an ordinary
resolution will be put forward to the Shareholders in relation to the
proposed election of Dr. Kou Zhihui as an INED commencing on the date
of the 2023 AGM. The circular for the 2023 AGM of the Company, which
is sent together with this annual report, contains detailed information of
Dr. Kou Zhihui as required by the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the
date of this report, the Board considered them independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company which shall be for fixed term of three years, unless
terminated by either the Company or the respective Director in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement.

Each of the INED has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company which shall last for a period of three years, subject to early
termination by the INED or the Company in accordance with the terms of
the letter of appointment.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the 2023 AGM has or is proposed to have a service contract with any
member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to enable smooth
operation within the Group, the Group offered competitive remuneration
packages (with reference to market conditions and individual qualification,
position, seniority and experience) and various in-house training courses.
Share options may also be granted to eligible employees. The
remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular basis.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management remuneration, having regard to market
competitiveness, individual performance and achievement. The Company
has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors and the relevant
eligible participants.

136 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022

BIAFRITEEMEILY

RIEEWRAEIA3MG - §RBUIFATEEHE
RESHBLMAARARELFERER - RARE
B EESRSMEELIFNTESYRIBY

EER¥EW

BWTEFRCHARRRILRBHE  THEER
HI=F  BRIFRDBIRA B EFRE RS 03 150
TLARRLE ©

BEIUFANTERCHBARFRILRER /Y=
FoBUFRATERHAR A AIRIER E K FRIE
IR

BEXPEEEN  RER-_ZE_=FRREFK
SERNESHERANEBEMKE QR L
A EAARER —FANEEEOEERERSN)
AR A RIS AT o

Bl I 3R

RESIRGEEEET - MRAEEANMBEFTLE
AEBERHUABF NOFHHEE (K2EMRMEA
B B BARKRERTE)MZIEAREIR
2 AEREENAREERERE - FHTBeEN

A
*}’\Eu‘ °

FMZESRERETRARNEE 2BEEFEBR
SREEEFM(2EWMERT - AARBRLKI)
MEESREEE ARFERNTIAERYES
KR ABERSEENER -
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any
emolument during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the
Director or an entity connected the Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Interests in the Company

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company has any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEWRE

Interests in associated corporations of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company’s associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

RA R REBEB RN ER

HE-Z-—"#+-A=+—H ARAEEHR
BITBRABRANGEEEE (EERBFRAPEK
BIEEXVER) RIR% (D ~ FREINR (D Sk EMERE P () E B IR IE
BEHEREIEIEHIEXVIE7 RSO HBAEMNEA AR R
B TR SAR (BIEREES MBS KRINE
BESOREFR AENERIURR) « i) EH
BIRES RIS IE0IE 352 G BB NG &
MeEzRSAR - i) EBRBEZESTABANE AR
AR R RETHESSA R

Number of  Approximate

Name of Shares (long percentage of

Name of Director associated corporation Capacity position)  shareholding
BRHE B BAER

EEgE HEEE SR 54 (F&) B
Mr. Chan Ki Chun Sun Fook Kong Group Limited  Interest in controlled corporation 97,599 3.54%

PREUZ %A (the “SFK Group”) (Note 1)

b EEER AR Sy EE R (1)
([FrEAsE))

Note 1: Mr. Chan Ki Chun beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Growth Asset MisE1: R B OZ % 4 E % ¥ A Growth Asset Holdings Limited
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited ([Growth Asset| - fE R BHR KBS MK L BERAF)
liability (“Growth Asset”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan Ki Chun is deemed to be 2HMEBITRA - REBEBHRPEIRD - BREUZ S EHR
interested in the 97,599 shares of SFK Group held by Growth Asset. #3BA Growth Asset PIT#5 #7148 7 £ (811 97,699 IR iX 15 F #E

S -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors B EXFIHBREN  HE_T-__F+_A=1—

nor chief executive of the Company has registered any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) which were required to be naotified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2022, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company)
had or deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short position in the
Shares, the underlying Shares or the debentures of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of

EEHE

FERRRAELFIRG HEAKGREE
ENREERAE

BEERA BE_E-_—_F+-A=+—H UT
AT (BEERAQABERITHABRIN) RARQ AR
7 EERONEEETHREKRELEEERR
BESHRIAEEMEXVBE2 RIDBIEETHE
MR ESA R ARBRARRREES LS

Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register S 1{&0I5 336 (K BRE 2 R S0 MaotEss & 504
of interests required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the & :
SFO:
Approximate
Number of Shares percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest (long position) shareholding
RHBE BARR
BRRHEEB EEME (##8) Aotk
SFK Group Beneficial owner (Note 1) 300,000,000 75%
MEARE Ema A1)
Good Target Limited Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
(“Good Target”) (Notes 1 and 2)
RiEE g (M1 R2)
Ocean Asset Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
(“Ocean Asset”) (Notes 1 and 2)
EEEE g (1 k2)
Mr. Lo Kai Shui (“Mr. Lo”) Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 300,000,000 75%
BRURFTE(TEEE]D RinRE R (M 2)
Mr. Hu Liang Ming Raymond Beneficial owner 12,000,000 3%
ibEL Pt EmBEAA
Mr. Hu Liang Ming Raymond Beneficiary of a trust 10,000,000 2.5%
[ibEL P BEERmA

Note 1: SFK Group, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
is owned as to approximately 71.39% by Good Target, 18.94% by Ocean Asset,
3.54% by Growth Asset, 1.94% by Chief Champion Limited, 1.46% by Jemrick
Holdings Limited, 1.06% by KSL Management Limited, 0.83% by LHS Management
Limited, 0.46% by Worldrich Enterprises Limited, 0.22% by Easespeed Limited and
0.16% by Global Trinity Limited.

Note 2: Good Target, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Lo. Ocean Asset, a company incorporated in
the Biritish Virgin Islands with limited liability is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr.
Lo. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lo is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
SFK Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons who had or deemed or taken to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
required to be recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

M1 R EERERBERARHEEMAINERAR - A
Good Target * Ocean Asset * Growth Asset » Chief Champion
Limited + Jemrick Holdings Limited + KSL Management
Limited * LHS Management Limited + Worldrich Enterprises
Limited + # % 55 BR ‘2 &) K& Global Trinity Limited 2 31l # & 49
71.39% ~ 18.94% ~ 3.54% ~ 1.94% ~ 1.46% ~ 1.06% *
0.83% ~ 0.46% ~ 0.22% £20.16% °

ff{5E2 :Good Target BIr KB # B RBES M IMWAER AR - A%
FEBEEEA - Ocean Asset BIERE# B RS EMA
VHBRAR  ABRAEERZEERA - BEEFRBEER
Bl - BEEWRBRITEAEESEORN R R ERS

BREXFEEEN BHE_T_—_F+-_A=1+—
B RESAALETAEMALRARRRD - 8
RN RERETHRERRRUEERBAREES
K BB A6 58 XV BB 58 2 Je 3 70 AR 6 S/ T R 32 1) (47T
REIRE  HALERARRREESFLREF
I 336 IRRFEZ HaBE LM EAEIAR -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEWRE

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST

Save as disclosed herein, apart from transactions carried out in the
normal course of business, there were no contracts of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts of any significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by
a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The deed of non-competition dated 19 November 2015 has been
entered into by SFK Group, Good Target and Mr. Lo, the controlling
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules
(collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of the Company
regarding certain non-competition undertakings given by the Controlling
Shareholders in favour of the Company. The details of the deed of non-
competition have been disclosed in the section headed “Relationship
with our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has given an annual declaration to
the Company confirming that he/it has complied with the non-compete
undertakings provided to the Company under the said deed of non-
competition. The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance and
enforcement of the non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all the
undertakings thereunder have been complied for the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group’s top five customers (where various
departments of the Hong Kong Government were considered
individually), all of which are based in Hong Kong, collectively accounted
for approximately 89.5% (2021: 89.3%) of the Group’s total revenue for
the Year. The largest customer accounted for approximately 55.8% of
the Group’s total revenue for the Year (2021: 54.1%)).

During the Year, purchases from the Group’s top five suppliers, all of
which are based in Hong Kong and are independent third parties,
collectively accounted for approximately 15.7% (2021: 17.6%) of the
Group’s total purchase costs for the Year. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 3.8% of the Group’s total purchase costs for the Year
(2021: 4.5%).

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
respective close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had any interest in any of the Group’s top five
customers or suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or in existence during the Year.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Part of the material related party transactions set out in note 23(a) to the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the remuneration of the
Directors constitute connected transactions exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material
related party transactions disclosed in note 23(a) to the consolidated
financial statements did not fall under the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case may
be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there was no connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction of the Company as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules which is required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the Year was there any permitted indemnity provisions
(whether made by the Company or otherwise) being in force for the
benefit of any Directors of the Company, or of its associated company.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is included in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report on pages 5
to 30. Such business review forms part of this Report of the Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material
importance and so far as the Directors are aware, no litigation or claim of
material importance is pending or threatened by or against the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Board is not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure that has
taken place subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report on
pages 100 to 120.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
KPMG, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the 2023 AGM. A resolution for their re-appointment as
the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Ki Chun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023

# The English names are translations from their Chinese names. If there is any
inconsistency, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG!

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
SFK Construction Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SFK
Construction Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 151 to 235, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
8 3 1% BRD S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) MRBEHERE)

Contract accounting estimates

BREEHEE

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(l) and 1(t)(i)(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

FLRRE AR T3 RAF S FBRARMGE10) R 1)) (@) FHIEEFBR

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEE BFNET A EEZEE

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of general building and  Our audit procedures to assess contract accounting
civil engineering services totalling HK$3,390 million for the year ended estimates included the following:
31 December 2022.

HPEHE A OGN EREFBREUTRE
HE-"T-—#+-A=1+—HIEE"

BB GR I — R
Bt AR TR RS MOS8 55 3,300 FT

JC ° ° assessing the design, implementation and

operating effectiveness of key internal controls
Contract revenue is recognised over time using the output method, over the contract revenue recognition processes;

based on direct measurements of the value of services delivered or
surveys of work performed and the estimated total revenue for the o  FFfE¥ & QU ERIRIZ A BE R IBIEH R

contracts entered into by the Group. Contract costs are recognised i B R ER S
when work is performed, together with any provisions for expected
contract losses. ° discussing with the Group management and
project directors the performance of the major
BHREEREEFEERNRBAEREIBAENEEAE & contracts in progress during the year and
SEET LA ORNEFHBRGERAE D AEREER o 6 KR EARE challenging the key estimates and assumptions
ITIVERFHERR » BRITEH G X BB EEE - adopted in the forecast of contract revenue and
contract costs, including estimated costs to
The recognition of revenue and profit/loss relies on management’s completion, the recognition of variation orders,
estimate of the final outcome of each contract which involves the the adequacy of contingency provisions and their
exercise of significant management judgement, particularly in assessment of potential liquidated damages for
forecasting the costs to complete a contract, in valuing contract contracts which are behind schedule, by
variations, claims and liquidated damages, in estimating the amount of obtaining and assessing information in
expected losses and in assessing the ability of the Group to deliver connection with the assumptions adopted,
services according to the agreed timetable. including contract agreements and sub-
Wik Foaf EENERABRNEREEHSHANNERE RN contracts, confirmations from and
BRI RITEEREREHE - LERETRATKA LRI - correspondence with customers regarding
FIEAEHNEE  BRREVEES  HBEEHASESEARTE & contract variations and claims and by considering
SEIRE R E MR ERERREEE N FE - historical outcomes for similar contracts;

o  FRERNHEEMRANBRREBNER (R
BENWERDBEAYN FEPHAHNEHLE
ROBERALEAEFNBE)AMBEBEBELS
MMESLAER 2 SREEEENABAE
A FEALEETNEONERT HETERE
#Was I B # RSB BT ER AR RO BR 42 (A AT SR R AR
ROES  BRMATHNTEAKES  SHEER
R BRIHEENFR T ER AR RN EER
E|MBEENRESOME
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B N % BRD S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) MRBEHERE)

Contract accounting estimates

BREEHEE

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(l) and 1(t)(i)(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

FLRRE BRI T 3 R B FBRRMGE10) R 1)) (@) FHIEEFBR

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEE R ETT N REEZEE

We identified contract accounting estimates as a key audit matter ® obtaining a detailed breakdown of the total
because the estimations of the total revenue and total costs to estimated costs to completion for major
complete contracts are inherently subjective and require significant contracts in progress during the year and

comparing, on a sample basis, actual costs
incurred to-date and cost estimates to
agreements, certifications or correspondence
with subcontractors and suppliers and other
documentation referred to by management in its
assessment of the estimated costs to

RSSO REHESREARRBREE - BARNIRERA BN completion;

BRAGHRAAG B ABEEANEREHN RETRERS

B RA DR AT MR TR ERES AL (REURENS o  BEEREAETHEEA NN ERETEN

RI)BBA RN AR SEHREAZE - REEEEM - LB R L RESEAY
BRERAAGEER 2o 0mREmERn
B3 - BB RIBIAARE BB A (2t
RABHRIR P E AT

management judgements and estimations and because errors in the
forecast of contract revenue and contract costs could result in a
material variance in the amount of profit or loss recognised from
contracts to date and, therefore, in the current period.

° comparing the contract revenue recognised for
the major contracts in progress during the year
with reference to the certifications from the
professionals appointed by the customers or
payment applications from the in-house
surveyor;

o HHMFARALEETHEARSOBERNE O
HAXEEFRENEXALTHRELANMAE
BREOf SRR R 2 HITHILL

° conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to
observe the progress of individual contracts and
discussing with site personnel the status of each
project and evaluating whether the project
progress was consistent with the agreed
timetable and the Group’s financial accounting
records;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
8 3 1% BRD S
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) MEBETER )

Contract accounting estimates

BREEHEE

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(l) and 1(t)(i)(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

FLRRE BRI BRAR M T 3 RAF B FBRARMGE10) R 1)) (@) FHIEEFBR

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREETEE BN ET A EEZEE

° performing a retrospective review for completed
contracts with final account received during the
current year by comparing the final outcome of
the contracts to previous estimates made for
those contracts to assess the reliability of the
management’s forecasting process; and

s BBEKAHNNEKKREREZAMHZESHIEL
MERHETE L YAFED ERL BB HER
FREMANETREESER  UFHERER
ARIZRI AT SEIE ¢

° inspecting a sample of contract agreements with
customers and subcontractors to identify key
terms and conditions, including contracting
parties, contract period, contract sum, scope of
work, liquidated damages and evaluating
whether these key terms and conditions had
been appropriately reflected in the total estimated
revenue and costs to complete under the
forecasts of contract.

s WMEREHREFP LD BEENAKMREIARETER
RIGEKLGF(RERION 208 a0
B TFEE - BORES) YA ZFRRIE
AR EHEREREA QBN GRS B R
TR AR ISRNEE AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
8 3 1% BRD S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
8 3 1% BRD S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ming.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOI\/IE STATEI\/IENT

/\\/ \

B lm K

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BHE_Z-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

Note $’000 $°'000

B 5T T T+

Revenue &= 3 3,667,077 3,624,511
Direct costs BEMAR (3,589,668) (3,538,798)
Gross profit EF 77,409 85,713
Other revenue H iz 4 33,018 3,643
Other net gain H i F Uz 5 2,052 1,373
Administrative expenses THRAX (63,156) (65,437)
Profit from operations EER 49,323 25,292
Finance costs %Eé &K 6(a) (3,183) (2,4006)
Share of results of a joint venture DIhEETEEE (2,128) (2,298)
Profit before taxation BR AR AT R 6 44,012 20,588
Income tax Fris#i 7(a) (24,261) (2,587)
Profit for the year FERR 19,751 18,001

Attributable to: PEAh :

Equity shareholders of the Company KAFIERBR 18,729 17,426
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR i = 1,022 575
Profit for the year FEEERN 19,751 18,001
Earnings per share — Basic/Diluted SR ER — B #HE 10 4.7 cents Bl 4.4 cents L

The notes on pages 158 to 235 form part of these consolidated financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year are set out in note 20(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

re £ W m R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTT251)
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
$°000 $°000
Tt Tt
Profit for the year FEREF 19,751 18,001
Other comprehensive income FEHMEZEmRE (BRBE)
for the year (after tax)
Item that are or may be reclassified subsequently H & ¢ A E# 7 EE1EmAIEH -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of REEEEINE R R IEHREN
financial statements of subsidiaries &R =%
outside Hong Kong (1) 8
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEAWZEE 19,750 18,009
Attributable to: P
Equity shareholders of the Company RAR)ERIRE 18,728 17,432
Non-controlling interests IR 2 1,022 577
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHWNRHALE 19,750 18,009

The notes on pages 158 to 235 form part of these consolidated financial 25 158 &= 235 B T 54
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR A B AR R

RZTE-_—_F+=-A=+—H

at 31 December 2022
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTT271)

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Note $’000 $°'000
B 5T F Tt
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 11 44,449 57,306
Goodwill [EEES 1,209 1,209
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E 7(c)(ii) 32,082 57,445
77,740 115,960
Current assets REEE
Contract assets AHEE 14 922,071 1,033,739
Trade receivables, other receivables JEE SERFR - E A FEUGRIA K
and prepayments A A 15 331,202 387,563
Amount due from a joint venture WA & EFIR 13(a) 2,340 2,996
Current tax recoverable AT U Bl BVERRR 1B 7(c)) 453 3,614
Pledged deposits [REEw e 20,113 20,113
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIRSEEY 16(a) 262,563 236,837
1,538,742 1,684,762
Current liabilities REEE
Interest in a joint venture REEPENER 13(a) 22,547 20,419
Contract liabilities aHEE 14 126,802 160,533
Trade and other payables FE B 5 AR5k IR ALt JE - 5RIE 17 1,017,247 1,120,943
Bank loans RITER 18 50,000 82,121
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 9,578 13,887
Derivatives financial instruments ESMIA 21(e) - 2,805
Current tax payable FE BNERRR 1B 7(c)i) 538 1,139
1,226,712 1,401,847
Net current assets REEERE 312,030 282,915
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBER 389,770 398,875
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Lease liabilities HeEaE 19 15,705 20,595
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 7(c)(ii) 2,221 2,686
17,926 23,281
NET ASSETS EEFE 371,844 375,594
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR A B AR R R

at 31 December 2022 R-_ZE-_—#+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETT251)
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
Note $’000 $'000
P 5T Srow Tz
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERK#EE
Share capital [N 20(c) 40,000 40,000
Reserves 1 331,819 335,091
Total equity attributable to equity AN T RERRREN
shareholders of the Company AR 371,819 375,091
Non-controlling interests RS 25 503
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 371,844 375,594

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March ~R&ZEeWN T - =%F=H -+t Bt RiEEE

=

2028. 7o
Chan Ki Chun Yeung Cho Yin, William
R = BEE
Director Director
EF S

The notes on pages 158 to 235 form part of these consolidated financial £ 158 &= 235 B Wi i K 2 Z 454 M IBHRE— 5
statements.

154 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

,—\_| /\ —H— \ / ’%:“Z‘ @‘7
™Iy (3 %
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BHE_Z-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARRERRREN
Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
i3 RA  BRGEE EAEE ERRE REERN Er FEbEE  EREE
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
T T T T T T T T
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE--%-F-H 40,000 82,867 81 35 274676 397,659 (74) 397,585
Changes in equity for 2021: —Z-—FEXSH
Profit for the year FERF - - - - 17,426 17,426 575 18,001
Other comprehensive income Hu2mbis - - - 6 - 6 2 8
Total comprehensive income FENEERE - - - 6 17,426 17,432 577 18,009
Dividends approved in respect  BLAT—EE#ERIR S
of the previous year 20(b)(i) - - - - (32,0000 (32,000 - (32,000)
Dividends declared in respect ~ BAFEE T RHILE
of the current year 20(0)()) - - - - (8,000) (8,000) - (8,000)
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-F
+ZA=+-H 40,000 82,867 81 41 252,102 375,091 503 375,594
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AN EERRRES
Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange Retained controlling Total
Note capital premium reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
ik BE  BROEE EXRE EIRE REEN B FERER EREH
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Tr T Tr T Fr T Fr
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-Zf#-8-H 40,000 82,867 81 41 252,102 375,091 503 375,594
Changes in equity for 2022: —Z-—EEXSH
Profit for the year FERF - - - - 18,729 18,729 1,022 19,751
Other comprehensive income  H ft 2 Uz - - - (1) = (1) = (1)
Total comprehensive income 2ENEERE - - - (1) 18,729 18,728 1,022 19,750
Dividends approved in respect  BLAT—EE#ERIR S
of the previous year 20(o)(i) - - - - (12,000)  (12,000) - (12,000)
Dividends declared in respect ~ AEE T REILE
of the current year 20(0)()) - - - - (10,000)  (10,000) - (10,000)
Dividends paid to AR SRS
non-controlling interests - - - - - - (500) (500)
Dividends payable to JEIT IR AR R AR B
non-controlling interests - - - - - - (1,000) (1,000)
At 31 December 2022 R-B-=F
+=ZB=+-H 40,000 82,867 81 40 248831 371,819 25 371,844

The notes on pages 158 to 235 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
cEEEMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETT251)
2022 2021
—E-CF T
Note $000 $000
M &E T T
Operating activities REEH
Profit before taxation B 750 Al A 44,012 20,588
Adjustments for: BT BIBELHAE
— Interest income — FLSMA 4 (533) (112)
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — HE—FHNB AR MK 5 = (1,944)
— Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, - Hj%%ﬁ W5 B R A
plant and equipment ki), BEFE 5 (1,105) 533
— Net realised and unrealised gains on - ’O\T@E@%ﬁlﬁﬁ’ﬂaﬁfﬁ
derivative financial instruments RAEBRWEFE 5 (1,034) (79)
— Finance costs — BB 6(a) 3,183 2,406
— Depreciation — & 6(c) 27,184 42 241
— Share of results of a joint venture — D1EA ”Wﬁﬁﬁﬁz 2,128 2,298
— Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) — NEEIE (W) F8 138 (137)
Changes in working capital: BEESEY
— Decrease in contract assets — AHNBERD 111,668 81,951
— Decrease in trade receivables, — BB SR EfER
other receivables and prepayments FIBRENFERD 56,448 11,081
— Decrease in contract liabilities —AHaERd (33,731) (28,570)
— Decrease in trade and other payables — BNESRIR
Hith e IER D (104,696) (144,781)
— Decrease in derivatives financial instruments —TEEBMIERD (1,771) (3,283)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BERSE/ (A BRS 101,891 (17,808)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid), net RE/(BM)BEANEH 38 3,097 (500)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEME/ (R RETFE
operating activities - 104,988 ___________ (18308)
Investing activities RETEE
Payment for the purchase of property, BEWE  BERSENR
plant and equipment (8,407) (11,732
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BFE RZEETIE
plant and equipment 1,174 1,777
Repayment from a joint venture REREDEMNER 3,752 10,779
Advances 1o a joint venture e EPERR (3,096) (9,668)
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary HE—HMBARMEIIEA - 1,945
Interest received B UHE 446 112
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMARSTE (6,131) (6,787)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH

FLOW STATEMENT

\t E
,\\/ \ Eﬁ, i /}”_] E i%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BHE_Z-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)
2022 2021
—E-C—F T
Note $°000 $'000
M Tr T
Financing activities BMETH
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFAERIE 16(p) 250,000 390,000
Repayment of bank loans BEIEITER 16(b) (282,121) (508,296)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEHERER 16(b) (15,188) (27,337)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EREENFIEEER 16(b) (735) (1,604)
Interest paid ERFE 16(b) (2,448) (802)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders RIZARR AR IR BRI AR 8
of the Company 20(b) (22,000) (40,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests mFEE R SR R AR B (500) -
Net cash used in financing activities mEZBHAREE® (12992 (188,039)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash REeRBEEEE %
and cash equivalents #im,/ CRd) B 25,865 (213,134)
Cash and cash equivalents FUNRERALEEY
at the beginning of the year 16(a) 236,837 449,827
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Ezgmns e (139) 144
Cash and cash equivalents FRNEERAECEEY
at the end of the year 16(a) 262,563 236,837

The notes on pages 158 to 235 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

AN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

158

B 75 ¥R & M &

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

General information

SFK Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in construction and maintenance projects
in Hong Kong, construction projects in Macau, housing and
property management services in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and electrical and
mechanical engineering services in Hong Kong. The
Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 17 October 2007
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). The
Company’s shares were listed on The Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 10 December 2015.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 1(d) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current accounting
period reflected in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
and the Group’s interest in a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
derivative financial instruments (see note 1(h)) are stated at
their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

—  Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

— Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

— Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts —
cost of fulfilling a contract

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in a joint venture (see note 1(f)(i)) or an
associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an

investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(iii)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Joint arrangements

@

Joint venture

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the joint venture that forms part of the Group’s
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 1(K)(iii)). At each
reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with any other long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture (after applying the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) model to such other long-term interests where
applicable (see note 1(k)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Joint arrangements (Continued)

@

(1)

Joint venture (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

Joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the
particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

164

Joint arrangements (Continued)
(i) Joint operations (Continued)

When a group entity sells or contributes assets to a
joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator,
the Group is considered to be selling or contributing
assets to the other parties to the joint operation, and
gains and losses resulting from the sale or contribution
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of other parties’ interests in the joint
operation.

When a group entity purchases assets from a joint
operation in which a group entity is a joint operator, the
Group does not recognise its share of the gains and
losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(Kk)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)):

—  right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 1())).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
— Properties leased for own use Over the unexpired

term of lease
— Machinery and equipment 5 years or over the
unexpired term of lease

— Motor vehicles 5 years

— Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for leases of
low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised
cost and interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(i) and

1(K)(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@)

Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is accounted
for separately from the right-of-use assets in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to investments in debt
securities carried at amortised cost. Any difference between
the initial fair value and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is
not originally provided for in the lease contract that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant
and equipment” and presents lease liabilities separately in the
statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on the
following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables); and

—  contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note

10

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof; and

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)
@i

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated by grouping together customers with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessing
them for the risk or probability that a credit loss will
occur based on external credit ratings.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)
@i

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(t)(iii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

A

1

,_\_|
l\‘/T\

ERE R e

nt

(BmHEAN - UETZ)

FESBE @)

(k)
@i

%& |%ﬁzﬂa/

BEENFEEBRERRE#E)

REETRIARGHNEENEER
B(E)

1EERBANE L7 (&)

BIemTANEERE  FER
B K T e AT Al T 4R M Bl A
HRIEAEETT - M RRARE
BET - RITANEAENEE

A“%iﬁk(llﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂ&f%%@ i
AR ETTOHE o

BHEEEENSHREAHETE
FEtEURREBT AR VISR
UROERERRES - BHRERE
BN TS NEERERR
REW SRR - AEEBAA R
BT AR EWaEEE - iR
BEBRBRERYNS 2 REEFD
REARE -

FHER SN By B E

AR 58 PR 5 1 (t) i) B B2 ) ) B A TS
BeMEENERREE - BRI
ZEMEELBREERE  EUIE
AT FBWAREBE ERHH
B A (BN 42 PR B R B 1B A ) &

sty

= o
Eal

REREAH $‘§@§FM&$%§§
ERBHBREERNE EBLE—1E
HZEH T REERT AKADR
EAETHEZENFNE  SREE
AIHIREERIE -

REBEBRRQA 171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 2% B =

= A

AN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

172

(S HEBI - UET27)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
contract asset is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)
(ii)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised at
fair value, which is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or to
interest rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders would
have charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the carrying amount in respect of the
guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in
the risk of default of the specified debtor since the
issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor will
default has increased significantly since the guarantee
is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The
same definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in note

1(K)(0) apply.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

—  goodwill; and

— investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)
(iii)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). A
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (for example, head office building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
the allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of cash-
generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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(S HEBI - UET27)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (iii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

(m)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(t)) before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(k)() and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see note 1(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(t)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 1(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 1(1)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price.
Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest method
and including an allowance for credit losses (see note 1(k)(i)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the

policy set out in note 1(K(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy

for borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables
are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice

amounts.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring

costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purpose, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arises from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRAE M BRERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts

(i

(ii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of fulfilling the
contract. The cost of fulfilling the contract includes both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the construction contracts or the provision of services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions and
recognises revenue on a gross basis. In determining whether
the Group acts as a principal or as agent, it considers
whether it obtains control of the products before they are
transferred to the customers. Control refer to the Group’s
ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits for the services.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(@

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties such as value added tax or other
sales taxes.

@

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the
contract relates to work on assets under the
control of the customer and therefore the Group’s
construction activities create or enhance an asset
under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be reasonably measured, revenue from the
contract is recognised over time using the output
method, i.e. based on direct measurements of
the value of services delivered or surveys of work
performed and the estimated total revenue for the
contracts entered into by the Group.

The likelihood of contract variations, claims and
liguidated damages are taken into account in
making these estimates, such that revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
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(S HEBI - UET27)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are
expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount of
the consideration under the contract, then a
provision is recognised in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(s(ii).

Provision of services

Revenue arising from the provision of services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

(i) Revenue from other sources and other revenue

@

(b)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 1(K(i).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Related parties

(1)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

)

(ii)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

)

(i)

(i)

v)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRAE M BRERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in these financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATE

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgement:

Revenue recognition of construction contracts

As explained in policy note 1(1)(i)(a), revenue from construction
contracts are recognised over time using the output method. Such
revenue and profit recognition on uncompleted projects is
dependent on estimating the total outcome of the contract, as well
as the work done to date. Based on the Group’s recent experience
and the nature of the construction activities undertaken by the
Group, the Group has made estimates of the point at which it
considered the work was sufficiently advanced such that the
outcome of the contract can be reasonably measured. Until this
point is reached the related contract assets disclosed in note 14 do
not include profit which the Group might eventually realise from the
work done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total
cost or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end
of the reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit/
loss recognised in future years as an adjustment to the amounts
recorded to date.
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3

188

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are general building, civil
engineering and the provision of other services. Further
details regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed
in note 3(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 by major
service lines is as follows:

Wk EBEE

(a)

W 2

AEENEBXHEH—MRETF AT
RREHAMRE BRAAEEEIEER

eV

—FFIBEE BRI EESD)

Wz o 8
BBV MEERE15REEN
RIBRBEBISNELAHK
BB

2022 2021
—=E-— —E-—F
$°000 $000
T T

Disaggregated by major service lines 12 F ERIBR &5
— General building - —REF 2,777,982 2,787,277
— Civil engineering — EARITHE 611,801 608,970
— Housing management services - EEEER®E 55,635 65,997
— Others — Hih 221,659 162,267
3,667,077 3,624,511

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated amount of
revenue expected to be recognised in the future related
to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied at the reporting date is
$5,570,580,000 (2021: $4,274,327,000). This analysis
is solely for compliance with HKFRS 15 disclosure
requirement in respect of transaction price allocated to
the remaining performance obligations. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when or as
the work is completed, which is expected to occur over
the next 37 months (2021: next 48 months).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE

(Expressed in Hong

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date (Continued)

The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 and does not disclose the amount of
the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with an original
expected duration of one year or less. In addition,
contracts that include a promise to perform an
undefined quantity of tasks at a fixed contractual rate
per unit, with no contractual minimums that would
make some or all of the consideration fixed, are not
included as the possible transaction prices and the
ultimate consideration for those contracts will depend
on the occurrence or non-occurrence of future
customer usage.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by segments, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following three reportable segments.

— General building :  this segment provides engineering
services of substructure or
superstructure of building and
maintenance, repairs, alterations
services and additions to building
structures

— Civil engineering :  this segment provides engineering
services of infrastructure facilities and
maintenance, repairs, alterations
services to infrastructure facilities

— Others . this segment mainly provides housing
management services, fresh water
and flush water maintenance
services, sewage water sampling
services, electrical and mechanical
engineering services and consultancy
services

D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 2& 8N - LUETTE5)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

@

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of deferred tax assets,
current tax recoverable and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade creditors, accruals,
lease liabilities and other current and non-current
liabilities attributable to the business activities of the
individual segments with the exception of deferred tax
liabilities, current tax payable and other corporate
liabilities.

Segment result includes revenue and expenses that are
allocated to the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation of assets attributable to those
segments.

In addition, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue, share of results of a
joint venture, depreciation, additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their
operations and share of net liabilities in a joint venture.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022

3

W@k SEBEwE (&)
2RI E ()

(b)

@

DEEE  BEERER

RFHEDBERBRRESBESEE
R AEENRSTRERERN
TEEERERREDHEIGHE
HBERAE:

DHEEBRMBBNEERRY
BE HEEEMEAE - AIR@AD
IR R H A R RIE ERRSN 98
BEBEER D BNEBEBEE
HZENFUA - EFER - HER
BEREMRBEIERBRE - HE
EIRIBRE  EAEEREARE M
RAEIRERID

DURERELBEEDBHEL
HEERUED BHELAREH
BEEEENTERLNONZHE
EAHE D BORBERAL -

BN - R ERIR A B - 5
FABLERE  FE - HERY
@RS BEERE
BAERABLENARTENS
waR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

@

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for each of
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is set
out below.

For the year ended 31 December 2022

R B R R M A

At
(FRBEIEHS - LUBTTE)

W@k SEBEwE (&)
(b) ZEHE(E)

iy 2HB%E BEEREEE)

BHE-_T-_FRr-_T-_—F+=
A=T—BIEFEXF  MAEH
BRETREEERHEARSEER

RFFEN BRBENNEB A HME D
EEOEREIIAT -

HE—T-_—F+-HA=+—HI

FE
General Civil
building engineering Others Total
—REF TRIE Hith @5t
$000 $000 $000 $000
Tr T T Tr
(note)
(FzE)
Reportable segment revenue s DR (FEREER)

(recognised over time) 2,777,982 611,801 277,294 3,667,077
Reportable segment profit BEE D 72,176 (16,791) 50,794 106,179
Other revenue and other net gain -~ E fty vz & 2 i dezs 3,857
Depreciation e (5,372)
Finance costs AR (2,870)
Unallocated head office and AREBERAARE

corporate expenses (57,782)
Consolidated profit before taxation WFLW%}?E # 44,012
Share of results of a joint venture AEhEEE (2,128) - - (2,128)
Depreciation for the year E WTE% 17,264 2,842 1,706 21,812
Reportable segment assets AREDWEE 873,043 375,672 28,744 1,277,459
Deferred tax assets ERHEEE 32,082
Current tax recoverable ] 4 Bl BN R 453
Unallocated head office and AoRALRAREE

corporate assets 306,488
Consolidated total assets RABERE 1,616,482
Additions to non-current segment  FRAREIERE D HLEE

assets during the year 8,650 4,328 1,010 13,988
Reportable segment liabilities AREDBEE(BER

(including interest in a joint venture) & &> ¥ H) ) 745,957 349,343 17,444 1,112,744
Current tax payable ERREHE 538
Deferred tax liabilties EXHEAE 2,221
Unallocated head office and AOBRBERAREE

corporate liabilities 129,135
Consolidated total liabiliies GABRELS 1,244,638
Share of net liabilities in a joint venture AL A EhEAETFE 22,547 - - 22,547
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3
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B 75 ¥R & M &

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

3 WBIRISWBE/E (&)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE (&)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) ) BEE BEREEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T J=—HIIFZE
General Cvil
building engineering Others Total
—MREF TARIE Hit et
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
(note)
(B3
Reportable segment revenue ARED U (FEFREREDR)

(recognised over time) 2,187,277 608,970 228,264 3,624,511
Reportable segment profit AHEDIHT 49,053 8,024 27,151 84,228
Other revenue and other net gain ~ ECfti it zs B E i S zs 3,495
Depreciation e (13,275)
Finance costs Eﬂﬁﬁfﬂ (1,821)
Unallocated head office and AABRBT R ARRY

corporate expenses (52,039)
Consolidated profit before taxation — BrFiAl4EA i Fl 20,588
Share of results of a joint venture MERENEEE (2,298) - - (2,298)
Depreciation for the year FRFE 24,048 2,999 1,919 28,966
Reportable segment assets ARENBEE 975,705 439,028 36,387 1,451,120
Deferred tax assets BERBEE 57,445
Current tax recoverable AU e BV AR IR 3,514
Unallocated head office and ANBEEHRAREE

corporate assets 288,643
Consolidated total assets GREENE 1,800,722
Additions to non-current segment  FNAREFERB D BEE

assets during the year 16,438 1,808 1,300 19,546
Reportable segment liabilities RENDERE (BER

(including interest in a joint venture) & &b £ HiEz) 915,458 325,338 18,082 1,258,878
Current tax payable FERTEN AT 1,139
Deferred tax liabilties %URIEEL 2,686
Unallocated head office and AORBERARERE

corporate liabilities 162,425
Consolidated total liabilities HABBEE 1,425,128
Share of net liabillties in a joint venture DEA S L8 EF5E 20,419 - - 20,419
Note: Others included revenue from fresh water and flush water M5 Huh Rk RiKEERG AR

maintenance services and sewage water sampling services with
a sum of $171,655,000 (2021: $102,539,000) and the relevant

segment profit of $43,427,000 (2021: $21,420,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 KRKIWEE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE (&)
(i) Geographic information iy HEER
No geographic information has been presented as most AR AEERBO KL LEESEEE
of the Group’s operating activities are carried out in R - IR Z25HEE R
Hong Kong.
(iii) Information about major customers (i) BEFXEEZFMNEHR
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the RASEEERB10% BN ENE
total revenue of the Group is as follows: Pl mT
2022 2021
-2 B —F
$’000 $'000
T FT
Customer A ZFEA 2,045,685 1,960,784
Customer B Z5B 647,081 645,439
Notes: BiRE
(1) Revenue from customer A is generated from provision of 1) KEBEPAN W HIEMH — K
general building, housing management and consultancy F EEEENLEMRBEES -
services.
2 Revenue from customer B is generated from provision of @) }( ERFEBM U mAEE —ME
general building, civil engineering and consultancy services. CEARTRRREEREEL -
4 OTHER REVENUE 4 Htk
2022 2021
—Z:-= —E=—F
$°000 $'000
F5 5
Bank interest income RITHIBUA 533 112
Government grants (note) T e B (P 5E) 32,220 -
Others Hib 265 3,531
33,018 3,643
Note: In 2022, the Group successfully applied for funding support from the Mgk : —Z =4 REBKIRFREEBFRITR
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the & ([BBFE]DBENZIAEERESE TR
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (‘HKSAR”). The HEIFENESEY -ZEESHWBENRMAD
purpose of the funding was to provide financial support to enterprises to retain HIRHMBEIEAG RS HEENES - BB
their employees who would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of BigEH AEEAEEEBA2EHLEZZNE
the grant, the Group was required to employ a sufficient number of employees BABEAZHEENES -

with reference to its proposed employee headcounts in each subsidy month.
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AN

5

& =
B 7%y 2% MY RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% ZA48BA5) » LAETT251)
OTHER NET GAIN 5 HMtBKS
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
$°000 $'000
Tt Tt
Net foreign exchange loss i 5 1858 (87) (117)
Net realised and unrealised gains on PTESRTAESR R ARE
derivative financial instruments W F 58 1,034 79
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMRED
plant and equipment Wezs, (E518) 35 1,105 (533)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B ATMKE - 1,944
2,052 1,373
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 RRAERF

194

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRIEATEFITNER(FEA) AT B IRRZE -

2022 2021
—E-C—F T —F
$’000 $'000
T Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) BERA
Interest on bank loans (note 16(c)) RITERHA B (M:E16(c)) 2,448 802
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16(c)) HEBER B (MiE16() 735 1,604
3,183 2,406
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ b) EIRK(BEEEHS)
remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe  TERHAMER 457,364 457,055
Contributions to defined contribution ATERFURIKRFTEIHR
retirement plans 16,230 18,519
Less: Amount included in direct costs B ABER ARG (439,913) (447,992)
33,681 27,582
(c) Otheritems (c) HfER
Depreciation charge (note 11) weEEHAE11)
— owned property, plant and equipment — BEWE  BEMEE 11,892 13,780
— right-of-use assets — EREEE 15,292 28,461
27,184 42,241
Less: Amount included in direct costs o ETARBEKAR R (19,730) (26,629)
7,454 15,612
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ERAN BN & 1,800 1,660
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

7 INCOME TAX 7 FR31R
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) FEWBFRAKBIEE
represents:

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
$’000 $000
Tr Tt
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax EHi#iE — FBREH
Provision for the year FREME 1,169 1,028
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFERERE (1,806) (30)
(637) 998
Deferred tax B 18
Origination and reversal of temporary TREENEEN
differences (o 24,898 1,589
24,261 2,587
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022 is T FRBNESHEERE NG
calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated JER T m K M165%( = F = — F -
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of 16.5%) 518 « EAREEN—HHE QT
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two- REEENEHMREINEER QBRI o
tiered Profits Tax rates regime. For this subsidiary, the first $2 RZMBARIME Fr B2BSEBTHE
million of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the R E F 1R 8.25% E AR T EERTLA
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The FAIZ16.5% B Ht - ZW B ARIME S
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was FISBBER T = —FiRAR LR
calculated at the same basis in 2021. go

A

FRI|FBREEREEER QA 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% S A48 + LB TLE5)

7 INCOME TAX (Continued) 7 FBR#RE
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REABERFENHERIEGH
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: A EVEER
2022 2021
—E-= B
$°000 $°000
F T
Profit before taxation B 750 A1 V55 ) 44,012 20,588
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BB AR A A 2 ERIA
calculated at the rates applicable to (ZHREaAERERR
profits in the jurisdictions concerned wAMRETE 7,095 3,204
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEMNTRA RTS8 2 (6,209) (1,552)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR R RIS & 578 1,032
Tax effect of utilisation of previous years’  Ef:BEFERERTRIEEIEN
unrecognised tax losses Mg B = 67)
Tax effect of current year’s tax losses AERNAFEEHRIEEERN
not recognised k% 8,347 -
Tax effect of derecognition of deferred BUHIERRELERIBEER
tax assets MiGea 16,256 -
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (1,806) (30)
Tax expense IR 24,261 2,587
(c) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (c) HZEBMBMRRARANVFEH
financial position:
(i) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of () HEEHMBRRRAWENEHRIEE
financial position represents:
2022 2021
—g=-= B
$°000 $'000
T T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FABRBNST R
for the year 1,169 1,028
Provisional Profits Tax (paid)/refunded  (21]) iRBEHFEE (1,084) (604)
85 424
Balance of Profits Tax recoverable BRABEFEE AW OFIE
relating to prior year, net ko L = (2,799)
85 (2,375)
Representing: 5 -
Current tax recoverable AT el BN HR R TR (453) (3,514)
Current tax payable JE 1~ BN EATR IR 538 1,139
85 (2,375)

196 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 INCOME TAX (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(i)

4 e B R AR BT A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

nt

(BmHEAN - UETZ)

7 F®RR@E

Income tax in the consolidated statement of (c) HEMBHRRERAMWFER : (&)
financial position: (Continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities: (i) EEHREEERERE:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EE"FAEM‘%W&%%W%%@E’JLL
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BIE(EE)  AENEKRDS
position and the movements during the year are as FRMEEHOT ¢
follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
B
Deferred tax arising from: REATRENELHE: HENTERE HEER Hitr #st
$000 $000 $000 $000
T Fr Fr T
At 1 January 2021 R-Z-—&—f-A 4,002 (60,448) 98 (56,348)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss BN (G A) /% (1,414) 3,003 - 1,589
At 31 December 2021 and RZE-—%+-A=1-H
1 January 2022 R-Z-—#-A-A 2,588 (57,445) 98 (54,759)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss ~ BN (G A) /T (465) 25,363 - 24,898
At 31 December 2022 WZE-__F+-A=+—H 2,123 (32,082) 98 (29,861)
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
$’000 $000
T Tt
Net deferred tax assets recognised FE PSR R A
in the consolidated statement R R R IR
of financial position BEFE (32,082) (57,445)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised (\,i?/.:.\ﬁﬁx}ij(ﬂ% A
in the consolidated statement RAVEER IR
of financial position E{ 55 R 2,221 2,686
(29,861) (54,759)
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(), (d) BB 10) ISR - HINE
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect EEMBREEEREREME - ~KA
of cumulative tax losses of $140,814,000 (2021: $2,479,000) 826 0] A DA SH B 1B AU R SR PER TR T -
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which MR S E W E S RE T IEE B
the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax 140,814,000 7L( = T = — #F:
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses arising from Hong Kong 2,479,000/8 7)) ERIELE M IEEE 1B
operations do not expire under current tax legislation. BIRTBBREN - BBEEEREENT
TEE B &R R o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% S A48 + LB TLE5)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EE#HM
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIFBBCR BERE) 5 383(1) LA A (&
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EEZNmERROIB 2R EMBRELESH
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation BzA T -

are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-E--F+-A=t-HLEFE

Basic salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
BEXES 2H
20k RENFS BEBTEL  BINGTEMEN st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T Fr
Executive directors yirEE
Mr. Chan Ki Chun [ - 1,585 - 73 1,658
Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, Wiliam BRELL - 1,248 - 58 1,306
Mr. Yung Kim Man AR ELE - 1,592 - 72 1,664
Independent non-executive ~ BV FHTES
directors
Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon [l 80 - - - 80
Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick &3¢ 54 80 - - - 80
Mr. Lam Leung Tsun WRERE 80 - - - 80
Total @zt 240 4,425 - 203 4,868
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

SRAE M BRERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

8 EEFHFH®

Year ended 31 December 2021
H2-Z-—F+-A=1+-HIEE

Basic salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
EXHe 28
5549 REMFIE BETAL  RIGHEER it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $ooo
T T T T T
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chan Ki Chun BEE e - 1,585 - 73 1,658
Mr. Chan Chor Tung * BRERLE - 1,499 - 69 1,568
Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, William BRERLE - 1,248 - 58 1,306
Mr. Yung Kim Man &I E - 1,592 50 72 1,714
Independent non-executive ~ BYEHITEE
directors
Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon BR&E 100 _ _ _ 100
Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick &5t %4 100 - - - 100
Mr. Lam Leung Tsun MEEBEE 100 - - - 100
Total et 300 5,924 50 2712 6,546
# Resigned on 10 December 2021. # RZZEZ—F+-ATHEE-
Notes Bz
(i) No director received any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join 0 ER - EEELAEEREEEME  EA
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the year AF AR EB L BB EABBREE (-2
(2021: $Nil). No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the ——F o\ FR - MEEERERRENET
year (2021: $Nil). e (B -—F : &) -
(i) The Company did not grant any share options for the purchase of ordinary (i ER ARV EREEAEEESAQTILE

shares in the Company during the year (2021: $Nil).

PrerOBE R (T = —4F : ) o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% S A48 + LB TLE5)

9

10

200

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 EmmAL
Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, two directors hEGZERHFATH BEREAESR(ZT=—
(2021: three) whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The F:ZR) BENTNEAMEFERE - 5
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2021: =% (ZFZ—F : MB) ATHFHBRED
two) individuals are as follows: K
2022 2021
—E-CF T4
$’000 $000
Tt Tz
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind EZR ¥4 - 285 R EWH = 4,087 2,835
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 225 -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIME R 139 81
4,451 2,916
The emoluments of the three (2021: two) individuals with the —H(ZEZ—F - MB)BRaFTATHEHHE
highest emoluments are within the following bands: IATEER :
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
AE” ANEL
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001 87L& 1,500,000 7% 7T 2 2
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T £ 2,000,000 77T 1 -
Note: No individual received any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to MizE : ER - BEAAER A T WEAEBE A S
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the YEBMASINARNEE %M IEEN s e AR R E
year (2021: $Nil). TR F o E) e
EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 HERF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the FIREREF TR E AN QG L @mERk
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the B E (L% F18,729,0008 (=& = —
Company of $18,729,000 (2021: $17,426,000) and £ 117,426,000 70 ) A R ERE B1TRE
400,000,000 shares (2021: 400,000,000 shares) in issue {3 400,000,00008( — & — — £HF:
during the year. 400,000,000 3% ) 5T °
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREBBER
There were no potential dilutive shares in existence during the REBEE-_E-_— K —_ZE—-——F+_A8
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. =T—HIEFE - WEBEHERY
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)
11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 %X BEREME
Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) EREIEMEER
Properties Machinery
leased for and Motor Furniture
own use equipment vehicles and fixtures Total
REEANNE  HERRE RE BRREE @t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Tr Tr T Tr
Cost: B
At 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-_—#—-F—H 35,402 42,212 78,878 8,288 164,780
Additions NE 4,707 2,129 7,560 - 14,396
Disposals HE (3,923) (20,925) (8,114) - (32,962)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-—F
+-A=1t—-H 36,186 23,416 78,324 8,288 146,214
Accumulated depreciation: ~ RiHifE :
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—%—F—H 7,792 33,194 63,095 3,393 107,474
Charge for the year FRTHE 9,519 7,521 8,998 1,146 27,184
Written back on disposals HE R B (3,929) (20,925) (8,045) - (32,893)
At 31 December 2022 R-Z-Z
+-A=1t-H 13,388 19,790 64,048 4,539 101,765
Net book value: REEE:
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-ZF
+-A=+-H 22,798 3,626 14,276 3,749 44,449
ZEICFR|TEEREREEBR A A 201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% ZA48BA5) » LAETT251)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11 9% - BERE&R (&)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued) (a) EREIEMEER(E)
Properties Machinery
leased for and Motor Furniture
own use equipment vehicles and fixtures Total
MEEAnmE HEREE e NES e
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—-F—H 79,798 41,561 81,021 11,222 213,602
Additions NE 29,699 1,896 6,263 4,669 42,527
Disposals HE (74,095) (1,245) (8,406) (7,609) (91,349
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+-A=+—H 35,402 42,212 78,878 8,288 164,780
Accumulated depreciation:  EiHfE :
At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—%—F—H 30,550 20,830 60,917 5,635 117,932
Charge for the year FRTH 17,066 13,497 9,963 1715 42 241
Written back on disposals HE R # o (39,824) (1,133) (7,785) (3,957) (52,699)
At 31 December 2021 RZE=—
+-A=+-H 7,792 33,194 63,095 3,393 107,474
Net book value: REEE:
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+-A=+—H 27,610 9,018 15,783 4,895 57,306
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11 Y% - BER®EW (2

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets, BITERAVRZEAEES HHFER
carried at depreciated cost, by class of underlying asset is as BEERMFENSTOT :
follows:
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
Note $’000 $°000
B 5t Tt T
Properties leased for own use HIEE AN 0] 22,798 27,610
Machinery and equipment e YN ] (ii) 548 5,037
23,346 32,647
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised RERERZHEMRBNRZIEE S
in profit or loss is as follows: NN
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—4F
$’000 $°000
Tt Tt
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ZIBEE D FENFRELED
by class of underlying asset: TEER:
Properties leased for own use HIEE AW 9,519 17,066
Machinery and equipment 23 K 5% A 5,773 11,395
15,292 28,461
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6(a)) HEBERNE (FIFE6@E) 735 1,604
Expense relating to short-term leases HEHEE AR 21,004 25,336
During the year ended 31 December 2022, additions to right- HEZT-_—_F+-A=+—HIEFE "
of-use assets were $5,989,000 (2021: $30,796,000). This {# 3 # & B 8 115,989,000 (=&
amount related to the capitalised lease payments payable ——% 130,796,000 7T ) ° ZFRIA Ty
under new tenancy agreements. FHEEREBE B EENMEMENES
R ER -
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity FRHER R ABERHER RS
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 16(d) and 19, BB DT 2 718 T B E A M 5 16(d)
respectively. 519 -
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AN

Ara B R R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% S A48 + LB TLE5)

11

204

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11

W% BERRmE)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) EHAEEEGE)
() Properties leased for own use (i) HEANME
The Group has obtained the right to use other AEEZEBEERRESHMYE
properties as its head office and site offices through B M R VE L AR = 5 [ T ¥
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an RNE - —REBERAT ZEHEVH
initial period of 1 to 6 years. None of these leases HRR1Z6F - ZSHEMER
includes variable lease payments. FEAIEAENK -
Some leases include an option to renew the lease for HoHERETEANHRERER
an additional period after the end of the contract term. EEMMEEINEIERE - LR 1TAVIE
Where practicable, the Group seeks to include such T RNEBE D KBIEARERTT
extension options exercisable by the Group to provide FRETRERE IR EES)
operational flexibility. The Group assesses at lease Mo REBNEER S B BT ER
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to BREBETEITHEEMIBRIZE - WA
exercise the extension options. If the Group is not EETRAEREITEEHEE
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options, # o QERBRESRRBEMNZKT
the future lease payments during the extension periods FFAHEB GRS - ZEARKME
are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities. ENROEERREMAT
The potential exposure to these future lease payment is
summarised below:
Potential future lease payments
under extension options not
Lease liabilities recognised included in lease liabilities
(discounted) (undiscounted)
AMAEELEERRERET
ERAREEE(CHR) BERARBEAR(RER)
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CE —E-—F —EB-CE —E-—F
$'000 $000 $'000 $000
Tr Tt Tr T
Head office — Hong Kong BRER — &8 15,073 17,885 10,106 10,106
Site office — Hong Kong THRAE - FE 3,423 5,832 5,267 5,267
(i) Other leases (i) HiHEE

The Group leases machinery and equipment under
leases expiring from 1 to 3 years. Some leases include
an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of these leases includes variable
lease payments.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries as at 31
December 2022, all of which are private companies and the class

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

,_\_|
\m

B MWK Wt

(BmHEAN - UETZ)

12 REBATMKRE
TREFRZZEZ—_FF+—_A=+—BKHBAQ
RIZFE  BBHEIEAEIN THEHBRR
HAEALEQE BFTERGER AT ER -

Percentage of ownership interest

FERERAIL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Group’s Held Held
establishment paid-up capital/ effective by the bya
Name of company and business registered capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
EMEKE/ B BRIRBERA s ] WE
NEER REXHBY SRERGFE ERER ADNRKE DERE  TEEH
Bestwise Envirotech Limited Hong Kong 200,578,047 shares 100% - 100%  Electrical and mechanical
engineering
BERRHEERAR B 200,578,047 i 100% - 100% EIiE
Bestwise — SFK Joint Venture™ Hong Kong N/A 100% - 100%  Civil engineering
AE—HTEEHE " & TEA 100% - 100% +AIR
BML Engineering Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - 100%  Supply and installation
XETRERAA Eh 100/&% 100% - 100%  frERE
BML Engineering (Macao) Limited" Macau 1 share of MOP25,000 100% - 100%  Supply and installation
NETR(EF) - ABRAR) il 1hEkREE 100% - 100%  fERE
2P 25,000 TAIRR 1D
Build.it Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 80% - 80%  Consultancy services
BEERBERARAR & 1008 80% - 80%  EBRMRH
Chit Cheung Construction Company Limited ~ Hong Kong 1,577,000 shares 100% - 100%  Construction and
civil engineering
REREERAT Bt 1,577,000 % 100% - 100% RERIAIR
Consent Consultants Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Project consultancy services
FIEERBRAR 0 TR 100% - 100% JEEEERS
ELM Keen Limited British Virgin Islands 100 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
WEARAR EBGRRHS 100 &% 100% - 100%  #HERR
EE1ETNRG
Everfirst Profits Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Everfirst Profits Limited EBERREE 1RERAERE 100% - 100% BEER
1ETHRH
High Horse Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
BeERERAR EBGRRHS 10,000l &% 100% - 100% AR
EE1ETNRG
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= A

W N

12

206

B 75 ¥R & M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

12 REATNKRE ()

Percentage of ownership interest

FERERA AL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Group’s Held Held
establishment paid-up capital/ effective by the bya
Name of company and business registered capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
EMEKE,/ B BRTREERE/ S 3] HE
DEER REEHY SREARGFE ERERE ALARES DEARE TEER
High Regard Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
BEBRERA SREBRES 1REREE 100% - 100% RAZR
1ETHRG
Intercede International Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Intercede International Limited EBEMREE 1REREE 100% - 100% RAZR
1ETHRG
Media Engineering Company Limited Hong Kong 8,500,000 shares 100% - 100%  Road construction works
FERBIRARAR B 8,500,000 100% - 100% BREEIR
Sun Fook Kong — Bestwise Joint Venture”  Hong Kong N/A 100% - 100%  Civil engineering
Sun Fook Kong — Bestwise Joint Venture” &8 TEH 100% - 100% AT
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited Hong Kong 13,000,000 shares 100% - 100%  Civil engineering and
maintenance
gk (LA BRAR B 13,000,000 100% - 100% +tAIRERE
Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited Hong Kong 4,440,000 shares 100% - 100%  Buiding construction and
maintenance
HREEEARAR B 4,440,000 100% - 100% BFRERREE
Sun Fook Kong Construction Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - 100%  Project management services
Management Limited
HEEIRREERERAR i 10,000 100% - 100% BB EERH
Sun Fook Kong E & M Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 4,700,000 shares 100% - 100%  Hiring out of plant and
machinery and undertaking
electrical installation work
NEARETIRAR, 6 4,700,000 100% - 100%  HBHERERLER
REBRZEIR
Sun Fook Kong Engineering Limited Hong Kong 2,000,000 shares 100% - 100%  Civil engineering
TEAIRARLA B 2,000,000 100% - 100% +AIR
Sun Fook Kong Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 10,400 shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding and
US$1 each building construction
HREERARAR RBURRHES 10,400 R &R 100% 100% - REBRRETRE
HE1ETNORG
Sun Fook Kong Housing Services Limited Hong Kong 75,200,000 shares 100% - 100%  Housing management services
HREETREARAR & 75,200,000 % 100% - 100% RBEERRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRAE M BRERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

12 REEATMRE (@)

Percentage of ownership interest

FERERAAL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Group’s Held Held
establishment paid-up capital/ effective by the bya
Name of company and business registered capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
BRI,/ KL BERTREERE/ s 3] WE
ARER REEHY aRERGFE BEREE ALARES DNARE  TEEK
SFK Housing Services (China) Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
HRBEFRE (PE)ERAF B 10,000 100% - 100% ®EZR
Sun Fook Kong Joint Venture® Hong Kong N/A 100% - 100%  Construction and
civil engineering
BN YN 0 TER 100% - 100% RERTATRE
BN EmREERRHERAEY The PRC Renminbi (‘RMB’) 80% - 80%  Consultancy services
300,000,000
BN R R ER AR HE ARE(TARE] 80% - 80%  EERIMRTS
3,000,0007C
# These entities are unincorporated bodies. # S SRS Th 4 R A M B MRS o
* These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises. * REBRRINEBEDRE -
" These entities are not audited by KPMG. REBERRCESRGMEHMERZ -

The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG
reflect total net assets and total revenue constituting approximately
0.3% and 0.05% respectively of the related consolidated totals as
at and for the year ended 31 December 2022.

REEEZE-_—_F+_A=1+—HIFE "
ZERCEREREHMEBAEZZMBEAR
g mA R EEEFEAREBK RS NS
BRAZEEHEEL0.3% K% 0.05% °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

13

208

INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND

(a)

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

13

REERHNHERRBERSELRM

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE -]
Interest in a joint venture and amount due from a (@) REELENERREKREGELE
joint venture FIE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
$°000 $'000
SFow Tt
Share of net liabilities (note (i) SMEFAE (FEE) (22,547) (20,419)
Amount due from a joint venture (note (i)  FEUCA & 1 5 20IE (B FE (i) 2,340 2,996
Notes: MsE

0] As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has recognised its 0
share of net liabilities in a joint venture as the Group has provided

RZEZZFR=ZT=—F+ZA=+—
H AEEEHEIAELNEECEEETFE
& REAFLEECHEECENRITE
FIRHIER o

guarantees in respect of bank loans of the joint venture.

(ii) The amount due from a joint venture is interest-free, unsecured and (i) FERAEDERBEIE - K NRAR

recoverable on demand. TsUgE o
Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

AEERAZLENBERBED AR
RAMBmERIE - FBEOT

Percentage of ownership interest

FEREREAL
Form of Place of Group’s Held Held
business incorporation effective by the by a
Name of joint venture structure and business interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
il AV r&EE
RELELR EBRERA REE LY ERER ARARE WELIRE IEXY
Sun Fook Kong — Kun Fai Engineering Incorporated Macau 40% - 40%  Building construction and
and Construction Co., Ltd. public works
(“Sun Fook Fong — Kun Fa”)
MiEE - RERETIRERAA RV iy 40% - 40% BTRERAHLIR

([#HRE — 1E])

Sun Fook Kong — Kun Fai, the only joint venture in which the
Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose
quoted market price is not available.

AEFBZHENE-RELENEE — #
ERYWEMGRENIFENERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

B MWK Wt

(BmHEAN - UETZ)

13 INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND 13 REERINEESRERSELER
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 8 (%)
(@) Interestin a joint venture and amount due from a (@) REELENERRERESELE
joint venture (Continued) MIE (&)
Summarised financial information of Sun Fook Kong — Kun ek — EENPBEMSE(BHAE

Fai, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a

EEHABRRZER) BEEMBEREER

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated HEEMHRFEENT
financial statements, are disclosed below:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
$’000 $000
T Tt
Gross amounts of the joint venture’s &8 4%
Current assets TEEE 129,544 265,826
Non-current assets FEREEE 177 201
Current liabilities mEIAE (176,305) (307,291)
Deficit [E5 At (46,584) (41,264)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: 5 A Lt EE N EE -
Cash and cash equivalents HEeMEEEED 319 716
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade &I & EtABE (TEEENE S
and other payables and provisions) AR SR B EL A JE A5 SR TE K B ) = (65,582)
Revenue W25 381,729 1,368,617
Loss and total comprehensive FAEEREEWR AR
income for the year (5,320) (5,745)
Reconciled to the Group’s interestin BEXREEREE DX
the joint venture FEEER
Gross amounts of the joint venture’s BETEFEEEE
net liabilities (46,584) (41,264)
Group’s proportionate guarantee obligation 7~ £ B #1% th I IE R & 15 (M 5T)
(note) 40% 40%
Group’s share of the joint venture’s net KEBREA S EAREREMGR Y
liabilities arising from guarantees ERMELEEREZIFAR
provided to the joint venture’s obligation (18,634) (16,506)
Group’s additional guarantee obligation 7N B #FEIMER T 7 (K15E)
(note) (3,913) (3,913)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AR &EE AR EE (22,547) (20,419)

Note: Notwithstanding the Group disposed of 10% of the interest in a joint
venture at a consideration of MOP10,000 in 2020, the Group continued

to provide guarantees in respect of bank loans of the joint venture

based on its original 50% ownership interest in the joint venture as

mentioned in note 22(b).

A

F |

MEE -

BEAEER ST FLUBRPIEE 10,000

TLHIHRME tlj’iﬁf‘/\%ﬁ%m%ﬁ‘ﬁé CAR
SEEBRMT20)MEERNE ERE
HIRE B0% Fr B i i A B DX MIRTT

BERIRHIELR -

R =p:
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13

210

B 75 ¥R & M &

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

(b)

Interest in joint operations

In addition to the joint venture as listed in note 13(a), the
Group has also established joint arrangements with outside
contractors to undertake civil engineering in the form of joint
operations. In accordance with the agreements, the decisions
about relevant activities in these entities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control and, therefore
management has accounted for the investments as joint
operations.

Details of the Group’s interest in the material joint operations,
all of which are accounted for using the line-by-line basis to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint operations, are
as follows:

13 REERIINESRERSELRR
A (&)

(b)

REEEBHER

BRBIFE13(@) FrFI B B EIN - REBIT
BESNABRBAKKRRY - UAE
EBOPARELIATIE - REBE
HZEERAMADERNARALE
BEGRNET - BRABERIAEE
AmEREHEEREREEEBALR -

RNEBMEAREEBORFBEEER
REEREGLEBHERYIIR - HiES
E3=F NN,

Percentage of ownership interest

FERERAD N

Form of Place of Group’s Held Held

business incorporation effective by the bya
Name of joint operation structure and business interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities

A r58

REERER ERERER REEHH ERER ALQRBE WELARE EEER
CEC — CCC Joint Venture Unincorporated Hong Kong 40% - 40%  Civil engineering
ABETR - RERENE \EAMA B 40% - 0% TAIE
Fujita — Sun Fook Kong Joint Venture Unincorporated Hong Kong 50% - 50%  Civil engineering
Fujita — Sun Fook Kong Joint Venture B AMfL & 50% - 50% EARIRE
SFK — CEC Joint Venture Unincorporated Hong Kong 51% - 51%  Civil engineering
SFK — CEC Joint Venture BH AL B 51% - 51% TARIRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A=A =3
l\‘/T\ Hﬁ ?r% & 2% Mﬁ FIE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)
14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 14 SHEERSHAR
LIABILITIES
2022 2021
—s=-= —E—F
$°000 $'000
F Tt
Contract assets EHEE
Arising from performance under BITEREAYNESE
construction contracts 922,071 1,033,739
Contract liabilities SHEE
Construction contracts FEEA L
— Billings in advance of performance — BITRIEIR 126,802 160,533

The Group’s construction contracts normally include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the construction
period once milestones are reached. These payment schedules
prevent the build-up of significant contract assets. The Group also
typically agrees to a one to two years retention period for 1% to
10% of the contract value. This amount is included in contract
assets until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the Group’s work
satisfactorily passing inspection.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the rights
are conditional on the Group’s future performance. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. The decrease in contract assets in 2022 was mainly
the result of the decrease in the provision of construction services
during the year. The amount of contract assets that is expected to
be recovered after more than one year is $25,984,000 (2021:
$89,732,000), all of which relates to retentions. All of the other
contracts assets are expected to be recovered within one year.

A

AEBRES VBT RREEEMEERDER
MREOMRAR(—BEERER) - IWENHAE
R LBERERGNEE - AEETELALR
EMA%E10%HNENEERE —EMFRE
Hj o Zli‘ilﬁg/a SR TR EN R A EE
TieseimBB BRI AEE - Bt SR A
BHEE - E%ﬂ EHERABILE -

ANEEFBHAEERBO K TRERE
HEENRENEFNERE - BABERNBRR
REBMHKREKIR - BHEBEREFR BEK
HREEERE SRR - fNEER S
FRLEBERHNAFEATIRERERES R
i %ﬁiﬁﬂ%”&ﬁﬁs@fﬁéu&@mémﬁéﬁ
% 525,984,000 T — — fF:
89,732,000/ 7T ) ﬁﬁﬁ%%é%ﬁéﬁi% Cheapc]
B EETAEMANEEBR —FARE -

FR|IFTREELEEER AT 211
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% S A48 + LB TLE5)

14

15

212

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 14 SVWEERSHARE)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the Group’s obligation to EHBETEAAEERNETFEBRRBENER
transfer services to customers for which the Group has received B AEEERRFPWEFEMN R EER —F
advanced payments from the customers and will be recognised as NERABBA - FREIRFITFAEGHER
income within one year. The amount of revenue recognised during B UK %5 6 %8 5 233,105,000 T (ZE = —4F :
the year that was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning 188, 398 000 7T) - AR P HEFTNE -S54
of the year is $233,105,000 (2021: $188,398,000). The amount of BEFEEFAGNE BRI SEBA—FRIK
retentions receivable included in contract liabilities on a net basis B /) E YR E S £ ¥ A 25,293,0008 L (=
for a single contract with the customer that is expected to be Z—4% 71,009,000/ 7T) - BHIT A HME
recovered after more than one year is $25,293,000 (2021: HBEEBR—FAERBIA -
$71,009,000). All of the other contract liabilities are expected to be
recognised as income within one year.
The amount of revenue recognised during the year from FAR - BRBAEHEEER (KEBDEK)E
performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous %’\Jﬁ{ﬂﬁ LE) UK %5 B8 4 81,465,0008 T (=
periods is $81,465,000 (2021: $66,510,000), mainly due to the =~ — 4 :66,5100008 L)  TERHANE
changes in estimate of the transaction price of certain construction ?%**AZ’JE’JX%{EWE’ME ETEEBPAEL -
contracts.
TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BRESHER HUBERRERFEMT
AND PREPAYMENTS ]
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E-—F
$°000 $°000
Tt FT
Trade debtors FEUE Z R 315,411 351,135
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments E b fE 5878 ~ &€ N FEF /T8 15,791 36,155
Amounts due from a joint operation partner  JEUL A& & GBI RIE
(note (7)) (PR @) - 273
331,202 387,563
Notes: Bt sE
(i) The amounts due from a joint operation partner are interest-free, unsecured [0) BURAE EEBBHERBERE BB LAIRE
and recoverable on demand. P qE
(ii) Except for the amounts of $5,610,000 (2021: $7,314,000) which are expected (ii) % 5,610,000 Bt (=ZT = —4 : 7,314,000/ 7T)
to be recovered after one year, all of the remaining balances of trade and other HIBTEE RN —FER W E s - EWE FERL
receivables are expected to be recovered within one year. H b FEWGRIBFTA 8 [ ETEES R —E R kD -
SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022



15 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRAE M BRERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
Ageing analysis

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors (which are included in trade and other receivables), based
on the invoice date (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) is as
follows:

15 BRRHER  HttBBRRER A

RIA (&)
AR 2 AT

RmEMR  EREZEAHCREERAE
AR E %) B WE 5 8RR (T ARIE 5
R N Eo At FEURTRIR) BV BRER D AT AN T

2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F

$°000 $'000

Ft Tz

Within 1 month 1EAR 229,879 335,253
Over 1 but within 2 months A1 EAER2E AR 68,333 9,629
Over 2 but within 3 months BE2EAERIEAR 11,748 2,973
Over 3 months but within 6 months BE3EAER6EARN 5,451 3,280
315,411 351,135

Trade debtors are due within 14-45 days from the date of billing.
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising
from trade debtors are set out in note 21(a).

JEWE ZERF EIREH 1445 RN H -
EAAEEEERRARARKNE ZEZNE
ERRE— B FERME21E)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 16 BERFeERPREMASTES
CASH FLOW INFORMATION #
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BE2RREEEYWERE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
$’000 $000
T Tt
Cash at bank and on hand FITRFERE 262,563 236,837
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b)) BETHFELEENYHE

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement
as cash flows from financing activities.

=
=
=

TABIIBEED AL EA
S (RERERIRLED)HE - B
EEDFELABARRS RECES
ARALHEBRARENEA RS R
SENSBEREEDHEL RS RE
DEYTCR
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 16
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b)

HeRBeERMRAMARTER
216 )

METHEERENYHIRE)

214

activities (Continued)

Lease
Bank loans liabilities Total
BITEX HEEE a5t
$'000 $°000 $°000
S, S, S,
(Note 18) (Note 19)
(HE18) (M3 19)
At 1 January 2022 R-BE-_—%#—-A—H 82,121 34,482 116,603
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRENEE
Proceeds from bank loans BITENAEHIE 190,000 = 190,000
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (222,121) = (222,121)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BREENEAER = (15,188) (15,188)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHEENFEER - (735) (735)
Interest paid BRFIE (2,448) = (2,448)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERERENED AT (34,569) (15,923) (50,492)
Other changes Hitt2 s
Increase in lease liabilties from entering FRETLHHEERHE
into new leases during the year BEEM = 5,989 5,989
Finance costs (note 6(a)) BB A (3 6(a) 2,448 735 3,183
Total other changes Hings)es 2,448 6,724 9,172
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_-f+-A=1+—-AH 50,000 25,283 75,283
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 16
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

(c)

activities (Continued)

(Fr=HEAN

BT 25)

HeRBeERMRAMARTER

216

(b) BMEZFBRELERBENHKRE)

Lease
Bank loans liabilities Total
BITER HEBE st
$'000 $'000 $:000
Fr Fr T
(Note 18) (Note 19)
GERE) (P5E19)
At 1 January 2021 R-E--%-HF—-H 200,417 67,363 267,780
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRENEE
Proceeds from bank loans RITENREHE 390,000 - 390,000
Repayment of bank loans BRETER (508,296) - (508,296)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERHENERER - (27,337) (27,337)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHEEHFEER - (1,604) (1,604)
Interest paid ERHE (802) - (802)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSRENEDEE (119,008) (28,941) (148,039)
Other changes Hit# g
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FREHEESHAE
into new leases during the year BEEM - 30,796 30,796
Written back of lease liabilities WoEEaR - (36,340) (36,340)
Finance costs (note 6(a)) BAMKA (51 6() 802 1,604 2,406
Total other changes Hin@gasm 802 (3,940) (3,138)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB=-f+ZA=+-H 82,121 34,482 116,603

Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement

(c) HERSRHARE
REEAHESRERIIENAREBEERR

for leases comprise the following: EEEATNEE
2022 2021
—E-CF T4
$°000 $'000
T T+
Within operating cash flows KER S MEFIA 21,004 25,336
Within financing cash flows BERSREFIA 15,923 28,941
36,927 54,277
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17

216

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

17 BT RS RHR R H M E A RE

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
$’000 $°000
T Tt
Trade creditors B SN 222,002 211,828
Accruals and other payables TEA B R EMENRIE 459,255 535,998
Dividend payable to non-controlling interests &1~ JE5 A% #E 2 A A% 2. 1,000 -
Amounts due to joint operation partners B A L ESEBERA
(note (7)) (PR @) 1,062 1,062
Provision for construction works (note (ii)) SR T AR (PR Gi)) 17,711 34,332
Retentions payable ERRES 316,217 337,723
1,017,247 1,120,943
Notes: Kﬁﬁf .
(i) The amounts due to joint operation partners are interest-free, unsecured and 0] ENASERBETIETE KB LAIRE

repayable on demand.

(i) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group recognises provision for
construction works when the unavoidable costs of meeting the performance
obligations under the construction contracts exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contracts. The amount of the provision is
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the net cost of fulfilling the contract. The amount of provision
is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

(iii) Except for the amounts of $144,393,000 (2021: $164,914,000), all of the
remaining balances of trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year.

_‘.

SRIEE -

(ii) RZBZZFR-T-—F+=-A=+—H &
HITELEEGNBOREANTAREKRABRBEAS
AFEEEEUS MR EFI R - AEBE SRR
TREEE BESHERURLESONTEHR AR
BITEHHNFRAMEROREENBREE -

AEEEFERIRBEDE -

(i) $144,393,000%8 7T ( =T = — & : 164,914,000

BIT) IR - BB SRR R E AR

AR TESRTASRN —FREE -

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade PREHER  ERNBEZEHNENE ZERATN
creditors, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BREG D AT T ¢

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
$°000 $'000
SPow FIT
Within 1 month 1{EAN 208,454 137,348
Over 1 but within 2 months A1 EAER2E AR 5,234 41,304
Over 2 but within 3 months BE2EAERIEAR 27 13,606
Over 3 months i@ 31E A 8,287 19,570
222,002 211,828
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B MWK Wt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)
18 BANK LOANS 18 ERITE®
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
$’000 $°000
Tt T
Bank loans, repayable within 1 year WITER - —FAEE
— Unsecured — I 50,000 82,121
(@ As at 31 December 2022, the bank loans bear interest @ MWZZE__F+A=+—8B #R17E
ranging from 6.15% to 6.40% (2021: 1.69% to 1.98%) per FIRFENFEE15%E6.40% (=T = —45F ¢
annum. 1.69% % 1.98%) 5T 2 ©
(o) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the banking facilities b) RZEZZFRZZT-_—F+= H

(including bank loans and performance bonds) granted to the =+—H BTAEEH- - AEEEE

Group, the Group’s joint operations and the Group’s joint BRASEEGECENRITHE (BER

venture jointly were secured by: TERRBARSE) —RNATYESEER

#:

)  Assignment of project proceeds from certain () HEAEEETEERGOREAEER
construction contracts of the Group and the Group’s AEMEMNIEBFERIE
joint venture;

(i)  Pledged deposits of the Group of $20,113,000 (2021: (i) AEEEEMFK20,113,000%8
$20,113,000); (=% = — 4 :20,113,000%5

7T)

(i) Corporate guarantees provided by a subsidiary and the iy —FEWBARIRAEDERMHRM
joint venture partner, personal properties and pledged By LR A**ﬂé%%"ﬂiﬁﬁ%ﬁ
deposits owned by the joint venture partner; and BIRLA BT EE R B IIF

(iv) Corporate guarantees provided by the Company and (iv) ARRRHMOPEERUREARFR
cross corporate guarantees provided by the Company NETHBARREAR XD EE
and certain subsidiaries. R o

() Al of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment © AEEMARITHMEHAFE TRmE
of certain covenants as are commonly found in lending REFAMEE  BWERFEBERNES
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to BB ERNEERH - MEAEEER

breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would Rietn o MREABESKRELRIN - K

become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors SETHEREAEHETRELH B

its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the EASEEERSESRBAE —FF

Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 21(b). BHRHFE210)c P-_E-—_F+_A

As at 31 December 2022, none of the covenants relating to —t+—8 AEEHEEREDIRID

the drawn down facilities had been breached (2021: Nil). BMEBHMNEZHE (ZSZ—F 1 ) -
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= /\ /8 =7
AR e B % R R MY AT
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% ZA48BA5) » LAETT251)
19 LEASE LIABILITIES 19 HEHE\E
At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as R-T-_—F+-_A=+—H HEAFER
follows: THEARR AE R -
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E-—4F
$’000 $°000
T Tt
Within 1 year —FR 9,578 13,887
After 1 year but within 2 years BiE1FEER2FR 5,773 7,352
After 2 years but within 5 years BiB2FENSFR 9,932 10,743
After 5 years HBi@|s5F - 2,500
15,705 20,595
25,283 34,482
20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 BF  -EERER
(@) Movement in components of equity (a) REZIPBOEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REBEGEERS MBI KBRS
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set M E RSN R EBE -
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual AR E R E R E D B FE¥ R FRE
components of equity between the beginning and the end of FEEHEHSIAT
the year are set out below:
The Company b /N
Share Share Capital Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
R& R HE BRA G REBEF @i
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
fisE Fr Fr Tr Fr Fr
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-—-%—A—H 40,000 82,867 81 53,003 175,951
Profit and total comprehensive FREHEZAKGEE
income for the year - - - 9,790 9,790
Dividends approved in respect of  BEAT—EE #E A RIIR S,
the previous year 20(0)(i) - - - (32,000) (32,000)
Dividends declared inrespect of ~ FEAREEZIRAIRE
the current year 20(b)(i) - - - (8,000) (8,000)
At 31 December 2021 NZE-_—F+-/A=1+—H 40,000 82,867 81 22,793 145,741
At 1 January 2022 NZZE-_—_%—Hf—H 40,000 82,867 81 22,793 145,741
Profit and total comprehensive FREHEZAKGEE
income for the year - - - 30,106 30,106
Dividends approved in respect of  §hAT—EEH AR A
the previous year 20(0)(i) - - - (12,000) (12,000)
Dividends declared inrespect of ~ FEAREE SRR E
the current year 20(b)(i) - - - (10,000) (10,000)
At 31 December 2022 NZE-_—F+-f=1+—H 40,000 82,867 81 30,899 153,847
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 20 B*x - REEREKRE(#E)

(b) Dividends b) BE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () FRAEGHZESEATEZBRRZ
Company attributable to the year BE
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
$°000 $000
Tt Tt
Interim dividend declared and paid of B &k Mk~ 2 F EARZ &
2.5 cents (2021: 2.0 cents) R @R 2.5
per ordinary share (ZZEZ—%F : 2.08100) 10,000 8,000
Final dividend proposed after the end of FA#R45 BA 7R 14 # K (< 2 < EA
the reporting period of 3.5 cents K EERE RIS B
(2021: 3.0 cents) per ordinary share ZE-—F 3.0 14,000 12,000
24,000 20,000
The final dividend proposed after the end of the RS B R B R 2 REAAR B
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability RRNMEAREREEE -
at the end of the reporting period.
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FAMERKSZA—HEREEZ
Company attributable to the previous financial BERATREERRZBE
year, approved and paid during the year
2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
$°000 $000
Ft Tt
Final dividend in respect of the previous 4 A& IR 2 EA]
financial year, approved and paid —UFEEBH L RE
during the year, of 3.0 cents IR S &A% 3.0 1L
(2021: 8.0 cents) per share —E-—F :8.081L) 12,000 32,000

A
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

C AETT251)

20 BF - FWRER (2

(c) Share capital (c) B
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
BRHEE +8 & B %
$ $
BT BT
Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of $0.1 each BREEI BT L@

At 1 January and 31 December W—A—-BE+-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of $0.1 each

ERTRAR

BREECIETIERK

At 1 January and 31 December R—B—HETZA=1+—H 400,000,000 40,000,000 400,000,000 40,000,000
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LB A A B REIWE T E RIS

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981.

(i) Capital reserve
The capital reserve of the Company arose from the
Group’s reorganisation completed in January 2008.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of financial
statements of foreign operations.

The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(u).
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access
to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings and lease liabilities) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital comprises all components
of equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.

During 2022, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2021, was to maintain its adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio not more than 55%. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

A

,_\_|
l\‘/T\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

ERE R e

At
(FRBEIEHS - LUBTTE)

20 BE - FWRER#)

(e)

%ﬁ |%ﬁzﬂa/

&ErEE
AEBERBEANEZARIREASE

BRI AL E ML ERERRK
FHREENEERSEMAGERAES
BE HMEERRRFRDHRE AR
(UESRE= o Sk

RNEBFER KT E E RN ETRE
RER  AEIRARERIR (AT EREE
BKFE EA) BRATHE AR B R @47
Bi MARFE 2 RS T 18 - I A IR
BRI EHEAREBIELFE -

AEBEZREHABRFEBHERLEN
EEEREARRE - UL EF - KHE
FEBBE RRER (BEFBERR
EFRAREERB) HREIREEE
Yo MERBARRERIRRENLD
BB DX °

RZTEZZF KNEBEMERE

I FHRBTE) KRR FERHE
A H R TR B5% o BHEF sl AR
ZE - AEBE g IR FREMNR
EoBENAE Bk REEX
FTRE EETNEERERNLEEE
LARLE ©

(=%
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20

222

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 20 X -EWERERR (&)
The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December AEBR -_ZE-_—FKR-_T-—F+_-A
2022 and 2021 was as follows: T+ BNEABRFEHREHERNLERNAT :
2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
Note $’000 $°000
B 5T T Tt
Bank loans RITER 18 50,000 82,121
Lease liabilities HERE 19 25,283 34,482
Total debt FEVEY 75,283 116,603
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RS RIREEEY 16(a) (262,563) (236,837)
Net cash BEE (187,280) (120,234)
Total equity attributable to equity A FRERZRREGEER
shareholders of the Company 371,819 375,091

Net debt-to-capital ratio BEBHERL R

N/ATE A N/ATNE

The Government of the HKSAR requires contractors on the list of
approved contractors for public works (the “List”) to maintain such
minimum working capital as the Government of the HKSAR may
from time to time determine (the “Required Minimum Working
Capital”). Two subsidiaries of the Company are subject to the
Required Minimum Working Capital as these subsidiaries are
contractors on the List. Except for this, neither the Company nor of
its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables and contract assets. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as set
out in note 22, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 22.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has established a credit risk management policy
under which individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 14 to 45
days from the date of biling. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Given
the customers of the Group are mainly reputable companies
and the Government of the HKSAR and its related
organisations and institutional bodies and the Group has not
experienced any significant credit losses in the past,
management considered that the exposure to credit risk is
insignificant. The Group assessed the expected credit loss
rate on trade receivables and contract assets is below 1%.

A

21

,_\_|
l\‘/T\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

ERE R e

At
(FRBEIEHS - LUBTTE)

MERREEREMIALNFE

AEBEMEENEE

nBEE  MNEREEK

RBRIEAEELEEHBRETES - A5H
T B B0 5% 5 L DA B AR SR B 2 B P2 1 55 L B

FATER 4% 69 B 755

(a)

%& |%ﬁzﬂa/

BREEBRRREBAT o

FERR

FERBREHFIBERGOEmE
BASREELVHEBEORR $§l
EERREIZHFRANERE SRR
WEE- K%@ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%%%é
EMEERBRER  REAHFH AR
SEEACEERRSENAEERTEE
AR R IRTT R B B o

Bk B 5E 22 P 8 A< 5= B 4F /O B A 4R AR
Hh REBYEREHEERNEEAZE
ERBAEMEMBER RBREHKR
R EMBRERAMAZNEAEERR
KT 22 58 o

EHRESRRRENEE

REBEESE—BEERBREREE -
Bt EREEFEEHMBERETS
BHEENEFPHT ZEABEFTRE
FPRARIMARN o RERNX
HEeN  WEREF KT E R A K& H
BREEEMERKEREEBONER - &
WESEFEEZHIR 14245 BRE)
He —Mms AEBETEEREFIRE
HEARG o

AEEZAERE2HNEREERENS
BERABERRESERARANEENE
BEE  ERAEENEPIERESE
RIFNRRIARE B BRI N EERE
MELHEE MAKBERELEHRE
MEAXEERR EEERREERR
WAERK - AEEFEEKE SRR R
BRHEENTEHEEBBRLEER1% -
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

224

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 34% (2021:
42%) and 84% (2021: 88%) of the total trade receivables and
contract assets was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
the expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
parent company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting periods of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:
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BERREEREMIALTFE®)

(a)

(b)

EERE(E)
EURESRARENEE (&)

AEEEENEERREESSERPH
1 Bl 1 T FE &P A4S & FTE A9 7T 22 Sk B
R E B EERRRESETMNIE
NEZRAEBEGERNEFPEEFAR
MEFEE - RIS IR - BUIE SRR
LEHNEERBEPDRBI4% (=T =—
1 42%) R 84% (ZEZ—4 : 88%) A&
ERAEBSERAEFRAREFHIE -

RBE SRR

AEEETHENESEEREERSHR
TEE BRETEMRSABEHKER
EREFTAERNERRSFR - HEME
KEBIEENE TREKFEE - ADF
BRBESFEMNIE  AEENBEE
EHERRDESTRRERZHET
B BREAKNASFHEERETE
TRBERTRRNCARELRE
NENERRERSHESHFK -
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At 31 December 2022

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21

—
AR

(CZE=k L0

B MWK Wt

AETT25)

MERREEREMIALTFE®)

REE SRR (H)
R=B==%+=-A=+—-H

(b)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BRRERRERE
More than  More than
Within  1yearbut 2years but
1 year or less than less than Over Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
1FRH 15 E 2P E
RERE B2FRK B5FRK BBE5F st REE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Tr Tr Fr Fr T
Trade and other payables BB ZERA K
H A AT FR 701,030 - - - 701,030 701,030
Retentions payable EHRESR 171,824 92,013 52,380 - 316,217 316,217
Bank loans RITER 50,290 - - - 50,290 50,000
Lease liabilities HEARE 10,090 6,090 10,264 - 26,444 34,482
933,234 98,103 62,644 - 1,093,981 1,101,729
Financial guarantees issued & % B BIER
(note): GEIE
Maximum amount guaranteed S R4 58 (st 22)
(note 22) 88,343 - - - 88,343 22,547

=
=
=

FHRIFTERAEAEREEERAA
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 21 HMERBREEREMIALTFEZ)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESEMRE)
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+=-A=+-—H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
EHREAR LT

More than More than

Within 1yearbut 2 years but

1 year or less than less than Over Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
1R 1R E 2FNE
REKE B2FR B5FRA HiB5F st REE
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Trade and other payables BB %EETA&
H At REFTFE 783,220 - - - 783,220 783,220
Retentions payable EHRES 172,809 145,603 19,311 - 337,723 337,723
Bank loans RITERK 82,391 - - - 82,391 82,121
Lease liabilities HEaRE 14,577 7,777 11,309 2,527 36,190 34,482
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 & E T A 2,621 178 - - 2,799 2,805
1,055,618 153,558 30,620 2,527 1,242,323 1,240,351
Financial guarantees issued 2% 4B &R
(note): (HsE) -
Maximum amount guaranteed S = 1R 4 58 (st 22)
(note 22) 124,979 - - - 124,979 20,419
Note: The Group is exposed to liquidity risk that arises from guarantees in Mzt : REF@mERALSEENRITREIRMEE
respect of banking facilities of a joint venture. The guarantees are REFEENRBESRRE - HEBESE D
callable if the joint venture is unable to meet its obligations. EREEBER  AEFBTHERKRAE
B o
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 21 MERRERREMIAATFHEE)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) F=mp
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash MERBRA—HHMTANAFEKE
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of PRIR @ = % B % ) 2 2B R B
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to ’%E}EE’JH o AEBEEEBFIXRRITHE
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank BEEAERERTEIEAERER
borrowings, pledged deposits and cash at banks. Interest //|Li7F'JTﬂf5M BB RIRITERD
rate risk on bank deposits is considered immaterial and ﬂYH @A N E R - I A A
therefore have been excluded from the sensitivity analysis AT EREDH o MAIRKIERE @ &
below. If interest rate fluctuates significantly, appropriate PG REVEE FE G B R R E R -

measures would be taken to manage interest risk exposure.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly AEENHREeRENERREFEFEEFR
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank FEARRITIERTEENEBRITR
Offered Rate arising from its variable-rate bank borrowings. ERERE - REBEF SRITEREF
The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing EREEEFTRM MR 18 HE -

bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 18 to the
financial statements.

() Interest rate risk profile (i) F=EER
The following table, as reported to the management of BINAREEREMME - TRt
the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of the BAS B S BRA (S KA T R
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period: [RBR BN
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
1 SRS Kok BB X Gk
% $°000 % $'000
Tr Tt

Fixed rate borrowings: EEFRIRMEK :

Lease liabilities HEBRE 25 25,283 2.5 34,482
Interest rate swap F & H 1.8 100,000 1.74 200,000
125,283 234,482

Variable rate borrowings: JZ B FR{EH :

Bank loans RITER 6.29 50,000 1.81 82,121

Interest rate swap | 2 451 B 4.35 (100,000) 0.16 (200,000)

Net exposure [\ B 5 R (50,000) (117,879)
TR _FER|TEEEREEER QA 227
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points (2021: 100 basis
points) in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s
result after taxation and retained profits by
approximately $418,000 (2021: increased/decreased
the Group’s result after taxation and retained profits by
approximately $984,000) in response to the general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable-rate
bank borrowings held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s result after
taxation and retained profits is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as 2021.

(d) Currency risk

The Group owns assets and conducts its business primarily
in Hong Kong with its cash flows substantially denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency
risk as substantially all the transactions are either
denominated in the functional currency of the entity or in
United States dollars, where Hong Kong dollars is pegged to
United States dollars, the resulting currency risk is considered
insignificant.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)
@i)

(i1)

Fair values

Financial instrument measured at fair value

The Group’s derivative financial instrument — interest
rate swap is determined based on the amount that the
Group would receive or pay to terminate the swaps at
the end of the reporting period taking into account
current interest rates and current creditworthiness of
the swap counter-parties. This derivative financial
instrument falls within Level 2 fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, nor transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). The Group’s policy is
to recognise transfers between the levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

Financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

A

21

,_\_|
l\‘/T\

ERE R e

nt

(BmHEAN - UETZ)

MERREEREMIALTFE®)

(e)
@i)

(ii)

%& |%ﬁzﬂa/

ATE

BRAFEFENESRTA

AEEOITES BT A—H X5
THRRIBA SR B R IR AR L2 1
BB S REEE - RS
BERITN R R e B T 77 00 2 A
ER-ZTEERTARBENES
B HRELERFEIBHFAREND
FEBRFE2MH -

HE-_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HL
FE F1IBHRF2ERZEH
EBEEY AN HEIE
F(ZEZ—F : |&) - REEMHK
KERATEEBR 2 ABEEBLRE
TE3RE IR MR L o

BAVEMINEEIRNERT
2
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=+—H  NEEZEHER AR
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22 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

230

@)

As at 31 December 2022, approximately $343,227,000 (2021:
$280,579,000) of performance bonds were given by financial
institutions to the Group in favour of the Group’s customers
as security for the due performance and observance of the
Group’s obligation under the contracts entered into between
the Group and their customers. The Group has provided
guarantees of the above performance bonds. If the Group
fails to provide satisfactory performance to their customers to
whom performance bonds have been given, such customers
may demand the financial institutions to pay to them the sum
or sums stipulated in such demand. The Group will then
become liable to compensate such financial institutions
accordingly. The performance bonds will be released upon
completion of the contract works. The performance bonds
were granted under the banking facilities with details as set
out in note 18(b).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company do not consider it probable that a claim will be
made against the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has provided
guarantees of $128,786,000 (2021: $177,951,000)
representing a 50% proportionate guarantee in respect of
certain banking facilities of $257,573,000 (2021:
$355,902,000) granted to its joint venture in Macau. The 50%
proportionate facilities were utilised to the extent of
$88,343,000 (2021: $124,979,000), of which amounts of
$74,071,000 (2021: $92,090,000) represent performance
bonds given by financial institutions to the customers of the
joint venture.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as their fair values cannot be
reliably measured using observable market data and no
transaction price was incurred.

The subsidiaries of the Group are defendants in a number of
claims, lawsuits and potential claims relating to employee’s
compensation cases and personal injuries claims. The
directors of the Company considered that the possibility of
any economic outflow in settling the legal claims is remote as
these claims are all well covered by insurance. Accordingly,
no provision for the contingent liabilities in respect of these
litigations is necessary, after due consideration of each case.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

22 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT 22 MBRERBARARE)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
() A subsidiary of the Group is defendant in several arbitration e AEE-—HHBRARAEZEKEEFK

proceedings relating to projects performed. With reference to
legal opinions obtained, the directors of the Company
considered that the possibility of any economic outflow in
settling such arbitration proceedings is remote. Accordingly,
no provision for the contingent liabilities in respect of such
arbitration proceedings is necessary, after due consideration

ZRMBRBREFONE - K2EDEBN
FRER ARREBERA BruS
@ﬁﬁﬁ?iﬁﬁwﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁ¥ﬁ
e At - KREZREERIIER

Eﬁﬁ%@%ﬁrmﬁm&%ﬁ1ﬁ
B o

of each case.

23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 23 EXHBAERES
TEEBASHEMN

AEBETZEEABNFM(2ECHT
BENFIE)RNHHE - ME TR
YEE RS REEERMFOME -

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a)

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors as disclosed in note 8
and certain of the highest paid employees and senior
management as disclosed in note 9.

2022 2021

—E-= —E_—1F

$°000 $000

Tr Tt

Short-term employee benefits HHREBEREA 17,131 16,206
Discretionary bonus BB IEAL 305 50
Post-employment benefits BEEE 1248 T 579 620
18,015 16,876

ENasmst ATE ITRA | (B2
6(b)) °

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)).

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEBEINXS

BRREMBRREMCATAEENRZS
MAERIN EAKEV& TFEEAEE

Except for the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had no transactions

with the related parties during the current and prior years. 3 i ER A B 7 E A TR R 5

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (c) EFEEXZMHEBAz LEWRANER
connected transactions 3
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no HE-T-_—_FR-F=-—F+=A

related party transactions falls under definition of connected =St—HLEEE #SEEEIRSER
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in EmR EIJ % 1 4A$ FrAEHEER HK
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. FEHE

A

FR|IFTREELEEER AT 231
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232

B MR R M A

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group contributes to an Occupational Retirements Scheme
(the “ORSO Scheme”), a defined contribution retirement scheme,
which is available to some of its employees in Hong Kong. Under
the ORSO Scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5%
of their monthly salaries, while the Group’s contributions are
calculated at 5% of the monthly salaries of the employees as well.
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s contributions
after 10 years of completed service, or at a reduced scale after
completion of 3 to 9 years’ service. Contributions to the ORSO
Scheme are reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the Group’s
contributions.

A mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) has been
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance in December 2000. The then existing
employees of the Group in Hong Kong could elect to join the MPF
Scheme, while all new employees joining the Group in Hong Kong
from then onwards are required to join the MPF Scheme. Both the
Group and the employees are required to contribute 5% of each
individual’s relevant income with a maximum amount of $1,500 per
month as a mandatory contribution. Employer’s mandatory
contributions are 100% vested in the employees as soon as they
are paid to the MPF Scheme. Senior employees may also elect to
join Mutual Voluntary Plan in which both the Group and the
employees, on top of the MPF Scheme mandatory contributions,
make a voluntary contribution to the extent of contributions that
would have been made under the ORSO Scheme.

The Group’s contributions under the above-mentioned defined
contribution retirement plans are expensed as incurred and no
contributions have been forfeited as all contributions to the MPF
Scheme and ORSO schemes vest immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered

by the appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.
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25 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 25 LAFEEMBKRE
POSITION

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Note $’°000 $'000
P E T Tz
Non-current asset kRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries AL O £ 20,081 ____________ 20,081
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i Y= NEIE /S 133,489 125,494
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 308 192
133,797 125,686
Current liability REBEE
Other payables . HtbEyxm 3 26
Net current assets __ RBEE®E 133,766 125,660
NET ASSETS BEFE 153,847 145,741
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR G 20
Share capital & 7R 20(0) 40,000 40,000
Reserves HiE 113,847 105,741
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 153,847 145,741
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26

27

234

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 20(b)(i).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2022, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Sun Fook Kong
Group Limited, which is incorporated in British Virgin Islands, and
Mr. Lo Kai Shui respectively. They do not provide financial
statements available for public use.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022

26

27

BEMEFARER

RREHKRE  ESERERAPRE - #—
TR E R FE A B RE 20(0)() ©

HiERREERNS

W_ZE-_—F+_A=+—H8 ZERE &
SENEESRARREEIES T DR AR EE
HRRESEMAINTEAESRERRARAR
BEURGAE - MEWRREATHARA LSRN
W TSR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 28 ERGERXRBEE_S__F4+_
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED A=1+—HILFEEENAIERT « i
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED ARRERIBERHTE
31 DECEMBER 2022
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA HEZZVBRETIR A BAGHAAE
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are not ERMEIEREBRE TS +=-A=1+—H
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022 and which have IFFEE B ARERBFETERISEE] - RS
not been adopted in these financial statements. These BHRRW BN Z ST BRSNS - i F %
developments include the following which may be relevant to the REFBEAEEFGEEENTIIEIE -

Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5I BB A&
M EHREN
HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
BRMBRELEBNETS  REEE4 —ET_=F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and HKFRS Practice 1 January 2023
Statement 2, Making mater/a//ty Jjudgements: Disclosure of accounting policies
B ERE1RNEE] UBREXNZSREBVEMELERNEERES 295 —ET_=%—H—H
IEHEEZ ’/ifﬁ’#//é‘ﬁ CBEIHE R
Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, change in accounting estimates and errors: 1 January 2023
Definition of accounting estimates
BERGTEBNESRINER] - BETIHE - BFEFTEERER - S5 1L 8TE —E-=%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a single transaction
BRGHEBNFE2RNER] - el - FHE X GEFMWEERA BEHELRHIE —E-=%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of liabilities 1 January 2024
as current or non- currem‘
BER G ERNE1RNER] - HBFHRENZS  BESEBREBXIFTE —ET_MHF—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentat/on of financial statements: Non-current liabilities 1 January 2024
with covenants
BRI ERNFE1RNER]  IBEHRENZES - WEXLFNEREEE —ET_MNF—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
ERMBHmEERF6SENER] - HE - ERCHNHERE —ENFE—-—H—H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of financial statements: Classification 1 January 2024
by the borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand clause
BERREBESR(ZE_ZF)  ABHRNZS — BEANANGEF L ESENEH —ENFE—H—H
TEHE ) 5K
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined
an investor and its associate or jo/m‘ venture
BERUBREENE 10 RBEBSALRNE28RNES]  REZREHEL AR TET
BEPEZENEELERTE
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the ANEBEIR FHTEZ SRR E R FE AR
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of NEE 25kl REBRARNZEZHE
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them NRKA B A B SRR ER E AR E o
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
—CEC_FR|IFTBREEREEBRAF 235



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TFEHHEHR

The summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the audited

financial statements is set out below:

ARER B i B R R 80 SO0 B E M BFE
MR ERENREERBBNBEZHIIMT

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REaER
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-N\F ZE-hEF ZETF T —F ZEB__F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&TT FAET FHET FHEIT F#&T
Revenue U 25 6,197,164 5,461,871 3,772,118 3,624,511 3,667,077
Gross profit/(loss) EF,(E8) 273,176 75,149 (39,917) 85,713 77,409
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF,(EE) 129,321 (29,402) (18,974) 18,001 19,751
Attributable to: FE1h -
Shareholders of the Company &R FIARE 129,689 (28,827) (19,027) 17,426 18,729
Non-controlling interests IEIEAE i 2 (368) (575) 53 575 1,022
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY FEEE ARRES
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-N\F ZE-hEF ETF T —F ZEB_-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FHEIT F#&T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMEEE 79,497 150,554 157,327 115,960 77,740
Current assets RENEE 2,079,893 2,231,062 1,994,852 1,684,762 1,538,742
Total assets BEME 2,159,300 2,381,616 2,152,179 1,800,722 1,616,482
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities REIAE 1,660,893 1,879,194 1,710,437 1,401,847 1,226,712
Non-current liabilities IEREBEE 4,717 54,253 44157 23,281 17,926
Total liabilities BfEE 1,665,610 1,933,447 1,754,594 1425128 1,244,638
EQUITY =
Total equity attributable A E R FEAS
to shareholders of AR
the Company 493,343 448,308 397,659 375,091 371,819
Non-controlling interests FEFEE A 2 437 (139) (74) 503 25
Total equity 25458 493,780 448,169 397,585 375,594 371,844
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